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Despite the natural disasters, geopolitical tension and intensified
social diversity faced by many countries in the world, 2017 was still
concluded with a strong economic recovery albeit such a volatile
sentiment. The Gross Domestic Product in most parts of the world
continued its accelerated growth, the most comprehensive upward
swing in past decade, with the US economy continued to pick up
and the economies in Euro Zone and Japan recovered moderately,
while emerging economies, such as the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC" or “China”) and India continued to lead the growth.
Amid such macro-environment, Tai United Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) pushed
forward its key businesses steadily and strived to diversify its
business and expand its global footholds, bringing overall stable
returns and value growth for its shareholders in the past year.

OPERATION HIGHLIGHT

(1) Steady improvement in financial
performance

The Group has proactively tackled with the complicated
and evolving market situation and maintained a moderate
leverage level, leading to satisfactory operating results
with overall financial performance for the year significantly
outperformed the nine months ended 31 December 2016
(the “corresponding nine-month period of 2016"). In
2017, the revenue of the Group was HK$11,244 million,
representing a growth of 39% as compared to the
corresponding nine-month period of 2016. The net profit
was HK$312 million, represented a growth of 661% as
compared to the corresponding nine-month period of 2016.
As at 31 December 2017, the total assets of the Group
were HK$11,169 million, representing an increase of 9%
as compared with the end of last year, while the net assets
were HK$5,183 million, representing an increase of 22%
as compared with the end of last year. During the year, the
return on equity of the Group was 6%.

(2) Successful disposal of properties in London,
the United Kingdom and Hong Kong

In 2017, the Group disposed of the commercial building
situated in Hammersmith, west of London, the United
Kingdom in which it was completed in September 2017.
Also, the selling of the entire 79th floor of The Center, a high
rise office tower in Central, Hong Kong will be completed by
the end of March 2018 as planned.
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OPERATION HIGHLIGHT (continued)

(3) A subsidiary obtained the approval as a
registered fund management company

Tai United Asset Management Pte. Ltd., an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, was approved by the
Monetary Authority of Singapore on 2 June 2017 as a
registered fund management company to carry on fund
management business in Singapore.

(4) Payment of dividend

Given improving financial performance of the Company,
the board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or the
“Directors”) has recommended to share the profit with the
shareholders of the Company by way of interim dividend
payment of HK1.81 cents per share for the year ended
31 December 2017.

Furthermore, the Company was included as a constituent of the
MSCI Hong Kong Small Cap Index with effect from June 2017.
Besides, with effect from 4 September 2017, the Company was
included as a constituent of Hang Seng Global Composite Index
and Hang Seng Composite SmallCap Index and admitted in the
List of Eligible Securities for Southbound Trading under Shenzhen
Connect, respectively, demonstrating the investors’ recognition and
confidence of the Company’s performance in the capital market.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express our sincere gratitude to the management for their
contribution to the Group and to all staff for their relentless
support to the Group's development.

Chen Weisong
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018

* For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The major businesses of the Group include (i) investment and asset
management; (i) financial services; and (iii) other business.

(1) Investment and Asset Management
Distressed Debt Assets Management

Our onshore professional team has been proactively tapping
into the value gap of distressed debt assets in the PRC,
building up various investment channels and acquired
quality distressed bank loan portfolio strategically through
public tenders, in a bid to maximise its overall revenues by
integrating features of individual debtor and collaterals for
different disposal methods.

After taking into account that funds continued to flow into
the distressed assets industry, asset prices were being quickly
pushed up and industry risk emerged. During the year,
the Group carried out distressed debt assets acquisitions
according to our principle of prudence and leveraged the
favourable conditions of asset price increase to dispose of its
existing assets rapidly.

As at the end of the year, the distressed debt assets held
by the Group measured at fair value amounted to HK$447
million, representing a decrease of 1% over the end of
previous year.

Property Investment

In order to seize the market development opportunities of
real estate in major developed regions both onshore and
offshore, benefit from the long-term rental returns and asset
appreciation and enhance the diversity and stability of the
Group's profit, the Group commenced its property investment
business in Hangzhou, the PRC, Hong Kong and London, the
United Kingdom.

The revenue generated from property investment for the year
ended 31 December 2017 increased 6,400% to HK$130
million, as compared to the corresponding nine-month period
of 2016, which was mainly attributable to the increase in
property rental income of the Group.
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(2)

Commodity Trading

The Group attached great importance on non-ferrous metals
and energy and chemical products. By capitalising on its
well-established supply chain relationship in the industry
both domestic and abroad and its diversified banking
products, it commenced spot commodity trading, supply
chain management and risk-free arbitrage businesses. During
the year, the price of energy bulk commodities including
petroleum, natural gas and coal marked a significant increase.
The prices of bulk commodities such as crude oil and non-
ferrous metals continued to increase. During the year ended
31 December 2017, the revenue generated from commodity
trading amounted to HK$10,617 million, representing an
increase of 35% over the corresponding nine-month period
of 2016.

Securities Investment

Leveraging on the strategic geographical location of Hong
Kong and Singapore and the development of the PRC
investment market, the Company carried out securities
investment business in secondary market with its internal
funds. With listed shares of large-scale and quality companies
as our primary investment targets, we aim to pursue capital
appreciation and stable dividend income.

As a result of the increased size of investment portfolio
during the year, the change in fair value of financial assets
held-for-trading increased 196% to HK$157 million (nine
months ended 31 December 2016: HK$53 million). As at the
end of the year, the listed equity securities investment held by
the Group amounted to HK$2,245 million, representing an
increase of 244% over the end of previous year.

Financial Services

In 2017, the Group's revenue generated from financial
services was HK$237 million, representing an increase of
2,862 % over the corresponding nine-month period of 2016.
In which of such revenue, HK$217 million (nine months
ended 31 December 2016: HK$7 million) was derived from
the effective interest income from the loan note investment,
and HK$20 million (nine months ended 31 December
2016: HK$1 million) was mainly derived from the securities
brokerage and asset management business of the Group
through licences (Types 1, 2 and 9 regulated activities) held
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO") (the “SFC Licences”).
In early 2018, the Group disposed its controlling interest in
the entity which holds the SFC Licences, details of which are
set out in the paragraph headed “Events after the reporting
period” below.
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(3) Other Business
Mining and Exploitation of Natural Resources

The Group is in the course of preparing an updated resource
estimation technical report which is expected to be issued
by a qualified mineral technical advisor in 2018. Thereafter,
the Group will engage a professional mining consultant to
prepare an updated feasibility study report and environmental
impact assessment report. The Board will formulate a
business plan based on the results of further research and
make further announcement in due course or as and when
necessary.

Material acquisition and disposal

Acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Tai Infinite
Holdings Group Limited (“Tai Infinite Holdings”) and Excel
Fine Holdings Limited (“Excel Fine”) (collectively, the “Tai
Infinite Group”)

On 5 January 2017, the Company, as the purchaser, entered
into the sale and purchase agreement with its then controlling
shareholder, as the vendor, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to purchase the entire equity interest of Tai Infinite Group
and accepted the assignment of loans from the former shareholder
of the Tai Infinite Group. The principal asset of Tai Infinite Group
is a commercial property located in Central, Hong Kong, being the
entire 79th Floor of the Center (the “"Hong Kong Property”),
which was held through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Excel Fine.

The acquisition was completed on 24 March 2017 which was
satisfied by the allotment and issuance of 446,742,544 ordinary
shares of the Company.

Details of the acquisition of the Tai Infinite Group were set out
in note 48(i)(g) to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this
annual report, the Company’s announcement dated 5 January
2017, 27 February 2017 and 24 March 2017 and the Company'’s
circular dated 10 February 2017.
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Disposal of a commercial building in London, the United
Kingdom

On 18 September 2017, the Group disposed a property in London,
the United Kingdom. The property, namely 10 Hammersmith
Grove, is a commercial building situated in Hammersmith, west
of London, the United Kingdom. The aggregate amount borne by
the purchaser under the sale and purchase agreement amounted
to GBP112 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,120 million)
(subject to adjustments), which is equivalent to the valuation of the
property as at 8 September 2017 as prepared by an independent
professional valuer.

Details of the disposal of the property in the United Kingdom were
set out in note 49(b) to the Consolidated Financial Statements of
this annual report and the Company’s announcement dated 18
September 2017.

Disposal of Excel Fine

On 21 September 2017, Tai Infinite Holdings, as the vendor, and
the Company (as the vendor’s guarantor) entered into a provisional
sale and purchase agreement (the “Provisional SP Agreement”)
with Profit Gate International Limited (“Profit Gate"”), pursuant
to which Tai Infinite Holdings has conditionally agreed to sell, and
Profit Gate has conditionally agreed to acquire, (i) the sale shares,
representing the entire issued share capital of Excel Fine, and (ii)
the sale debts, representing the entire shareholder’s loan owed
by Excel Fine to Tai Infinite Holdings as at completion date, at an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$738 million. The respective
formal sale and purchase agreement was signed on 23 October
2017.

Excel Fine is a property holding company and its principal asset is
the Hong Kong Property, i.e. the entire 79th floor of The Center, a
high rise office tower in Central, Hong Kong.

Subject to the fulfillment or waiver (as the case may be) of all the
conditions precedents as set out in the formal sale and purchase
agreement, the disposal of Excel Fine will be completed on 28
March 2018. Upon completion of the transaction, Excel Fine will
cease to be an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and the Company will cease to have any interest in Excel Fine.

Details of the disposal of Excel Fine were set out in note 32 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report and the
Company’s announcement dated 21 September 2017.
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Lapse of the subscription of new shares (the “Subscription”)
of Hua Lien International (Holding) Company Limited (“Hua
Lien”)

On 18 July 2016, Tai United Investments Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), as the subscriber, entered into a
conditional subscription agreement with Hua Lien, as the issuer,
pursuant to which the subscriber had conditionally agreed to
subscribe for, and Hua Lien had conditionally agreed to allot and
issue 3,700,000,000 subscription shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.16 per subscription share for a total subscription amount of
approximately HK$592 million.

On 27 March 2017, as the conditions precedent required in the
subscription agreement have not been fulfilled or waived by
the long stop date specified in the subscription agreement, the
Company decided not to proceed with further negotiation to
amend or extend the subscription agreement. The subscription
agreement therefore had lapsed and the Subscription contemplated
thereunder would not proceed. The Company had withdrawn its
application for the whitewash waiver thereunder accordingly.

Details of the Subscription are set out in the joint announcement
of the Company and Hua Lien dated 21 July 2016 and the
announcements of the Company dated 10 August 2016,
29 September 2016, 28 October 2016, 30 November 2016 and
27 March 2017 respectively.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Capital structure

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s consolidated net asset was
HK$5,183 million, representing an increase of HK$951 million as
compared to that of HK$4,232 million as at 31 December 2016.

On 24 March 2017, the Company issued 446,742,544 new shares
as the consideration for the acquisition of the Tai Infinite Group.
As at 31 December 2017, the Company has 5,250,019,852
shares of HK$0.05 each in issue and total equity attributable to
the owners of the Company was approximately HK$5,180 million
(31 December 2016: HK$4,229 million).

As at 30 October 2017, the Company reduced the entire amount
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the
Company to nil, the amount of which as at 30 June 2017 was
approximately HK$4,927 million. This credit was reduced and the
credit arising therefrom was entirely transferred to the contributed
surplus reserve. Upon completion of the share premium
cancellation and after deducting the distribution of 2017 interim
dividend amounted to approximately HK$95 million, the credit
balance of the Group’s contributed surplus reserve increased to
approximately HK$4,885 million as at 31 December 2017.

RIEEBERR (2R ) ERA 8] ([ )R G
([FBIBER ) 3%

“E-RNFLA+TNH  ARRNEENEB A Ta
United Investments Limited ({E &332 08 A ) E1EE (1
BET NI BRERERZ  RIELGE R
ABBEHRERE - BEBAGMGR R RIET
3,700,000,000/% 3R HE X 7 - SRR (E R B ARRIEAR (D
0.16/87T » MRE ST RSN2AE BT

RIZ—LtF=A-++tRB ARREBRERE
M ?QEEXEIHEHU?E EER R RRBE MR TR
&t MARBIRETBE—FHEE .J‘)ZLEW

i o At - REHED KR MRERZ
THREBFEOTIHET - AATE UL EEEE
VEEAREREE ©

ﬁl%au/ugﬁglgﬁ"j}‘ %}ZEAZ’X T-Eﬁi-—fﬁli

R TR
FEAZ T —HRBERAEURARATRZZE—X
FENA+H  ZE—R"FEALA=Z+HIB ZF—X
FH+A-+NEH  ZBE—RF+—A=Z+HE=Z

—F=AHEANAS -
i )

N

RZE—tH&+-_A=Z+—H8 AEBEKNEL?
ﬁ/?ﬁﬁ5183§1%/%7t BN _E—XRF+=A
=+ HRGABEFESL22AE B TINS5 E
BT

RZE—+HF=ZA=-+WMHE ARQA%ET
446,782,544 TR 1D - tERINIB R ZEB MR
B -RZE—+tF+-A=+—H XRAAF
5,250,019,852 i T AR EI1H0.058 T U E B4 1 TR 1) -
MARAHE AELEZBTEAAS 180 BB T
(ZE—RFE+ZA=+—H 1 422988%87L) °

ﬁé‘i“—ti‘f‘ﬂ*ﬂ'ﬁ KRR EERE R & E
R a2EEEEET  ERN - T—+tFA=1+H
%@%4,927@?%%% HURERR R B BRI E A 2 IR

BIE2BBAZEHAGMEE - RMDEBEFHTK
ERMB—F— tiqﬂﬁﬂﬂxg IR REHSEEE
TR RZFB—EFt-A=1—H  AEENE

BEMFHEERGHRANEINELL,885BHETT



Tai United Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

12N\

Management Discussion and Analysis

BT DT

The share premium cancellation and the subsequent transfer of
the credit arising therefrom to the contributed surplus reserve can
allow the Company greater flexibility to declare dividends or make
distribution to the shareholders in future as and when the Board
considers appropriate.

Details of the reasons and impact of the share premium
cancellation were set out in the circular of the Company dated 28
September 2017.

Save as disclosed above, there was no movement on the share
capital of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Fund raising activities
Issuance and redemption of loan notes and warrants

On 28 September 2016, the Company entered into the loan
notes subscription agreement (the “Loan Notes Subscription
Agreement”) with Cheer Hope Holdings Limited, Haitong
International Investment Fund SPC (acting on behalf of and for
the account of Haitong International Investment Fund SPC — Fund
| SP) and Songhua Investment Holding Limited (collectively, the
“Investors”), pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed
to issue and the Investors conditionally agreed to subscribe for the
loan notes (the “Loan Notes”) in the aggregate principal amount
of not more than USD180 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,395 million) with an initial term of 2 years from the date of
issue, which may be extended for a further term of one year by the
Company with the consent of the Loan Notes holders (the “Loan
Notes Holders”). The Loan Notes were fully subscribed by the
Investors on 30 September 2016. The net proceeds received by the
Company were approximately HK$ 1,379 million.

Since there were no warrants (the “Warrants”) being granted
on the date falling the six calendar months after the first closing
date of the Loan Notes (i.e. 30 March 2017), or any other date as
agreed in writing between Loan Notes Holders and the Company
(the “Warrants Long Stop Date”), in accordance with the Loan
Notes Subscription Agreement, the Loan Notes Holders exercised
their early redemption rights by giving a written notice of early
redemption to the Company and all of the Loan Notes held by the
Loan Notes Holders were due and repaid.

Details of the issuance and redemption of the Loan Notes
and Warrants were set out in note 37 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of this annual report and the Company’s
announcements dated 28 September 2016, 30 September 2016,
5 October 2016 and 5 January 2017 and the Company’s circular
dated 15 December 2016 respectively.
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Placing of new shares

On 15 December 2016, the Company and Haitong Securities Co.,
Ltd. (the “Placing Agent”) entered into a placing agreement
(the "Placing Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to place 300,000,000 placing shares (the
“Placing Shares”) to not less than six placees for subscription
through the Placing Agent at a placing price (the “Placing Price”)
of HK$1.20 per Placing Share (the “Placing”), the purpose of
which is to broaden the shareholders base and capital base of
the Company and enhance its existing balance sheet strength.
The Placing Price of HK$1.20 per Placing Share represent (i) a
premium of approximately 1.69% to the closing price of HK$1.18
per share as quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 15 December 2016, being the date
of the Placing Agreement; and (ii) a premium of approximately
7.72% to the average closing price of HK$1.114 per share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive trading
days up to and including the date of the Placing Agreement. The
Company intended to apply the net proceeds for general working
capital of the Group and financing future acquisition should
such investment opportunities arise. On 30 December 2016, the
Placing was completed and a total of 300,000,000 new shares
with an aggregate nominal value of approximately HK$15 million
were issued upon the Stock Exchange granting the listing of, and
permission to deal in, the Placing Shares allotted and issued to not
less than six placees pursuant to the Placing Agreement. The net
proceeds received by the Company were approximately HK$358
million.

As at the date of this annual report, the net proceeds from the
Placing were used as to (i) approximately HK$300 million for the
repayment of Loan Notes; and (i) approximately HK$58 million as
general working capital.

Issuance of notes payable and other borrowings

In March 2017, the Company entered into a note instrument
subscription agreement (the “Note Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which the
Company agreed to issue and the Subscriber agreed to subscribe
for the 8% note (the “8% Note”) in the aggregate principal
amount of USD80 million (equivalent to approximately HK$621
million) with a term of 3 years from the date of issue. The 8% Note
was fully subscribed by the Subscriber in March 2017. The net
proceeds raised from above was used as general working capital.
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Meanwhile, in March 2017, the Company entered into a loan
agreement with another independent third party (the “Lender”),
pursuant to which the Company agreed to borrow HK$210 million
from the Lender at an interest rate of 6% per annum for a term of
18 months upon the execution of the loan agreement.

Details of which were set out in note 35 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of this annual report.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank balances and cash
was HK$1,381 million (31 December 2016: HK$2,017 million),
current assets of HK$7,827 million (31 December 2016: HK$4,460
million), current liabilities of HK$5,141 million (31 December
2016: HK$4,459 million). The current ratio was 1.52 times®ote ”)
(31 December 2016: 1.00 time). As at the end of the year, the net
current assets of the Group were HK$2,686 million (31 December
2016: HK$0.6 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the total debt financing of the
Group was approximately HK$2,825 million (31 December
2016: HK$1,931 million), of which current debt financing was
approximately HK$2,204 million (31 December 2016: HK$1,931
million), and non-current debt financing was approximately
HK$621 million (31 December 2016: nil).

The net debt®™t 2 of the Group was HK$1,566 million
(31 December 2016: HK$1,498 million) and total equity was
HK$5,183 million (31 December 2016: HK$4,232 million).
Hence, the gearing ratio™® % as at the end of the year was 0.23
(31 December 2016: 0.26).

Note 1: Current ratio = Current assets/Current liabilities

Note 2: Net debt = Borrowings + Loan Notes + Loan from a related
company — Bank balances and cash

Note 3: Gearing ratio = Net debt/(Total equity + Net debt)

The objective of the Group’s funding and treasury management
activities is to ensure having sufficient liquidity to meet its
operation needs and various investment plans.

The Group reviewed the capital structure and key ratios of the
subsidiaries which hold the SFC Licences on a regular basis
to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained to meet the
requirements of their business operations. During the year ended
31 December 2017, all the licensed subsidiaries have complied with
the liquidity requirements under the Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules.
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Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no material capital
commitments and was not engaged in any future plans concerning
major investment or acquisition of capital assets (31 December
2016: HK$592 million).

Charges on group assets

Details of which were set out in note 50 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of this annual report.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2016: nil).

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group’s financial statements are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD"), while the Group is conducting business mainly
in HKD, United States dollars (“USD"), Great British Pound
("GBP") and Renminbi (“"RMB"). Since the exchange rate of HKD
is pegged to USD, there is no material exchange risk in respect of
USD assets and transactions. However, the assets, liabilities and
major transactions of the subsidiaries of the Group in the United
Kingdom and the PRC are mainly denominated in GBP and RMB
respectively, therefore, there were foreign exchange risks during
the financial settlement at the end of reporting period in this
regard.

The Group has implemented policies and guidelines in relation to
foreign exchange risk management. Meanwhile, the subsidiaries
in the United Kingdom and the PRC are able to generate sufficient
income to deal with their local currency expenses. Hence, the
management of the Company considered that the Group's
exposure to potential foreign currency risk was relatively limited.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 145 employees
(31 December 2016: 92), of whom approximately 53.8%
(31 December 2016: 54.3%) were located in Hong Kong and the
rest were located in the PRC and overseas. Staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$105 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (nine months ended 31 December 2016:
HK$43 million).

The Group recognises the employees as the key element that
contributes to the Group's success. The Group’s remuneration
policies are formulated based on the individual performance and
the salaries trends in various regions, which will be reviewed
annually.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

Apart from mandatory provident fund and medical insurance,
the Company has adopted a share option scheme under which
share options may also be awarded to the Directors and eligible
employees as an incentive with reference to the assessment
of individual performance. The Board believes that the Group
maintains an admirable relationship with the employees.

For details of the share option scheme, please refer to note 52 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

In 2017, the payment of an interim dividend of HK1.81 cents
(interim dividend for the nine months ended 31 December 2016:
nil) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
declared and the total amount distributed was approximately
HK$95 million. The Board does not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (final dividend
for the nine months ended 31 December 2016: nil).
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PROSPECTS

The market in general remains optimistic about the global
economic development in 2018 in which it will continue the
robust growing momentum that emerged in 2017. The forecast of
International Monetary Fund is that global economic growth will
continue in 2018 and 2019 and hence adjusted its global growth
rate upwards to 3.9% for next two years (0.2 percentage points
higher when compared with its autumn forecast last year). The
significant threats encountered by such economic growth include
the tightening up of the current easing global financing conditions,
international relations tension and intensifying trade protectionism
in which they may disrupt global economic activities.

Despite the global volatile political and economic landscape, the
industry environment where the Group operates is still faced
with both challenges and opportunities. The Group will seize
market opportunities brought by national policies, continue to
consolidate the development results of each business segment,
optimise assets allocation, reinforce internal control management
and build its core competitiveness, aiming to achieve sustainable
business development and bring continuous valuable returns to the
shareholders of the Company.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Disposal of 67% equity interest in Best Future
Investments Limited (“Best Future”)

On 17 January 2018, the Company entered into agreements with
two independent purchasers (the “Purchasers”) respectively,
pursuant to which, the Company had conditionally agreed to
sell each of the 33.5% equity interest in Best Future to the two
Purchasers at a cash consideration of approximately HK$52.5
million respectively.

As at the date of the agreements, Best Future and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group”) were principally engaged in (i)
Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts)
and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
SFO; and (i) money lending business (collectively the “Disposal
Business”).

Although the Disposal Business has contributed revenue and profit
to the Group, it still requires considerable time and efforts to
manage such business in future. The Directors are of the view that
introducing new investors can generate diversity of thinking and
expand its business development. The disposal of the 67% equity
interest can also reduce the Group’s investment and operation
risks as well as realising part of its investment value. Such disposal
was completed on 18 January 2018. Upon its completion, the
results of the Disposal Group will be accounted for as an associated
company, and its financial statements will not be consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Weisong (“Mr. Chen"), aged 38, is appointed as the
chief executive officer and the executive Director on 27 October
2017. He is Senior Vice President of the Company and serves as
the director of certain subsidiaries of the Group currently. He was
an executive Director from 22 June 2016 to 25 April 2017 and the
chief financial officer of the Group from 15 February 2016 to 25
April 2017.

Mr. Chen has over ten years of experience in asset management
industry. He worked for CCB International Asset Management
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Construction Bank
Corporation, from April 2008 to February 2016. He was a non-
executive director of Universal Medical Financial & Technical
Advisory Services Company Limited (stock code: 2666, a company
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)) from 6 March 2015 to 13 April
2016.

Mr. Chen received a Master of Philosophy degree from the
University of Hong Kong in December 2005. Mr. Chen holds
the qualification as a Chartered Financial Analyst from the CFA
Institute. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and was licensed as a responsible officer for
Type 9 (asset management), Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type
4 (advising on securities) regulated activities of the Securities and
Futures Commission (the “SFC").

Mr. Chen was appointed as a committee member of Nanshan
District Shenzhen Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, the PRC with effect from October 2016.

Mr. XU Ke (“Mr. Xu”), aged 48, is the executive Director and
Senior Vice President of the Company. Mr. Xu has over 25 years
of relevant experience in the distressed assets investment and
management segment. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical
Engineering from Zhejiang University of Science and Technology.

Mr. Xu worked in the China Construction Bank, Zhejiang Branch
from 1991 to 1999, and was the director of China Cinda Asset
Management Co., Ltd., Zhejiang Branch from 1999 to January
2016. He was also the director and assistant to general manager
of Zhejiang Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. from 2007 to
2010, and was the director and general manager of Zhejiang
Development Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd.” (I T 3R Z1E
BEERARAT) from 2008 to 2010.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. YE Fei (“Mr. Ye"), aged 47, is the executive Director and
Senior Vice President of the Company. With effect from 25 April
2017, he has been appointed as the chief financial officer of the
Group.

Mr. Ye has over 20 years of experience in the insurance sector.
He holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Arts from China Foreign Affairs
University, a Master’s Degree in Economics from Central University
of Finance and Economics, China. Mr. Ye is a fellow member of
The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and is a
Chartered Global Management Accountant.

Mr. Ye joined the People’s Insurance Company of China in
1993; served in various positions of China Insurance Regulatory
Commission from November 1998 to December 2002, including
as deputy director of the System Division of Property Insurance
Regulatory Department, deputy director of International
Cooperation Division of International Department. He served
in various positions of China Taiping Insurance Group in Hong
Kong from December 2002 to December 2008, including as
assistant general manager of Finance Department, deputy general
manager of Asset Management Department and general manager
of Investment Management Department. He served as deputy
general manager, chief financial officer and secretary of the Board
of Taiping Life Insurance Company Limited from December 2008
to February 2015. He also served as executive director and chief
executive officer of China Taiping Life Insurance (Hong Kong)
Company Limited from August 2015 to July 2016.

Mr. WANG Qiang (“Mr. Wang"”), aged 41, is the executive
Director and Senior Vice President of the Company. Mr. Wang has
over 15 years of experience in the areas of investment banking
and commodities trading. He holds a Bachelor of Science Degree
in Financial Mathematics from Peking University and a Master
of Science Degree in Financial Engineering from The National
University of Singapore.

Mr. Wang worked for DBS Bank in Singapore in the areas of risk
management and quantitative analysis from 2002 to 2004. He
was the head trader in UBS AG Hong Kong and Singapore from
2004 to 2006, focusing mainly in USD interest rate and commodity
structure products trading in the Asian markets. He was the vice
president of Marketing in Lehman Brothers Hong Kong Division
from August 2006 to July 2007, responsible for corporate clients
from Mainland China. He has been acting as managing director of
Huacheng International Resources Pte Ltd. since 2007.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. GAO Bin (“Dr. Gao"), aged 55, is the independent non-
executive Director. Dr. Gao has extensive knowledge and rich
experience in foreign exchange, fixed income, equity and
commodity investment. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Space
Physics from University of Science and Technology of China, an
MA from Princeton University in Astrophysics and a PhD Degree in
Finance from New York University.

Dr. Gao currently serves as chief investment officer/founder of
Invealth Capital. He has been serving as a special term professor at
School of Economics and Management and PBC School of Finance
of Tsinghua University since 2002. He served as a senior vice
president of Lehman Brothers from 2004 to 2005. He served as a
managing director of Merrill Lynch from 2005 to 2014, in charge
of interest strategies in Asia Pacific. He was a tenured associate
professor of the finance department at University of North
Carolina-Business School, USA before joining this industry.

Ms. LIU Yan (“Ms. Liu”), aged 47, is the independent non-
executive Director. Ms. Liu has over 20 years of solid experience in
auditing, financial management, taxation and fund management.
She holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics from the Central
University of Finance & Economics, a Master Degree in Business
Administration from University of Rochester, and is a member of
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (CICPA).

Ms. Liu has worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers (Guangzhou,
China), Barclays Capital (New York City), Angelo Gordon Asia
Limited (Hong Kong and New York) and China Everbright Limited
(Hong Kong). Ms. Liu was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of U Banquet Group Holding Ltd (stock code:
1483, a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange)
with effect from 1 November 2016.
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Mr. TANG King Shing, GBS, PDSM, ("Mr. Tang”) aged 63, is the
independent non-executive Director. Mr. Tang holds a Master’s
Degree in International and Public Affairs from The University of
Hong Kong. In March 2013, Mr. Tang was appointed a member
of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of the PRC. In June 2013, he was
appointed a director of the Hong Kong News-Expo. In September
2015, he was appointed as the Chairman of the Country and
Marine Parks Board of the Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation
Department for a term of two years and he is an honorary advisor
of Hong Kong Strategy.

Mr. Tang took office (until retirement) as Commissioner of Hong
Kong Police from January 2007 to January 2011. He has been
serving as vice chairman and executive director of the board of
Hong Kong Airlines since 28 September 2016. He also served as
an independent non-executive director of Kingboard Chemical
Holdings Limited (stock code: 148, a company listed on the main
board of the stock exchange) from 1 August 2013 to 31 October
2016. On 15 July 2017, he was appointed as a non-executive
director of Hong Kong International Construction Investment
Management Group Co., Limited (stock code: 00687, a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE - g REARE

The Company adheres to the concept of sustainable development
for its corporate planning and operation and strives to create long-
term value for the Group’s stakeholders. The Group prepares the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”)
in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide") set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), to inform all stakeholders
about our ESG policies, measures and performance.

This ESG Report mainly covers the investment and asset
management and financial services segment which accounts for
the Group’s major operating gain during 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2017 (the “Reporting Period” or “FY2017"). All
management and staff with primary responsibilities participated in
the preparation of this ESG Report to assist the Group’s operation
in reviewing and identifying relevant ESG matters, as well as
assessing the related matters that are material to our business
and every stakeholder. A summary of the ESG matters material to
the Group contained in this ESG Report is set out in the following
table:

ESG Guide Summary
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Significant ESG Matters
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- HEREREE

A. Environmental
RIB

A1. Emissions °
R

A2. Use of Resources o
BIREA

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources o
RIRRAAER

B. Social
e

B1. Employment o
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B2. Health and Safety o
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B3. Development and Training o
B SR

B4. Labour Standards o
BT R

B5. Supply Chain Management o
HERER

B6. Product Responsibility o
EmBE

B7. Anti-corruption °
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B8. Community Investment o
HRRE

Waste Treatment and Carbon Emission
BEZEERIE RARBERL

Energy and Water Consumption
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Environmental Implication Management
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Employee Benefits and Equal Opportunities Policies
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Occupational Health and Safety

BERREET D

Employee Training Plan

BT HEFIETE

Prevention of Child Labour or Forced Labour
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Sustainable Supply Chain
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Customer Service, Marketing and Customer Privacy
Security
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Prevention of Corruption and Fraud
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1. Emissions

The Group is always holding sustainable development
and enterprise social responsibility as its mission. The
Group commits to carrying out monitoring and emission
reduction measures in every process management,
energy and resource management in its day-to-day
operation to prevent any unnecessary contamination
and reduce the adverse impact on the environment.
In recent years, the Group focused mainly on the
development of investment and asset management and
financial services segments, which have not generated
any exhaust gas and sewage emission during daily
commercial operation.

Moreover, as regard to mining and exploitation of
natural resources businesses, no active mining operation
of the Group has taken place yet during the Reporting
Period. As such, the emissions relating to exhaust gas,
sewage and wastes during the mining process are not
applicable temporarily during the Reporting Period.
The Group is in compliance with all the laws and
governmental rules and regulations in Mongolia relating
to mineral resources exploitation and its renewal, and
currently holds four tungsten mining licenses through
two wholly-owned Mongolian subsidiaries. The four
tungsten mining rights are still in effect and in good
standing as at the end of Reporting Period. The Group
will engage a professional mining and resources
technical consultant to prepare an updated feasibility
study report and environmental impact assessment
report on the mines, the Directors will formulate a
business plan based on the result of further research
and make an announcement in due course.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. BiE®)
A1. Emissions (Continued) A1, BERYD ()
Waste Treatment EEYEFE

During FY2017 under review, total amount of waste
generated from day-to-day operation of the Group was
only 1.94 tonne, of which it included non-hazardous
waste (paper and disposable office supplies) of 1.9
tonne, and hazardous waste (waste tube, detergent and
other chemical materials) of 0.04 tonne.

The Group initiates vigorously green office, pushes
to implement various environmental protection
policies to achieve waste source reduction during the
Reporting Period. As regard to daily office work, the
Group established an office sharing system to promote
paperless practice and electronised documentation.
Staff is encouraged to apply both-side printing and
copying to reduce wasting papers. At the same time,
the Group purchase and choose environmentally friendly
papers to reduce damage to natural forest and help
mitigating global warming. A total of approximately 0.21
tonne of papers was saved by implementing the above
environmental protection policy in FY2017.

The Group recognises the equal importance of waste
recycling on environmental protection in addition to
waste source reduction, therefore, the Group also
proactively promoted various environmental recycling
policies during last financial year. As regard to waste
treatment, the Group conducts waste sorting treatment
approach to all kinds of waste. The Group places
waste paper recycling bins and waste paper boxes next
to printers to uniformly collect and dispose of waste
paper boxes and waste newspapers and magazines.
The Group particularly provide recyclable tableware
and cups in our tearooms to encourage staff to reduce
using disposable tableware. Meanwhile, we collect
used toner-cartridges and deliver the exhausted battery
and toner-cartridges of printer to office supplies
environmental treatment center to avoid toxic supplies
pollution to the environment. During the Reporting
Period, we recycled 0.5 tonne of papers and 25 toner-
cartridges in total due to our successful implementation
of the above environmental protection policies.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1. Emissions (Continued)

Carbon Emission

In FY2017, total carbon emission of the Group was
230.85 tonne, the carbon emission density per square
meter of office space was 0.075 tonne of carbon
dioxide®® V. The above carbon emission was mainly
generated from the usage of various energy sources
by the Group, including electric power, gasoline and
natural gas. Please refer to A2 Use of Resources —
Energy consumption™®2 in this ESG Report regarding
the usage and consumption of relevant energy.

To promote staff's awareness of emphasizing
environmental protection, the Group encouraged staff
to use the co-travelling motor vehicle approach on
business travel as much as they possibly can and walk
to nearby office on work trips to reduce greenhouse
gas emission generated from vehicle usage. The Group
newly purchased video conferencing equipment in our
offices, such as Hong Kong, Singapore and Shenzhen,
Hangzhou and Beijing, the PRC to reduce greenhouse
gas emission generated from attending meeting by
airplane.

Note 1: The above calculation of carbon emission is referenced
to the “2017 Government GHG Conversion Factors
For Company Reporting” issued by BEIS ((2EHp 2
BEJR M 2 S PR B E6), Electricity Grid Emissions Factors
and Upstream Fugitive Methane Emission Factor issued
by Energy Market Authority of Singapore (37 /il 3% &&
JRTHE ), “Emission Factor of Mongolia” issued
by Joint Credit Mechanism of Japan, “Environmental
Key Performance Index Reporting Guide” issued
by the Stock Exchange and “the China Regional
Grid Baseline Emission Factor” issued by National
Development and Reform Commission of China.

Note 2:  The above calculation of carbon emission covers
the emission activities under range one and two in
“Environmental Key Performance Index Reporting
Guide" issued by the Stock Exchange.

Each of our department rigorously complied with
the inter-group management system in relation to
environmental protection. During the Reporting
Period, there was no breach of relevant laws and
regulations relating to the prevention of exhaust gas
and greenhouse gas emissions, sewage into water
and land, causing hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A. BiE@m)
A2. Use of Resources A2. ERER

The Group puts emphasis on saving resources and
environmental protection, committed to minimise
possible risks of impact on the environment arising from
business development by utilizing resources effectively
and advocating commercial acts accountability to the
environment. During the Reporting Period, the Group
achieved various energy-saving targets and successfully
implemented green energy policies, and actively
participated in office energy-saving and environmental
protection activities promoted by property management
company of the building where it locates, for instance,
resources recycling activity, with a view to improve
staff’'s awareness in energy conservation and emission
reduction.

Energy Consumption

To implement energy saving policy, the Group
proactively carried out various energy saving policies
and measurement which helped us saving a total of
3.27% energy consumption during the Reporting
Period. The Group's office has fully installed the T5
energy efficient fluorescent tube and other electronic
equipment with high energy efficiency, set and conduct
modulated temperature and timing control on air-
conditioners. Moreover, the Group also requires staff to
turn off computer screens while leaving their workplace
for a long time and turn off computers and lights when
leaving office to reduce electricity consumption.

Meanwhile, to improve staff's awareness of low-carbon
office and emission reduction, the Group participated
the “Earth Hour” activity by turning off all unnecessary
lights for one hour and encouraged all staff to do same
at home.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A2. Use of Resources (Continued)

Energy Consumption (Continued)

Set out below is the Group’s total energy consumption
and total energy intensity in FY2017:

Consumption

Energy category (daily office work)

A. BiE®)

A2. ERFER#®)
BT FE ()

AT RAEER 2017 BFEREERE
RENERRTE

Total Energy Intensity
(office space per unit)

#E BEEREE
RREE (BEHR) (BEUPAEME)
Electricity 229,444 kWh 74.9 kWh/sq.m.
E 229,444F FL 5% 749F R TR
Gasoline 25,907 liter 8.45 liter/sq.m.
yah 25,907 A7 8451 T/ T K
Natural gas 169.5 cubic meter 0.0553 cubic meter/sq.m.
RAR 169.537 5K 0.055337 77K/ F 77K

Note:  The above consumption only comprised the
consumption that directly controlled and utilised
by the Group, of which it included the Group’s
offices in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Mongolia,
Singapore and the United Kingdom, but not including
consumption arising from other third-party.

Water Consumption

The Group’s water consumption during the Reporting
Period was generated from daily office water utilisation.
Although the Group’s businesses activities do not
consume large volume of water, the Group still
endeavour to promote water recyclability in the office to
save water resources. In addition to purchasing and using
pressurised water-saving device in the office, the Group
posted water-saving warning signs in every lavatory as
well. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s water
consumption in its offices was 53.197 cubic meters in
total. The average water consumption per square meter
of office space is 0.017 cubic meter when calculated
by office space. Total water consumption in FY2017
increased by 69.42% as compared with that of previous
year. The increase was mainly due to increase in the
number of office staff.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A3. The Environment and Natural

Resources
Environmental Implication Management

The Group is deeply aware of the importance of
environmental protection, social responsibility and
governance, we will continue to promote green office
environment through the four basic principles of
reduction, reuse, recycling and replacement. Although
the core business of the Group has insignificant impact
on environment and natural resources, the Group still
always strictly abides by laws, regulations and national
standards relating to environmental protection, and
incorporates the impact of its operation on environment
as one of its significant considerations and endeavours
to minimise the impact of the Company’s operation on
environment.

For the Mongolian tungsten mining business, the Group
will specially engaged a mining professional to prepare
a feasibility study report for tungsten mines exploitation
and conducted an assessment in various aspects
regarding the environmental implication of this project.
It prepares long-term planning for the sustainable
development of the environment and tungsten
resources in future. The Directors will formulate a
business plan based on the result of further research
and make an announcement in due course. In addition,
the Group will also plan to train the business staff in
respect of the environmental implication before the
commencement of the project.

As regard to office decoration and maintenance,
the Group requires the supplier engaged to use
materials and techniques that have low impact on the
environment and resources, for instance, using natural
and environmental friendly decoration materials,
adopting melamine decorative panels instead of
plywood with higher amount of glue, such as lumber
core and applying non-painting technique.

Besides, the Group constantly conducted assessment
and supervision on environmental risks during daily
operation, developed immediate mitigation measures
when potential environmental risk was identified to
ensure such risk is under control.
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B. SOCIAL

B1. Employment

Employee Benefits and Equal Opportunities
Policies

The Group believes that talent is a key factor for
enterprise competitiveness and human resources play
a vital role in the Group's long-term development and
success. Therefore, the Group strive to introduce talents
through multi-channels and cultivate talents through
the adoption of an incentive mechanism.

To attract and retain talents, ensure smooth business
operation of the Group and in line with continuous
expansion needs, the Group has its human resources
management policy in place to regulate matters
relating to staff recruitment, promotion, dismissal,
working hours, holidays, remuneration packages and
benefits. The remuneration of the Group’s employees is
determined with reference to market standard, industry
practice and staff's qualifications and experience.
Meanwhile, the Group distributes bonuses to employees
to the extent possible according to profitability as
incentives for the contributions they made to the
Group and provides staff with on-the-job training and
development opportunities to assist them to show their
talents in the positions. The benefit plan of the Group's
staff comprises mandatory provident fund, medical
insurance, accidental insurance, employees’ benefits,
pay holidays (annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave,
paternity leave, marital leave and examination leave).
Both staff’s working hours and holiday schedules are
rigorously complied with national and local laws and
regulations to make sure staff can demonstrate their
abilities in favourable working environment.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

B1. Employment (Continued)

Employee Benefits and Equal Opportunities
Policies (Continued)

The Group takes a fair and open principle on
recruitment policy, adheres to the basic principle of
merit and capabilities, open position recruitment, equal
competition, two-way selection and engagement of
the excellent in recruitment. All candidates are required
to undergo an objective orientation examination and
interview to assess whether their abilities can meet
our development requirements. At the same time, the
Group is also required to ensure the fairness of the
overall recruitment process through stringent approval
procedures. In addition, the Group provides staff with
good promotion prospects and opportunities. The
Group established an annual performance appraisal
system to review staff performance and remuneration
policy regularly, with an aim to reward and motivate the
contribution and performance of employees and assist
them in their career development and promotion within
the Group.

In the meantime, the Group is committed to providing
staff with fair and equitable working environment with
no discrimination. The Group prohibits the occurrence of
any forms of discrimination in its working environment,
avoid any form of discriminating recruitment, re-
designation, remuneration and promotion. The Group
establishes the reporting and complaint mechanism
system to report or submit complaints to the officer-in-
charge of the human resources department immediately
in case of any biased treatment, and task force will
conduct investigation and take appropriate follow-up
actions. If our employees have any problems or opinions,
they could give feedback through the communication
channels established by the Group.

The Group has organised a variety of activities during
the year to improve the sense of belongings of our staff
and promote corporate culture, among which they
include distributing sticky rice dumplings to staff during
Dragon Boat Festival, organizing employee birthday
parties, Mid-Autumn Day dinner, new year corporate
annual meeting and corporate annual dinner. Besides,
the Group also regularly hold a variety of sports and
recreation activities to promote staff relationship and
develop team culture.

During the Reporting Period, there was no significant
breach of any relevant laws and regulations such as
Labour Law relating to human resources.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)
B2. Health and Safety

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group regards staff’s occupational health and
safety as our foremost responsibility, and endeavours
to provide staff with satisfactory and safe working
environment. As regard to fire control safety, the
Group provides all staff with detailed guidelines on
fire escape routes and escape procedures and requires
staff to participate fire escape drill of office buildings.
In addition, the Group also encourages staff to report
various accidents occurred during work and other
unsafe factors. Staff may seek assistance from human
resources and administration department in case of
accident during work or within the working arena.
The Group give priority to staff's safety under adverse
weather conditions (such as rainstorm, typhoon). Staffs
are required to comply with the guidelines for staff's
working arrangement under adverse weather conditions
to safequard staff safety to the greatest extent.

Besides, the Group also pay high attention to staff’s
physical and psychological health. The Group organises
various sports and recreation activities from time to
time. In addition to building up a healthy body, staff
may develop team spirit to promote harmonious
working environment.

For tungsten mines exploitation in Mongolia, as no active
mining operation of the Group has taken place yet, the
guidelines on providing safe working environment and
protection of employees from occupational hazards
was not applicable during the Reporting Period. Once
the mines exploitation commences officially, apart from
making sure meeting the business compliance with local
laws and regulation on production safety, the Group
will also formulate code of practice and safety guidance
in place to standardise business processes, and detail
the safety precautions for different mining procedures.
At the same time, the Group will also conduct regular
occupational safety training on mining staff, require
staff to get equipped with protection equipment, and
conduct on-going monitoring regarding the mining
environment to ensure working environment safety.
Besides, the Group will also adopt advanced technology
to enable mining operation more efficient and safe.

During the Reporting Period, there was no breach of
relevant laws and regulations relating to employee
health and safety.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

B3. Development and Training

Employee Training Plan

The Group believes that talents development is
enterprise’s development foundation. Hence, the Group
pay high attention to staff’s occupation development
and training. The Group has established systematic
training regimens and training system to support staff’s
continuous development, among which it comprises
induction training, on-the-job training and external
training. At the end of each year, the human resources
and administration department collects the training
and developing requirements from each department
and formulates training plans based on the information
and opinions collected. Apart from induction training,
newly employed staff will continue to learn and improve
themselves during the mentoring by experienced staff.
Besides, the Group will also arrange on-the-job training
and external training that tailored to staff’s needs
according to their operation post, personal ability and
aspiration to promote staff’s continuous growth and
development at work. After completed the training, the
Group will also collect staff’s feedback to constantly
improve our training quality. The Group started to set up
special education allowances in FY2017 to encourage
potential staff to commence continuing study relating
to current works or for long-term career development
purpose to meet the business development goals of the
Company.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

B4. Labour Standards

Prevention of Child Labour or Forced Labour

The Group is always committed to creating harmonious
labour relationship with staff and strictly complies with
the employment laws and regulations of the region
where it locates and Labour Law to ensure staff’s
interest was fully safeguarded. The Group establish
rigorous and comprehensive recruitment review process
and uphold the principle of fairness, openness and
voluntariness for staff employment. At the time of
interview, candidates should provide identification
document and valid employment visas for us to conduct
due diligent investigation on their basic information,
sign legal labour contract. The recruitment for all staff
is on an optional and legal basis. In addition, the Group
pays equal attention to the implementation of labour
standards in subsidiaries and outsourcing companies.
The Group will regularly conduct random inspection on
subsidiaries and outsourcing companies to make sure
no violation of relevant laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, there was no breach of
relevant laws and regulations relating to prevention of
child labour or forced labour.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. 2@
B5. Supply Chain Management B5. e EE
Sustainable Supply Chain A {5 4B 5 J R FE #

Given that supply chain management is the key factor
of sustainable development, such that the Group has
stringent requirements for supplier management. Each
department is required to purchase according to the
“Guidelines for Procurement Process Standard of Office
Supplies and Fixed Assets” prepared by the human
resource and administration department. In addition,
the Group's purchasing department sets up a dedicated
department taskforce to formulate and complete the
procurement process standard, conducts annual review
and update on procurement process to make sure the
Group adheres to the principle of openness, fairness
and transparency for supplier selection, and conducts
procurement at reasonable price and quality. In coming
years, the Group will continuously plan and develop
the supplier selection mechanism to reinforce suppliers’
requirements will focus on environmental protection,
labour safety and staff protection

The Group will also supervise supplier performance. The
Group will suspend supplier service if its performance
is unsatisfactory. Meanwhile, the Group also intends
to carry out regularly annual assessment regarding
supplier performance and requires all suppliers to
satisfy the Group’s requirements in the environmental
protection and social responsibilities aspects, such as
adopting green materials, prohibiting employment of
forced labour and child labour before continuing the
cooperation relationship.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

B6. Product Responsibility

Customer Service

As a member of the investment and asset management
and financial service industry, the Group attaches
great importance to our service quality and customer
experience. The Group built customer satisfaction
through constantly improving our service standard
for customers to make sure providing customers with
quality products and services and set up an effective
customer complaint mechanism to constantly improve
service experience through customer’s feedback. The
Group dedicates to provide accurate information for
customers to make wise investment decision, provides
customers with sufficient advice and coaching to help
them understand and select products and service
required through offering products and services with
clear description and provisions.

(i) Customer Satisfaction

The Group regularly conducts annual customer
satisfaction investigation to continuously improve
our products and services and analyses in details
the investigation results in accordance with the
established services indicators, of which it includes
management service quality, service and products
safety, customer service and products supports.
The Group will also improve its customer service
performance next year by establishing action
programme.

(i) Customer Complaint Follow-up

The Group attaches great importance to client
feedback on improving its service quality
continuously by humbly accept customer’s
opinions. The Group has set up professional
customer service team to address and follow up
customer complaints. Every complaint will be
investigated and followed up by special person-in-
charge and the whole process will be monitored
by management. After the reasons for the
complaints are identified and responding progress
is completed, the special person in charge will
contact the complainant to offer our resolutions
for the proper handling of customer complaint.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

B6. Product Responsibility (Continued)

Marketing

Integrity management is the essential merit of our
business operation. The Group endeavours responsible
marketing strategy with no exaggerated marketing
tactics. All sales, promotion documents and data are
required to be approved by management before rolling
out to make sure complying with the requirements of
relevant advertisement laws and regulations.

Customer Privacy Guarantee

The protection of the privacy of customers or consumers
is crucial for the Group’s operation. Except for the
public documents as specified in laws and regulations,
the Group strictly follows the relevant privacy ordinance
in relation to the usage and confidentiality requirements
of customers or consumers’ privacy information and
never allow information disclosure without the approval
of data owners. The Group has “Staff Code of Practice”
in place to standardise the principle of management,
usage and abide by confidentiality of business data and
prohibits casual management and storage of customer
information. In addition, the Group emphasise the
importance of protecting customer data, and provide
guidance on customer data processing in staff training
and devote all our efforts to prevent the leakage of
customer information.

During the Reporting Period, there was no breach
of relevant laws and regulations relating to privacy,
product, service quality and marketing.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

B7. Anti-corruption

Prevention of Corruption and Fraud

The Group propagandises enterprise culture of honesty,
integrity and righteous and commits to building an
anti-fraud and anti-corruption corporate culture
environment. The Group requires staff to stringently
complies with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance and
strives to maintain clean management and operation
structure of the Company. Meanwhile, the Group set
up the “Staff Code of Practice” and disseminated to
all staff. The Practice standardises the staff's code of
conduct and the guidelines on conflict of interests
and requires staff to report regularly on any conflict of
interests. Besides, the Group also establishes a series of
anti-fraud measures, among which includes propaganda
and training of anti-fraud policy, fraud risk assessment
mechanism and complaint reporting mechanism.

Under the guidance of anti-fraud policies and related
measures, the Group regularly organises and invites
professionals to conduct training on laws, regulations,
integrity and ethics. Employees are taught how to
identify and correctly handle conflict of interests at
work and resist temptation of improper interests. Under
the fraudulent risk assessment mechanism established
by the Group, we regularly conduct fraudulent risk
identification and assessment at the Group’s and
department’s level to assess the importance and
possibility of fraudulent risk and formulate resolutions
to address fraudulent risk as required. The Group also
established a set of comprehensive complaint channels,
investigation mechanism and accountability mechanism.
Any staff, supplier and customer of the Group may
report any undue staff behaviour through the channel
provided for assisting the Group to supervise staff’s
ethical character and penalise staff for any misconduct.
Complaints matters includes but not limited to the
violation of laws, regulations and the Group’s policy
requirements, or undue behaviour relating to internal
monitoring, operation, accounting, auditing, finance
and undue conduct, illegal act or fraudulent matters.

During the Reporting Period, there was no breach of
relevant laws and regulations relating to prevention of
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

B8. Community Investment

Contributions to Society

The Group always attaches importance to the corporate
social responsibilities, adheres to the concept of
repaying the society while its business is developing
and devotes ourselves to social and public welfare to
make contributions in facilitating social harmonious
development. In the meantime, the Group also actively
encourages the Group's staff to participate various
social and public services. In FY2017, the Group called
on our staff to participate the “Flag” fund-raising
activity organised by Heep Hong Society, and the money
raised were used to help those kids who need special
learning to blend in with mainstream education. The
Group also encourage our staff to participate in Dress
Casual Day annually organised by Community Chest
to assist social welfare organisations to raise money.
Besides, the Group also called on staff to donate in
the Movember charity event in the United Kingdom to
arouse social attention to men’s health, especially he
health concerns, such as prostate cancers, testicular
cancer and melancholia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adhering to the principles of corporate governance
with emphasis on transparency, independence, accountability
and responsibility. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations
of shareholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) throughout the year
ended 31 December 2017 as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, except for certain deviations disclosed in this corporate
governance report (the “CG Report”).

DIRECTORS’ AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),
as amended from time to time, as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by its Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all
Directors have confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2017.

The Company’s Model Code also applies to all employees who are
likely to be in possession of inside information of the Company. No
incident of non-compliance of the Model Code was noted by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All
Directors should make decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including: the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions, financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman of the board and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The division of responsibilities between the chairman and the
chief executive officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

The responsibilities of the Company’s chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman"”) are to provide leadership to the Board and formulate
the Group’s business strategies. The Chairman is also responsible
for ensuring the Board works effectively, in particular, ensuring all
Directors receive reliable, adequate and complete information in a
timely manner. The Chairman may communicate with the Directors
directly or through the assistance of the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) to discuss or clarify any
issues concerning the Group from time to time, and to provide any
supporting information and documents to them. The Chairman
assumes the primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established.

The Company’s chief executive officer (the “CEQ") is responsible
for the conduct of day-to-day operation of the Group and
accountable to the Board for all aspects of the corporate
performance. He recommends policies to the Board for
consideration and approval, and keeps the Board informed of
any material developments of the Company’s business. The CEO
may delegate his duties to any other management members or
responsible officers of the Company but he assumes the principal
responsibility.

During the reporting period, the Company deviated from code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code from (i) 1 January 2017 to
31 January 2017; and (i) 11 July 2017 to 26 October 2017. Details
of the movements for the positions of the Chairman and the CEO
during the year were as follows:

(1)  Mr. Chua Hwa Por was appointed, and Dr. Meng Zhaoyi
ceased to act, as the Chairman with effect from 1 February
2017. Dr. Meng Zhaoyi remained as the CEO.

(2) Dr. Meng Zhaoyi, the then CEO, was appointed as the acting
Chairman and Mr. Chua Hwa Por resigned as the Chairman
with effect from 11 July 2017.

(3) Mr. Chen Weisong has been appointed as the CEO and
Dr. Meng Zhaoyi resigned as the acting Chairman and the
CEO with effect from 27 October 2017. The position of
Chairman was left vacant.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Continued)

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Chen Weisong was the
CEO and the Chairman remains vacant. The Company is in the
process of identifying a suitable candidate to be appointed as the
new Chairman and will keep the shareholders informed of such
appointment by announcement in due course.

Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The Directors during the
reporting period and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weisong (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 25 April 2017 and
appointed on 27 October 2017)
Mr. Xu Ke
Mr. Ye Fei
Mr. Wang Qiang
Mr. Chua Hwa Porete
(appointed on 1 February 2017 and
resigned on 11 July 2017)
Dr. Meng Zhaoyi(*?
(resigned on 27 October 2017)
Dr. Liu Hua (resigned on 9 October 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs")

Dr. Gao Bin
Ms. Liu Yan
Mr. Tang King Shing (appointed on 1 February 2017)
Mr. Mao Kangfu (passed away on 7 December 2017)

Notes:

1. Mr. Chua Hwa Por was appointed as the Chairman with effect from
1 February 2017 and resigned from the position with effect from
11 July 2017.

2. Dr. Meng Zhaoyi ceased to act as the Chairman with effect from
1 February 2017. With effect from 11 July 2017, Dr. Meng was
appointed as the acting Chairman. Dr. Meng resigned as the acting
Chairman and CEO with effect from 27 October 2017.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
INEDs and their Independence

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board at all
times met the requirements under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs with at least
one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-
election.

INEDs are not appointed for a specific term. However, all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the bye-laws
of the Company (the “Bye-laws").

Each of the INEDs had made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all INEDs are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of the Directors

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors” on pages 19 to 22 of this annual report, which
demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications.

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the
Directors shall retire by rotation at each annual general meeting
of the Company provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at the annual general meeting of the Company at least
once every three years. All retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-
election.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
Board composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists
across the Board and has more than one-third in number of its
members comprising INEDs.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Group. Each executive Director is suitably qualified for his/
her position, and has sufficient experience to hold the position so as
to carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Meetings

The Board schedules at least four regular meetings a year and also
meets as and when required. During the year ended 31 December
2017, the Board held 53 meetings. The Company Secretary assisted
the Chairman and the executive Directors in establishing the
meeting agenda, and each Director was able to request inclusion
of items in the agenda. All such meetings were convened in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

Under code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least
14 days should be given of a regular board meeting to give
all directors an opportunity to attend. During the year ended
31 December 2017, certain Board meetings were convened
with less than 14 days’ notice to enable the Board members to
react timely and make expeditious decisions in respect of urgent
corporate transaction and general business update which was
significant in nature. As a result, the Board meeting was held
with a shorter notice period than required with the consent of
the Directors. The Board will do its best endeavour to meet the
requirement of code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code in the future.

Adequate and appropriate information are circulated to the
Directors normally three days in advance of Board meetings or such
period accepted by them. In addition to regular Board meetings,
the Chairman held a meeting with the INEDs without the presence
of the executive Directors during the year ended 31 December
2017 pursuant to code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.

Minutes of all Board and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection by the Directors.
Draft minutes of all Board and committee meetings are circulated
to all Directors and committee members for comments within the
period accepted by them after each meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Attendance of Directors at Various Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the attendance of each
individual Director at the Board meetings, committee meetings, the
annual general meeting held on 5 June 2017 (the “2017 AGM")
and the special general meetings (the “SGMSs") held on 5 January
2017, 27 February 2017 and 30 October 2017 respectively, are as
follow:

BEER/w@)
REENESHESR

BHE-_Z—+F+-_A=+—RHIFE FEFFH
FEFRE® ZEgg% R-_FT—tFX AR
HETZERBFAS (22— tFRREFKX
EDESRIR_BE—F—ARER  —T—tF=
A+ EAR=F—tF+A=ZTHEBTZERYE
ARE(REEBAE ) ZHEBRAT

Attended/Eligible to attend

LR/ RERILE
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
EZReE ENZE9EE REZECEER FWzEeel BEAE
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Chen Weisong " FREME )

(Chief Executive Officer) (77543) 28129 N/A T /A T N/A TER 3/4
Mr. Xu Ke b 18120 N/A NER NA FEA N/A NER 04
Mr. Ye Fei Bhik 4343 /A TER NA FiEA N/A NER 3/4
Mr. Wang Qiang TEEE 21124 NA NER NIA MiER NA NER 0/4
Mr. Chua Hwa Porfte2 B0 910 N/A ER NA FEA N/A NER 02
Dr. Meng Zhaoyiete? AREET 36/37 N/A NE NA A N/A FEA 33
Dr. Liu Hua"e# Mg 3232 N/A T /A T N/A TER 33
Independent Non-executive Directors B #E/7EE
Dr. Gao Bin AR 17120 0 6/6 33 24
Ms. Liu Yan st 19720 2 6/6 33 3/4
Mr. Tang King Shinge mni 12 5/5 2 33
Mr. Mao Kangfu®ee® 18/19 2 4/6 313 1/4
Notes: fFEE -

1. resigned on 25 April 2017 and 1. MN-ZE—+FNA - +ARHBELTR
appointed on 27 October 2017 ZE—tF AT EREZRTE
2. appointed on 1 February 2017 and 2. RIZE—tLF-A—HEZFLR
resigned on 11 July 2017 —E— LA+ — BT
3. resigned on 27 October 2017 3 R-E—+F+A-++HEHIT
4. resigned on 9 October 2017 4. RIZE—tFTANHEHE
5. appointed on 1 February 2017 5 NZE—tF-_A—BEZEE
6.  passed away on 7 December 2017 6 RZE—tF+ZA-tHEH
According to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, all independent  REMEEATE| 2 SFEMEXEA6.715 - FIEBAL

non-executive directors and non-executive directors should attend
general meetings of listed issuers.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Attendance of Directors at Various Meetings
(Continued)

Mr. Mao Kangfu, the INED, was unable to attend the 2017 AGM
and the SGMs held on 27 February 2017 and 30 October 2017
due to his other business engagements. Dr. Gao Bin, the INED,
was unable to attend the SGMs dated 27 February 2017 and 30
October 2017 due to his other business engagements. Ms. Liu Yan,
the INED, was unable to attend the SGM held on 30 October 2017
due to her other business engagements.

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Chen Weisong,
the newly appointed Director, was given an induction after his
appointment as the CEO and the executive Director so as to ensure
that he has appropriate understanding of the Group’s business
and of his duties and responsibilities under the Listing Rules and
the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. The Company
provides regular updates on the business performance of the
Group to the Directors. The Directors are continually updated
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeeping of good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh knowledge and
skills. The Company has received confirmation from all Directors of
their respective training records for the year ended 31 December
2017.

Corporate Governance Functions

Pursuant to code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, the Board is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties as set
out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Corporate Governance Functions (Continued)

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the CG Report.

This CG Report has been reviewed by the Board in discharge of its
corporate governance functions.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in
the execution of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto,
the Company has arranged insurance cover for this purpose.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with a specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things,
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of
all Directors and senior management of the Company. No
individual Director is involved in decisions relating to his/her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the
model under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.

As at 31 December 2017, the Remuneration Committee comprised
three Directors, all of them are INEDs. The members of the
Remuneration Committee were:

Dr. Gao Bin (Chairman)
Ms. Liu Yan
Mr. Tang King Shing (appointed on 1 February 2017)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration
Committee held 3 meetings. The attendance of each member
during the reporting period is set out on page 45 of this annual
report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2017 included:

(1) reviewed and recommended the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and senior management for the nine
months ended 31 December 2016; and

(2) reviewed and recommended the remuneration packages
of the newly appointed Director for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Details of the Directors' remuneration are set out in note 13 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with a specific written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) stipulating the composition of the Board.
The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualification, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at 31 December 2017, the Nomination Committee comprised
three Directors, all of them are INEDs. The members of the
Nomination Committee are:

Dr. Gao Bin (Chairman)
Ms. Liu Yan
Mr. Tang King Shing (appointed on 1 February 2017)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination
Committee held 6 meetings. The attendance of each member
during the reporting period is set out on page 45 of this annual
report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2017 included:

(@) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

(b) identified individual suitably qualified to become Board
members and made recommendation to the Board on their
appointments;

(c) assessed the independence of the INEDs; and

(d)  made recommendations to the Board on the retiring Directors
for re-election at the 2017 AGM.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the composition
of the Board, the Nomination Committee is satisfied that the
requirements set out in the Board Diversity Policy had been met.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with a specific written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising
the financial reporting process, assisting the Board to ensure
effective risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and providing advice and comments to the Board. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge
its duties and may access to independent professional advice if
considered necessary.

As at 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee comprises three
Directors, all of them are INEDs. The members of the Audit
Committee are:

Ms. Liu Yan (Chairman)
Dr. Gao Bin
Mr. Tang King Shing (appointed on 1 February 2017)

Ms. Liu Yan, the Chairman of Audit Committee, possesses relevant
professional qualifications and financial management expertise and
meets the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee
held 2 meetings. The attendance of each member during the year
ended 31 December 2017 is set out on page 45 of this annual
report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the work performed by
the Audit Committee included:

(a

(9)

reviewed with the Company’s auditors the audited financial
statements for the nine months ended 31 December 2016
and reviewed the unaudited interim financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2017, with recommendations
to the Board for approval;

reviewed the risk management report on monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group;

reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and
statutory requirements;

reviewed with the management of the Company the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group;

reviewed the term and remuneration for the appointment of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) as external auditor
to perform the agreed-upon of the final results for the nine
months ended 31 December 2016 and the general review on
the interim results for the six-month ended 30 June 2017,

reviewed the independence of Deloitte as the external
auditor, especially for those non-audit services; and

to nominate the re-appointment of Deloitte as the auditors of
the Company at the 2017 AGM.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and may access to independent professional
advice if considered necessary.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the remunerations paid
and payable to Deloitte for audit services and non-audit services
regarding the review of interim financial statements and other
assurance and non-assurance engagements rendered to the Group
are as follow:

Services rendered for the Group

R ET BN &

REBEE-ZT—+F+_A=+—HBIEFE ' HAXK
EI&TZ%V%%&#%W%%%%@&E@V

BIEZELENIEBEZRBENREN TESH2
MiWT-

RAEEERHEZBRH

Fees paid/
payable to
Deloitte
BB
EHNER
HK$'000
FHT

BRI
FEERIRTS

Audit services
Non-audit services

Total dst

The Audit Committee is satisfied with, inter alia, the audit fees,
effectiveness of the audit process, independence and objectivity of
Deloitte and has recommended to the Board the re-appointment
of Deloitte as the Company’s external auditor for the ensuing year
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group for the relevant accounting periods under
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, the results of operations and
cash flows of the Group. In preparing the financial statements
for the six months ended 30 June 2017 and the year ended 31
December 2017, the Directors have adopted suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to these financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 72 to 78 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining a sound
risk management and internal control system within the Group
and reviewing their effectiveness. However, such system was
designed only to manage various risks of the Group within certain
acceptable risk level, rather than completely eliminate the risk
of failing to achieve the business objectives of the Group, and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or losses. The Audit Committee assists the
Board to oversee the management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code, the Group
established its own risk management and compliance department
on 16 May 2017 to perform its internal audit functions. For the
year ended 31 December 2017, the internal auditors of the Group
carried out an analysis and independent appraisal regarding the
adequacy and effectiveness of its risk management and internal
control systems.

In addition, the Group has developed an internal control
model which follows the principle of Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO"). It consists
of five elements, namely control environment, risk assessment,
control, information and communication, and monitoring. Under
this control model, the Group’s management is responsible
for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control measures and its effectiveness, and the Board and Audit
Committee will supervise the appropriateness of internal control
measures as designed by the management and the effective
implementation of internal control measures. Meanwhile, the
internal control has adapted to the Group’s scale of operation,
scope of business, competition and risks, and is subject to prompt
adjustments according to changes in circumstances. It will be
a long-lasting and continuous work to improve the internal
control system, implement the regulated system and intensify the
supervision and examination of internal control.

The risk management and compliance department also prepared
a risk management framework of the Group, including the
construction of the architecture for the aforementioned
organisation and definition of the responsibilities of all parties
concerned, and prepared risk management policies and processes
and clarified the risk assessment procedures, which, specifically
include risk identification, risk analysis, risk control and risk report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

Step 1: Risk identification — identify risks currently exposed to the
Group and business and its existing management and
control measures.

Step 2:  Risk analysis — analyse the possibility of risk, extent of
influence and its existing management and control
measures, identify risk exposure, and propose further
countermeasures.

Step 3: Risk control — implement and periodically detect the
identified risks to ensure effective operation of risk
countermeasures.

Step 4:  Risk report — summarise the results of risk management
analysis, prepare action plans and report to the
management, Audit Committee and the Board.

The risk management and compliance department conducted
reform and amendment to the Group's risk management system
in light of its actual conditions. After the review by individual
business units and departments and obtained their feedback,
the risk management and compliance department completed
the preparation of a new risk management system. In 2017,
through this risk management system, the risk management
and compliance department assisted the major business units
and departments of the Group including securities investment,
distressed debt asset management, financial services and property
investment to complete three major risk control activities,
including its assessment, scoring and ranking, and prepare risk
countermeasures to ensure that each significant risk has adequate
corresponding risk countermeasures.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, major risks relevant to
our businesses have been identified by the Group and respective
controls to mitigate those risks have begun to set up. The Board
is of the view that the Group's current risk assessment system
is effective and adequate, and will perform periodical reviews
to improve and safeguard the effective operation of our risk
management system. In addition, in view of the enhanced control
on listed companies in recent years by regulators such as the SFC
and the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange, backed by
the consolidated corporate systems and procedures and internal
control manual, the risk management and compliance department
conducted sampling check on major compliance control activities
and procedures of listed companies in the second half of the year
and no material internal control deficiencies was discovered.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s material internal controls.
Internal control procedures are designed to safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure proper accounting
records are maintained to provide reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication purposes, and ensure its compliance
with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board is of the
opinion that the available resources and staff qualifications of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions are
adequate and sufficient. Based on the information furnished and
upon its own observations, the Board is satisfied with the present
internal controls of the Group.

The Group regularly reminds the Directors and employees on
compliance policy regarding inside information, and provides
them updates in relation to the appropriate guidelines or policies
to ensure complying with regulatory requirements. The Group
is aware of its obligations under the SFO, the Listing Rules and
overriding principles and that inside information should be
announced timely and conducts its affairs in strict compliance with
the prevailing applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors should make decisions objectively in the interests
of the Company. The Board reserves for its decision on all major
matters relating to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant operational matters
of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions
of the Board, directing, and coordinating the daily operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

With effect from 6 February 2017, Mr. Cheng Sik Kong resigned,
and Ms. Yam Wai Wah Jenny (“Ms. Yam”) was appointed,
as a full-time employee company secretary of the Group. Ms.
Yam is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well as
the communications among the Board members, shareholders
and management. Ms. Yam also prepared detailed minutes of
each meeting and such minutes would be sent to the Board for
comments as soon as practicable. Ms. Yam reports directly to the
Board. All Directors are able to access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary to ensure that all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. During the year ended 31 December
2017, Ms. Yam undertook no less than 15 hours of professional
training to update her skills and knowledge pursuant to Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with all shareholders. The annual general meeting of the Company
is a valuable avenue for the Board to enter into direct dialogue
with shareholders. The Chairman and the members of Board
committees will attend the annual general meeting to answer any
question raised from the shareholders.

In addition, the Company convened three SGMs during the year
ended 31 December 2017 approving various corporate transactions
and such meetings were convened in accordance with the Bye-
laws, the Listing Rules and the corporate governance procedures
of the Company. These provided further opportunities for
shareholders to comment and vote on specific transactions.

The interim and annual reports of the Company are despatched
to shareholders in a timely manner before the time limits laid
by statutory and Listing Rules requirements to ensure effective
communication with shareholders.

All the shareholders of the Company are given at least 20 clear
business days’ notice before the date of the annual general
meetings and at least 10 clear business days’ notice for all other
general meetings pursuant to code provision E.1.3 of the CG Code.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements and
notices of shareholders meetings as required under the Listing
Rules will be available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

The Company has also complied with the requirements concerning
voting by poll under the Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting
procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll are
included in circulars to shareholders dispatched by the Company
and explained by the chairman of general meeting at the meeting.
All resolutions proposed at general meeting are voted separately.

Procedures for convening a special general
meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene
a special general meeting of the Company. Pursuant to Bye-law
58 of the Bye-laws, shareholders holding in aggregate of not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company may send
a written request to the Board to request for a special general
meeting; and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned, must state the purposes of the meeting and must
be deposited at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Suites 1206-1209, 12th Floor, Three Pacific Place,
1 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong or at the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto
in accordance with the requirements under Section 74 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”) once a
valid requisition is received.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from
the said date.

A meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Directors.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

Procedures for convening a special general
meeting (Continued)

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason
of the failure of the Directors duly to convene a meeting shall
be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company, and any sum so
repaid shall be retained by the Company out of any sums due
or to become due from the Company by way of fees or other
remuneration in respect of their services to such Directors as were
in default.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at general meetings

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal
(which may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a
general meeting of the Company:

(@ any number of members representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of the Company on the
date of the requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 shareholders holding shares in the
Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the
shareholders concerned, together with a statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposal must be deposited at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Suites 1206-1209, 12th Floor, Three
Pacific Place, 1 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong or at the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate
actions and make necessary arrangements, and the shareholders
concerned would be responsible for the expenses incurred in
giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements under
Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents
are received.

HRREE®)

BRRRSHKENEF &)

REBFBRENEFRELAARSHEMABBNEM
AEER  ARARREERRELGRE - MEMD
UL ER 2 508 - ZARAR KRB s AL 2 B Rt 5

BEFZREMERESNZ ERAREMMEH

2 o

BRRRRRASLREEZNER

INTHRRERRARBRRAGRE2EZH(AINRAE
FIEARR2MER) AHREE

(@) MBEKAHMEARRRERERT IV _THZ
—HEAIBCREE 3K

(b) TALRI100MFBEARAR BN AIE °

KEBRRERNEZWHIEZAG T%LIEK%
1,000 7 B EEZEAMMEENER - BEAXAR
ANEBTELEMB (NI ATARERANERIS
KB ESEIM12121206-1209F ) S A QA RN E S
RiDBPEL D EEEEERFR AT (I AES
ERNERISIH/AMAN22IE) - KAABIRIEES
RS - SR EER T MMEH M EREE - A
R BRIBEARLEF TN TR E S HE
M ETE NLHETEEMRAY



58 N\

4

&

Tai United Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

Corporate Governance Report
PEERWE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

Procedures for directing shareholders’
enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing via the following channel:

In respect of the corporate affairs:

The Board of Directors/Company Secretary
Tai United Holdings Limited

Suites 1206-1209, 12th Floor

Three Pacific Place

1 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

E-mail: ir@taiunited.com
Facsimile: (852) 2527-1144

In respect of the other shareholding/entitlement affairs:

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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The Directors are pleased to submit herewith their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board passed on 8 December 2016,
the financial year end date of the Company has been changed
from 31 March to 31 December to align it with the financial
year end date of the Company’s principal operating subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC which accounts are statutorily required to
be prepared with a financial year end date of 31 December and
thereby facilitate the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Accordingly, the current financial period
covers an entire year from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017
and the comparative figures cover a nine-month period from
1 April 2016 to 31 December 2016, which may not be comparable
with the amounts shown for the current period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group was principally
engaged in: (i) property investment; (ii) distressed debt assets
management; (iii) commodity trading; (iv) securities investment;
(v) financial services; and (vi) mining and exploitation of natural
resources.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 55 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended
31 December 2017 by segments are set out in note 7 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 79 to 80.

The Company paid an interim dividend of HK1.81 cents (interim
dividend for the nine months ended 31 December 2016: nil)
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2017 on 31
October 2017. The Board does not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (final dividend
for the nine months ended 31 December 2016: nil). Details are
set out in note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this
annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2017 and particulars of important events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of the nine-month
financial year ended 31 December 2016 as well as a discussion
on the Group's further business development are provided in the
“CEO’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
sections of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group include
strategic, operational and financial risks. Each of them is discussed
briefly as below:

Strategic Risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan based on the knowledge
to the external environments. The Group will invest in projects
and investments based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and expectation. Given the rapid change
of unforeseeable external environments in the financial and
equity markets, the Group is facing significant strategic risks on
its investments when changing the strategic plans to adopt the
unexpected changes of external environments.

Operational Risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure
that the Group's risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise,
resulting from fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and
compliance matters, are adequately managed.

Financial Risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 46(b) to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report headed
under “Financial risk management objectives and policies”.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 251 of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2017, together with the reasons, are
set out in note 41 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this
annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to equity holders of the parent, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to approximately HK$4,498 million (nine
months ended 31 December 2016: nil).

EQUITY LINK ARRANGEMENT

(a) Issue of 5% redeemable fixed coupon
guaranteed, secured and unsubordinated
notes (“Loan Notes”) and proposed
grant of unlisted warrants under specific
mandate (“Warrants”)

On 28 September 2016, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”)
with Mr. Chua Hwa Por (“Mr. Chua”), Tai He Financial
Group Limited (“Tai He Financial”), Tai Infinite Holdings,
Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (“Cheer Hope"), Haitong
International Investment Fund SPC (“Haitong”) and Songhua
Investment Holding Limited (“Songhua”), of which Mr.
Chua, Tai He Financial and Tai Infinite Holdings are the
guarantors and Cheer Hope, Haitong and Songhua are the
investors (the “Investors”), pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement, in consideration of the subscription of the Loan
Notes by the Investors, the Company conditionally, agreed
to grant to the Investors the Warrants. The Warrants would
entitle the holders thereof to subscribe for up to 279,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at an initial warrant shares
subscription price of HK$1.0 per warrant share (the “Warrant
Share”) during the warrants subscription period. No
additional monetary amount is payable by the Investors to the
Company for the grant of Warrants.
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EQUITY LINK ARRANGEMENT (Continued)

IR ST BE ()

(a) Issue of 5% redeemable fixed coupon (a) ET5%EEBEECESCER - &
guaranteed, secured and unsubordinated EHRFEREZB(ERFEEDR
notes (“Loan Notes”) and proposed ERREBEHIREREIELTRR
grant of unlisted warrants under specific EE(RREE]D @)
mandate (“Warrants”) (Continued)
Details of the conditions precedent for the grant of Warrants R RBIRIER 2 SORGHFBEN AR R B
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 28 RIE-—RENAZTNBNRERAKRRARH
September 2016 and the Company’s circular dated 15 BAZZ-—RET_ATHREEHA -
December 2016.
On 5 January 2017, a special general meeting was held for RZE—tF—AAH  AARIRITRER
the purposes of considering and, if thought fit, passing with AE - UEEERERRBEARNATRE(R
or without modifications, the resolution (the “Resolution”) RDARE DIRBR RIS RARAERE LA KR
in respect of the grant of the Warrants and the allotment i g% R BEITRIEF R D EVRER(RBR D)
and issue of the Warrant Shares under the specific mandate (TRBLBE]) - REZBRERFIAREG L - RE
by the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) RBFETRERAR - ETREEZXRE RS
at the meeting. At that special general meeting, before the WEER - LAGEE AR ZREE RERR L RARE
Resolution was put to vote, certain Shareholders requested BowE BREUARAIRENEELE -
for an adjournment of such meeting to allow more time to BB AFMAIE 4G R ARG (RBEEE A
consider the impact of the proposed grant of the Warrants HEIRET  KREXFEHREFIAGIE
including the dilution impact on the shareholding of the B BEESTEBARL -
Company. Pursuant to Bye-law 64 of the Bye-laws and with
the consent of the meeting at which a quorum was present,
the chairman of the meeting adjourned the special general
meeting until further notice.
Details of the issue of Loan Notes and proposed grant of BOIERERREZERNRREZENFERR
Warrants are set out in the Company’s announcement dated ARRBBAZZE—A"FNA=ZF+/N\H - =&
28 September 2016, 30 September 2016, 5 October 2016 —RNFENA=TH ZE-RETARARS
and 5 January 2017 and the Company’s circular dated 15 Z—+FE-ARANRAERARGIRBA =T
December 2016. —RNETZATHBREEEHA -

(b) Share option scheme (b) FEARAESTE

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and
movements in share options during the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out in note 52 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the
Company.
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and investment properties during the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out in notes 16 to 17 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of this annual report.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings are set
out in note 35 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this
annual report.

PROVISION OF GUARANTEE

On 15 December 2016, the Company entered into a deed of
guarantee (the "Deed of Guarantee”), pursuant to which the
Company had agreed to provide a guarantee (the “Guarantee”)
in favour of the shareholders of the non-voting participating
redeemable shares in the capital of Haitong Global Investment
SPC Ill (the “Fund Portfolio Company”) for the performance
of the guarantee obligations under the Deed of Guarantee. The
Fund Portfolio Company is an independent portfolio company
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands with limited
liability. The non-voting participating redeemable shares are
designated as Class P Participating Shares in Haitong Dynamic
MultiTranche Investment Fund IV S.P., an independent portfolio
under the Fund Portfolio Company. The maximum liability of the
Company under the Guarantee is USD103 million.

CHARITABLE DONATION

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2017 (nine months ended 31 December 2016:
nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTIONS OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company,
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company'’s listed securities.
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BEERWME
DIRECTORS 5E
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2017 andupto  REEZE-Z—+F+-_A=+—BIEFERLEZE
the date of this annual report were: RERABOESTHT -
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chen Weisong (Chief Executive Officer) BRIGIASE A (7T B4 L)
(resigned on 25 April 2017 and (RZTE—tFWA-THBBER
appointed on 27 October 2017) RZZE—+F+A+-HEEE)
Mr. Xu Ke RAISEA
Mr. Ye Fei BEIEAEA
Mr. Wang Qiang TRk
Mr. Chua Hwa Por®ete B EE G S A 1)
(appointed on 1 February 2017 and (R=ZE—+tF-A—HEZEE
resigned on 11 July 2017) RZT—tF+A+—HEHT)
Dr. Meng Zhaoyitoe 2 AR EH e
(resigned on 27 October 2017) (R=ZZE—tF+AZTEHEHT)
Dr. Liu Hua (resigned on 9 October 2017) WEEET(R=_E—tF+ANEET)
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Dr. Gao Bin =EET
Ms. Liu Yan 28 27+
Mr. Tang King Shing (appointed on 1 February 2017) HEREE(R_E—tF_HA—BEZEE)
Mr. Mao Kangfu (passed away on 7 December 2017) BEXEE(R_E—tF -+ AAEH)
Notes: BIsE
1. Mr. Chua Hwa Por was appointed as the Chairman with effect from 1. RERELERZEAEE BT LtF-A—HEE
1 February 2017 and resigned from the position with effect from AR MEBERERE BT —+tFtA+—HR
11 July 2017. R o
2. Dr. Meng Zhaoyi ceased to act as the Chairman with effect from 2. GHRERLE-ZE—+tF-A-ARTEEEERE -
1 February 2017. With effect from 11 July 2017, Dr. Meng was BE-Z—+tFtA+—HE mEtEZEAREE
appointed as the acting Chairman. Dr. Meng resigned as the acting Eo ABTEREREIRRTBAR BT —C
Chairman and CEO with effect from 27 October 2017. FrAZTERBER -

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, Dr. Gao Bin and %R A RIAHEIZE871E » &/BB T REEKLERR
Mr. Tang King Shing shall retire from office and, being eligible,  EEMRRBEFEAE FER - HHRENAERTRAE
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general ~ Bi#iE(T - RIEA AR ES6HE - RENRLEZL
meeting. Pursuant to Bye-law 86 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Chen  HIEZEERERBEFAE AL @ HEFEERLFE
Weisong shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general ~ ERZAE LERET -

meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the

meeting.

Each of the INEDs had made an annual confirmation of  &BUIFITEECRIE LTRAIE313MEHNMET
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The  IBXEEBIMHHERE - AR TRAE2EE IR
Company considers that all INEDs are independent. TESYEBEIAT -
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The Director’s biographical information are set out on pages 19 to
22 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Bye-law 166(1) of the Bye-laws provides that, among other, every
Director and other officers of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur sustain by
or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices and related matters provided that the indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which
may attach to any of them.

In this connection, the Company has arranged directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in notes 36, 38 and 44 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of this annual report, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company
or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest subsisted during or at the end of the year ended
31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or their respective associates was interested
in, apart from the Group’s businesses, any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or were in existence during the year ended
31 December 2017.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions are disclosed in note 44
to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual report.
None of these related party transactions constitutes a connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as required to be kept and recorded in the register maintained by

EEEN

RBE-_Z—tF+_A=1—"HLEFER L&
RN FESEARBBEEREMNERINESE
BRITHAR
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the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise — SFRIZERITAIE AN R REZFTAEZE AR T
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, were as follows:
Long positions in shares of the Company REXTRGZEFE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary issued share capital
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held of the Company°te?
=R N
BRTRAZ
EHEME ERME FEERREE BOB D2
Mr. Ye Feifvote ) Interest of spouse 280,000 0.01%
e e fofB s
Notes: MisE
1. Mr. Ye Fei was taken to be interested in those shares in which his 1. ESRAAMRAREREHREESZROPBEaERS

spouse was interested.

2. The percentage represented the number of shares held over the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017 of
5,250,019,852 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors nor chief executive of the Company had or was deemed
to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code of the Listing Rules.

2. BOHER-Z—+tFt+-A=+—HEERGEE
1EARRA T B ETTARD 48 8K5,250,019,852/8 Z b fill ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, so far as is known to the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following persons, other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company, had interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, or had otherwise notified the
Company were as follows:

REEMA TR0 REREKR
wmRIXRR

RIB—tF+-_A=1+—R BAQXAESFHT
ETBABMM U TAL(RRARESHEETH
ABBRSN AR RIR A SRR ) P BRI E 55
MEEGPIZARARRRRE 2 AR R - HARE
&5 LR GO F 336K BRAAR R RIFEMN SO
ZREDIRR  AARTTHEARBNERIAR
LN

Long Positions in the shares of the Company RAEDBRBZHFE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary issued share capital
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest shares held of the Companye?
LEENNG
BRTRAZ
RRER ERME g EREE B | 2 b
Chua Lee Holdings Limited®et ) Trustee 3,883,778,286 73.98%
Chua Lee Holdings Limited %" ZEEA
Mr. Chua Hwa Por Interest of controlled 3,883,778,286 73.98%
BER T E __corporation
SRH)AE 2 i
Tai He Financial®ote ) Beneficial owner 2,655,429,222 50.58%
KFN g EnlEEFA
TAI Capital LLC™ote 1) Beneficial owner 1,228,349,064 23.40%
TAI Capital LLC®#7) EmiEA A
Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled 660,000,000 12.57%
 ("HTS")note2) __corporation
BBES RN BIRAR] YRR 2 s
([@aH )2
Haitong International Holdings Security interest in shares 660,000,000 12.57%
_ Limited ("HTIH")fete? IR0 R 7E e e
GBI AR AR
([ BEpRERg | ) a2
Haitong International Securities Interest of controlled 660,000,000 12.57%
Group Limited ("HTISG" )Note 2) ~_corporation
BRERESEEERAF] ZEHERE 2 s
([FEERESFER])
Haitong International New Energy  Security interest in shares 660,000,000 12.57%

VIII Limited (“HTINEV " )Note 2

Haitong International New Energy

VIII Limited ([HTINEV ] ) ®:22)

Bein ReatE s
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

Long Positions in the shares of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:

1. Chua Lee Holdings Limited was deemed to be interested in the shares
through Tai He Financial and TAI Capital LLC, in the capacity as
trustee of a trust.

2. Based on the disclosure of interest notices filed by each of HTS,
HTIH, HTISG and HTINEV on 10 May 2017, these interests are held
by HTINEV, which is wholly owned by Castle Range Developments
Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by Haitong International (BVI)
Limited. Haitong International (BVI) Limited is wholly owned by HTISG,
which is turn owned as to 61.78% by HTIH. HTIH is wholly owned by
HTS.

3. The percentage represented the number of shares held over the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017 of
5,250,019,852 shares.

Save as disclosed above, there is no person other than a director
or chief executive of the Company, who had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

CHANGE IN CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

On 19 January 2018, Songbird SG Pte. Ltd. (the “Offeror”) as
purchaser entered into a sale and purchase agreements with
TAI Capital LLC, pursuant to which TAI Capital LLC agreed to
sell, and the Offeror agreed to purchase, 1,228,349,064 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 23.40% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company at the consideration
of HK$0.92 per share (i.e. HK$1,130,081,138.88 in aggregate).
On the same day, the Offeror entered into another sale and
purchase agreement with Chua Lee Holdings Limited, pursuant to
which Chua Lee Holdings Limited agreed to sell, and the Offeror
agreed to purchase, 100% of the entire issued share capital of
Tai He Financial, which in turn holds 2,655,429,222 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 50.58% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company at the consideration of HK$0.92
per share (i.e. HK$2,442,992,884.24 in aggregate) (collectively,
the “Sale and Purchase Agreements”). As a result, the Offeror
was interested in an aggregate of 3,883,778,286 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 73.98% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company.
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CHANGE IN CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
(Continued)

The completion of the Sale and Purchase Agreements took place
on 25 January 2018 in accordance with the terms and provisions
of the Sale and Purchase Agreements. Immediately following
the completion of the Sale and Purchase Agreements and as at
the date of this annual report, the Offeror was interested in an
aggregate of 3,883,778,286 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 73.98% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company. Haitong International Securities Company Limited,
on behalf of the Offeror, pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the Code on
Takeover and Mergers, made a mandatory unconditional general
offer in cash (the “Offer”) for all the issued shares of the Company
other than those already owned or agreed to be acquired by the
Offeror and parties acting in concert with it. The Offer period has
commenced since 25 January 2018 and not yet closed as at the
date of this annual report.

Details of the Offer were set out in the joint announcements
issued by the Offeror and the Company dated 25 January 2018,
13 February 2018 and 14 March 2018 and the announcement
issued by the Company dated 1 February 2018. The composite
document in relation to the Offer is expected to be despatched to
the shareholders of the Company on Thursday, 29 March 2018.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Board recognises the employees are the most valuable asset
of the Group. The Group provides the staff with competitive
remuneration packages as well as a safe, harmonious and
discrimination-free working environment.

For more details, please refer to the section headed “Employees
and Remuneration Policies” in this annual report on page 16 and
the sections headed “B1. Employment to B4. Labour Standards”
under the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
contained in this annual report on pages 30 to 34.

RELATIONSHIP WITH MAJOR CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the percentages of the
Group's turnover attributable to its largest customer and five
largest customers were approximately 56% and 78% respectively.
The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 69% of the
Group's total purchases and the amount of purchase attributable
to the Group's largest supplier was approximately 32% of the
Group's total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, or their
respective associates, or shareholders owning more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital had any beneficial interests in any
of the five largest customers or suppliers during the year ended 31
December 2017.
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EERWE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 40 to 58 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company was
not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations that had significant impact on it.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of
business operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a
balance between the quality and efficiency of our services and
the minimisation of greenhouse gas emissions and environmental
degradation. Accordingly, the Group has taken a proactive
approach to effect internal and external communications by means
of telephone, emails and conferences or such other communication
means which are efficient yet environmentally friendly. Also, the
Group are able to minimise physical travelling and printing.

For more details regarding the Company’s environmental policies,
practices and performance, please refer to the section headed “A.
Environmental” under the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 24 to 29 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
annual report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of
the Company'’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events of the Group after 31 December
2017 are set out in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
and note 57 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this
annual report.
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EERWE

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW ON THE
ANNUAL RESULTS

The Company has established the Audit Committee with a specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirements
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The Audit
Committee is responsible for, among others, reviewing and
supervising the Group's financial reporting process, assisting the
Board to ensure effective risk management and internal control
systems and providing advice and comments to the Board.

As at 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this annual report,
the Audit Committee comprised all three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Dr. Gao Bin, Ms. Liu Yan and Mr. Tang
King Shing. Ms. Liu Yan is elected as the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee together with the management and the external
auditors of the Company. The Audit Committee is satisfied that
such statements comply with the applicable accounting standards
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for their re-appointment as the auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting .

On behalf of the Board
Chen Weisong
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
26 March 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BAUAZBEHREE

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TAI UNITED HOLDINGS LIMITED
AMEZERBRAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tai
United Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group"”) set out on pages 79 to
250, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BREEITER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional ~ FIREA SERBERMAOFTEHE - REYAH
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the HFAMBRENEBASRAEENEE - FLEHE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These — TEHRMPIEBFIERGEUEHREMTDEE RFETE
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the  E&) - AT CHELEEREEBENER -
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matters

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEMHES NAEERRETSE

Valuation of investment properties

REYEZ1GE

We identified the valuation of investment properties,
including those investment properties classified as held-
for-sale, as a key audit matter due to the determination
of the fair value of investment properties is dependent
on certain unobservable inputs and key assumptions
that require significant management judgments which is
assessed based on a method of valuation which makes
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in the same location and conditions and
where appropriate by capitalisation of rental income from
properties.
HMERREVE(REZSDERBIFEEZREY
RIZHERBAREAEE RERETREVEAAE
BUAREIRBAERERHEWRERGER Z2RER
B R AR 2 S 3 2 5 R 5 B8 ERE R (W#EH)
FRBEREMEZ B WAERNMEAT 2 E T AR EE
BABBREZMEE -

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s investment
properties, including those investment properties classified
as held-for-sale, are carried at fair value of approximately
HK$3,442 million as disclosed in Notes 17 and 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RZZB—tF+ZA=+—08  BHOKREHBEREME
17TR32FTHEE - EEBREME(BEZEIERR
TEHE Z IR EWE) JHEHR3,402 A BBTTZ ARBEAE °

All the Group’s investment properties, including those
investment properties classified as held-for-sale, are
measured at fair value based on valuations performed by
independent qualified professional valuers. Details of the
valuation techniques and key inputs used in the valuations
are set out in Notes 5, 17 and 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BEREMEREVE (BEZSIEABELHEZREY
R)DIRBEBE S EREEGEMED 2 HERAER
B o (AERMAZRERM N E ABE 2 F1BEHR
iR BT R IS ~ 17532 -

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

B EMELEETZRF B

o Obtaining an understanding of the key controls over the
processes that the management performed in relation to
the valuation assessment of its investment properties;
TREBEMREREMEZHENGETZEFZEE

B

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent qualified professional valuers and
obtaining an understanding of their scope of work and
terms of engagement;
HEBEAAREEMEM AR 2 REEIE U0
TRRETEHEREBEGR

e Challenging the valuation techniques and reasonableness
of the significant inputs used by the management and
the valuers based on our knowledge of the property
markets;
ERBMEMETS 7T REERERGEMMTAZ
HERNEERSERAZ S BIERHER

e  Comparing the market transactions and market rentals
with similar properties and locations to the significant
inputs used in the valuation; and
L BRI % Rt B 2 52 5 RS & A R EPT
RAZBEREERA &

e Assessing the specific assumptions made by the
management and valuers on adjustments to the
properties valuations, by taking into account of
condition, location, discount rates, market rents and
other individual factors.

ML ERERMEMSEEEEYE AR - 1B - 8L
WE - mipHe REMERNEEZEHMEGEMERAER
2 BB E® -
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Key audit matters

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEMHES NAEERRETSH

Valuation of financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss - distressed debt assets

HEERBBRAABEHA BB ZEHMEE - TREKEEZIGE

We identified the valuation of financial assets designated
as at fair value through profit or loss — distressed
debt assets as a key audit matter due to the valuation
assessment requires the management to make significant
judgments in determining the fair value.
HMBEREERRANESAER EREE—TRE
BEEEABRETEE  RERGENGEAERE
BREE A AERIELEARFE -

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s financial
assets designated as at fair value through profit or
loss — distressed debt assets are carried at fair value
of approximately HK$447 million. The fair value was
determined based on lower of the fair value of collaterals
of the distressed debt assets with reference to a valuation
performed by an independent qualified professional
valuer, and the carrying amount of the distressed debt
assets according to the terms of relevant contracts. A
direct comparison approach was used to determine the
fair value of the collaterals of distressed debt assets by
making reference to comparable market transactions of
the collaterals and adjusting according to the conditions
and natures of the collaterals to arrive at the value for
sale under repossession.

RZT—+tF+ZA=+—H0 " BEBEETAZAR
BEFtAER REE - TREBEETIRRER447
BEATAR - AAEDERSEB IS EREETH
EEITHENTREBEEERRZAANERTRER
BEREEMRS  RIEERIBHEBE N2 GHEE ©
EMRAEELEEAELEEMR A ELRTSER S
EETREBEEENRZANE  WREBER G 2R
R EE R AR EBREIFEEE -

Details relating to valuation assessment on the Group's
financial assets designated as at fair value through profit
or loss — distressed debt assets are set out in Notes 5 and
26 to the consolidated financial statements.

BH BEXEEETARAAEFABRZEREE-—T
REBEEZ MENAFBHN GRS M BRRMTSR
26.

Our procedures in relation to the valuation financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or loss — distressed
debt assets included:

BAMEEREANEFABGZ eREE—TREKEE
ZIEEETZRF e

e Obtaining an understanding of the key controls over the
processes that the management performed in relation to
the valuation assessment of its distressed debt assets;
THREREREINREBHREEZ HEMETZIEFZ
FEERE

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent qualified professional valuer and
obtaining an understanding of their scope of work and
terms of engagement;
AEBEUAEREEGEMCEE RN RERIE I
TR TFEHE R RGN

e  Challenging the valuation techniques adopted and
reasonableness of the significant inputs used by
the management and the valuer and assessing their
appropriateness;

HERE MEEMARA 2 AERTREREERAZ
SRMERHER - WTHEEREE

e Engaging our internal valuation expert to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation techniques and
significant inputs used in the valuation of selected
collaterals; and
ZEANEERR  HRETER RO EEMRANE
ERMMARBIERASTEE &

e Obtaining legal opinion from the Group's external legal
counsel on the legal rights and titles on the collaterals of
distressed debt assets.

BE BEENEEIZERSRTREBEECERDZ
EEREN R R EREER -
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Key audit matters

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEMHES NAEERRETSH

Estimated impairment of mining rights

HRIRRE A1 51 Bl

We identified the estimated impairment of mining rights
as a key audit matter due to the significant management
judgments are required to estimate the recoverable
amounts of the mining rights.
HPERREENGTDRERERENEZE  REASE
B BT ERIERE 2 AT B & RE R JRE B R FIEf -

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of the
mining rights in Mongolia was approximately HK$455
million. The recoverable amounts of the mining rights
are determined based on the value in use calculation
and certain key assumptions. Value in use calculation
used the discounted future pre-tax cash flows expected
to be derived from the cash-generating units that
holds the mining rights and the Group has engaged an
independent qualified professional valuer to perform such
valuation. The key assumptions used in estimating the
discounted future pre-tax cash flows including tungsten
metal estimated selling price, estimated future costs of
production, estimated future operating costs, recoverable
reserves, resources and exploration potential, discount
rates and exchange rates.

RIB—+F+TA=1T—H  FhH2RBEEREER
455 A BB TT o IRERE 2 AR El @ T RIEERE A
HRETIERRET - stHEABERKBEDIRE
FHERBERZAESELEEU 2R ARRBAIRSRE -
m BEEEEEE -8B EEREEMEMETEHA
A - AERBRARBAIRSREMERZ T EREE
FIRSBEFTEE - AT RREERAR ~ et Rk
BXAR - PSR S - BIREMIRE S - BRI R RIER -

Details relating to the management impairment
assessment on the mining rights are set out in Notes 5,
20 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
GBI BRI RERE 2 FIBH N RS M TR
KMIFES « 2021 ©

Our procedures in relation to the estimated impairment of
mining rights included:

BRI EETREET ZEF 81 -

o Obtaining an understanding of the key controls over the
processes that the management performed in relation
to the impairment assessment of mining rights and the
preparation of the cash flow forecast;

TRREIR BB RE G MRRIR SR B TEA 2
T2EFC BT

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent qualified professional valuer and
obtaining an understanding of their scope of work and
terms of engagement;
HEBEABREEMEMEE I RFEIE 1
TRRAETIESHEREBER

o Evaluating the reasonableness and appropriateness

of the significant inputs and assumptions including
tungsten metal estimated selling price, estimated
future costs of production, estimated future operating
costs, recoverable reserves, resources and exploration
potential, discount rates and exchange rates used by the
management and the valuer with reference to market
information;
EIE[E R ERN2ZE INED R AT 28 B P ER A ) LAY A4 8
REBERARBRCAEERREN - RESSBME
BB EEFARRAEERE « (AET RREEHA - ATERRE
2 BREMFES BRERERERE ;

o Engaging our internal valuation expert to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation methodologies and
discount rate used in the valuation;

LA A EZRHE NS ET AERB R ET AR

Ef/_\ElZl r‘]'m' ;

o Obtaining legal opinion from the Group’s external legal
counsel in Mongolia on the legal rights and titles of the
relevant mining rights; and
ES BEESHINEEEEMMBMRERE 2 B
CEERNRERZERER R

o Obtaining confirmation from the Mineral Resources
and Petroleum Authority of Mongolia on the Group's
mining rights are still in effect and in good standing with
no official exploitation has been conducted since the
Group's acquisition.

BEFLBEERIAMEER CHER - BEEZK
BWREDABRREE & ;K@ZW%iﬁﬁ T1E
fA]E 7 #hER -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

%ﬁﬁm?ﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬂtﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁ
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lau Chi Kin, Kinson.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
ek AMEEN S

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z - —+F+_A=+—HIFE

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bz qHZE
—E—+tF —EREF
+=HA=+—8 +=—A=+—H
LHEFEE 1EAEAR
o FET FAT
Revenue Wz 6 11,243,596 8,102,730
Other income H At A 8 40,939 16,147
Other gains and losses E AUk & B 18 9 33,737 (59,743)
Purchases and changes in inventories GFEZEBE NE (10,658,280) (7,882,354)
Employee benefits expenses EERFIFAX (105,066) (43,125)
Other operating expenses HEhae ey (196,273) (129,430)
Changes in fair value of investment WEMERNNELE
properties 17 148,875 304,430
Changes in fair value of assets classified ~DIEAFIEHEZ EEZ
as held-for-sale NREEE 32 20,000 -
Share of results of an associate AN =l ) /NG E ] (35) (46)
Finance costs BATE AR 10 (177,788) (100,644)
Profit before tax BB AR T 349,705 207,965
Income tax expense FriS#if sz 11 (37,614) (166,858)
Profit for the year/period FEHREER 12 312,091 41,107
Other comprehensive income HitZ2EBA(BX) :
(expense):
Items that may be reclassified HEaJfEER PR B
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEH :
Exchange differences arising from A INETSEE & 2 B H =25
translation of foreign operations 174,650 (19,464)
Changes in fair value of available- AHEEERE 2 AAEE
for-sale investments 5,095 -
Share of exchange difference of an oG —TEE & QA R ERR
associate 466 153
Reclassification of cumulative exchange R HEHB A AR 25t
differences to profit or loss upon EREREEFNHEEES
disposal of subsidiaries 49 (53,452) 1,224
Reclassification of cumulative exchange — FAH & —fEEE & A BB 25T
differences to profit or loss upon [ERERETHEEER
disposal of an associate 22 (619) -
Other comprehensive income FE/HEEMEEARAGRS)
(expense) for the year/period 126,140 (18,087)

Total comprehensive income for the FE "HiE2HE WA B
year/period 438,231 23,020
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reBRkEMEEES

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z - —+F+_A=+—HIFE

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BZE qHZE
—EB—+tF —E-RF
+=A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
LFE 1EAEAR
k=3 FHET FHT
Profit (loss) for the year/period UTATEEFE #HE
attributable to: Al (E58) -
Owners of the Company KATHEB A 312,096 41,263
Non-controlling interests eI (5) (156)
312,091 41,107
Total comprehensive income UTALTEEFEE HE2E
(expense) for the year/period WA (BAR) #4858 -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KARHEB A 438,059 23,559
Non-controlling interests eI 172 (539)
438,231 23,020
Earnings per share BRER 15
— Basic (HK cents) —ZARGE) 6.06 1.94
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Are IOk

At 31 December 2017 R - Z—+F+-F=+—H

2017 2016
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
—E—+E —ZE—RF
MIsE FET FET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - B R&E 16 35,617 182,567
Investment properties wEME 17 2,761,828 3,625,760
Goodwill S 18 - 12,014
Intangible assets | EE 19 4,655 32,366
Mining rights PRAERE 20 454,541 454,541
Interest in an associate R — IR & AR 2 e 22 = 15,301
Loan note receivable EREREE 23 = 1,460,808
Available-for-sale investments AMHEZIRE 24 70,919 1,116
Pledged bank deposits EHEIRITIFR 31 - 19,713
Deferred tax assets IRIEFI IR E B 40 2,039 -
Other non-current assets HiIEmE&EE 12,853 9,932
3,342,452 5,814,118
Current assets REEE
Inventories w8 25 4,542 1,834
Financial assets designated as at fair EEREANER ABE
value through profit or loss ZERMEE 26 446,660 452,600
Accounts receivable RUBE K 27 166,617 85,063
Loan note receivable FEWE R EE 23 1,472,118 -
Held-for-trading investments FEER KA 28 2,244,524 651,856
Deposits, prepayments and other e BRAFIEREAM
receivables fEY FRIE 29 131,213 410,467
Financial derivative contracts SRSTERL 30 93,539 -
Structured deposits HEBETR 31 89,020 313
Restricted bank deposits ZR BRI TIER 31 1,117,534 841,106
Bank balances and cash RITEBERS 31 1,380,685 2,016,662
7,146,452 4,459,901
Assets classified as held-for-sale DEAFRFEREZEE 32 680,118 -
7,826,570 4,459,901
Current liabilities REBEE
Financial liabilities held-for-trading BIEEEZ2MERE 28 6,600 -
Financial derivative contracts ERMITERLD 30 = 12,685
Accounts and bills payables FERT BRI BT SR 45 33 1,346,530 910,591
Accrued liabilities and other payables JERT A E R HMPERFRIE 34 180,300 151,366
Borrowings gE 35 2,203,852 1,931,096
Amounts due to related companies FERTRRE R FIFRIA 36 192 14,728
Loan notes EREE \ 37 = 1,412,116
Loan from a related company —HEERE 2B 38 121,847 -
Other liabilities EmBE 39 1,203,767 -
Tax payables JERTTRIR 77,773 26,724
5,140,861 4,459,306
Net current assets RBEEFEE 2,685,709 595
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBEE 6,028,161 5,814,713
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At 31 December 2017 R - Z—+F+-F=+—H

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZE—+F ZE—RF
B s FHET FHTT
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Borrowings BE 35 620,904 -
Loan from a related company —HEERE 2 EX 38 - 171,444
Other liabilities HibaE 39 - 1,165,586
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIEAE 40 224,251 245,453
845,155 1,582,483
Net assets EEFRE 5,183,006 4,232,230
Capital and reserves EXRFEE
Share capital &N 41 262,501 240,164
Reserves [ 4,917,283 3,989,016
Equity attributable to owners of RATHEE ANEGER
the Company 5,179,784 4,229,180
Non-controlling interests Eealiig 2o 42 3,222 3,050
Total equity R 5,183,006 4,232,230

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 250 were ~ $£79&250E 2 &AM KRR N — 22— \F=A

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26~ —+ /N AEEERH#ELRBENE - LhIATRE
March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: BRE
Mr. Chen Weisong Mr. Ye Fei
FRIEM & BkE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

2 EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z - —+F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALRREEARE
Other
Contributed  Investments capital Non-
Share Share surplus  revaluation Translation  Statutory contribution Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves reserve losses  Subtotal interests Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note a) (Note b)
RB4RH  REEM Eftirg

By R&EE ffe BE EXRE  LERR B RiER N FERER ag
Tem  TEm TEn TR TER  TER  TER  TAT TR TEr  TEx

(Fizta) (i)

At 1 April 2016 RZF-~ERA-A 75,05 1,157,281 52,743 - (754) - - (435429 8488% 9,015 857910
Profit (oss) for the period - - - - - - - 41,263 41263 (156) 41,107
Exchange differences arising from ]

translation of foreign operations - - - - (19,081) - - - (19,081) (383)  (19464)
Redlassfication of cumulative exchange R HE-TEHBAREEZE

differences to profit or loss upon REEER WEE}%

disposal of a subsidiary (Note 49(a)) (Misr49(a) - - - - 124 - - - 124 - 124
Share of exchange difference of HME-RERRELEE

an associate - - - - 153 - - - 153 - 153
Other comprehensive expense forthe  EREMZERR

period - - - - (17,704) - - - (17,704) (383) (18,087)
Total comprehensive (expense)income 2 (F% AL

for the period - - - - (17,704) - - 41,263 23,559 (539) 23,020
Issue of rights shares (Note 41(a)) BTHERRG (1) 150,110 2,852,075 - - - - - - 3,002,185 - 3,002,185
Placing of new shares (Note 41(b) REHRR (st41(b) 15000 345,000 - - - - - - 360,000 - 360,000
Transaction costs attributable toissue of ~ EFTERRHREEFRE

rights shares and placing of new shares ~ FE(ER SR -onm - - - - - - mm - nm
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 49(2) HE-HRBA (HE49a) - - - - - - - - - (5,426) (5,426)
Other capital contribution (Note b) EtirE(Kit) - - - - - - 1312 - 7131 - 7312
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"F+ZA=t-8 240164 4341585 52,743 - (18,458) - 7312 (394,166) 4,229,180 3,05 4232230
Profit (loss) for the year f iR - - - - - - - 3120% 312,09 (5 312,091
Eichange differences arising from BENERELEZR

translation of foreign operations - - - - 174473 - - - 14413 1m 174,650
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale Tt ERE 7 AAEES)

investments - - - 5,095 - - - - 5,095 - 5,095
Share of exchange difference of HMi-HEEARELER

an associate - - - - 466 - - - 466 - 466
Redlassfication of cumulative exchange ~ RIHE-EINBLARREZHE

differences to profit or loss upon ?L%%EE%\ EER

disposal of subsidiary (Note 49(b) (FiE49(b)) - - - - (5345) - - - (5345) - (5345)
Reclassification of cumulative exchange ~ RHE— ﬁWé/ AR EATE

differences to profit or loss upon RERENAREER

disposal of an associate (Note 22) () - - - - (619) - - - (619) - (619)
Other comprehensive income for the year & EHZENA - - - 5095 120868 - - - 15983 17 126140
Total comprehensive income for the year  £E 2L - - - 5095 120868 - - 31209 438,059 m 4831
Issue of ordinary shares for acquisiton ~ FAEMBARZGERR

of subsidiares (Note 41(c) (Az41(0) 03B 58523 - - - - - - 607570 - 607570
Cancellation of share premium and ik m@&@ﬁ%?%ﬁ

transferred to contributed surplus (M)

reserve (Note ) - (4926,818) 4,926,818 - - - - - - - -
Dividends recognised as distributions ]

(Note d) (Note 14) = = (95,025) = = S = = (95,025) - (95,025)
Transfer to statutory reserves (Note €) - - - - - 57,485 - (57,485) - - -

At 31 December 2017 RIF+ETZA=1-H 262,501 - 4884536 5005 102,410 57,485 7312 (139,555) 5,179,784 322 5,183,006
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z - —+F+_A=+—HIFE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

The contributed surplus reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
Group reorganisation prior to its public listing on 2 October 1995 and
represents the difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the former holding company of the Group acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation, over the nominal value of the shares of the
Company issued in exchange therefore.

Other capital contribution reserve represents the initial fair value
adjustment on loan from a related company and details are set out in
Note 38.

On 30 October 2017, the shareholders of the Company approved a
special resolution regarding the cancellation of the entire amount of
share premium amounting to approximately HK$4,926,818,000 and
transferred to contributed surplus reserve.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a
company may not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus reserve, if there are reasonable grounds
for believing that (i) the company is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii) the
realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts. Otherwise the contributed surplus reserve
is distributable. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company has distributed dividends from contributed surplus reserve
amounted to approximately HK$95,025,000 to the shareholders of
the Company.

According to the relevant rules and regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), each of the Company's PRC
subsidiaries shall transfer 10% of their net income after taxation,
based on the subsidiary’s PRC statutory accounts, as statutory
reserves, until the balance reaches 50% of the respective subsidiary’s
registered capital. Further appropriations can be made at the
directors’ discretion. The statutory reserves can be used to offset any
accumulated losses or convert into paid-up capital of the respective
subsidiary.

BifeE

(a)

()

(e)

AREZ EHARRBREARER-ANAREF A=
BAREMAETRESMEMEL - HEREASEE
ERMBB AR EERZER AR Z R EE - BHEZ
WM BT 2 AR BB EE 2 Z5 -

Hit)T EREERA —BEEARZERZ AR
ERE R FIBRERNE3S -

R-Z—tF+A=1+H  ARFRESHEHERD
(B2 F8#4,926,818,00078 Tt A — B RRE R
I O B AR o

BEEBRE-NN\—FREEEER])  MEAER
FBREG)A RIS Sk B (E R 9 k18 R AL 3
SEEEEBBZBE AR EEZIZBREES
BHEMEREEERESRITRAERMEE 2
& - AIRZA R EE RS Skt BB R GHE
FIEHDIR - BRIDRESEGHEE - BHE=Z—+
FHZA=T—HLFE ARECEERRHBHE
AR A BIRR R 9 RAR E.495,025,000/8 7T ©

RIEPEARKMBE([HE ) ZBEERFER - &
SE SR BEME A RS ASESBEEERE AR
BRFRRZ10% BB EXEHE BERHBEHRE
HZMEARAMERS% BIE - BEEE IS
TEHRRIMEGR - BRI AR A ER B BIEEKH
REtEiE s AR R -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SEHEESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z - —+F+_A=+—HIFE

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-Z—t& HE_ZT—F
+=HA=+—H +-A=+—H
LEFE 1EUE A
FET FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES FE 9
Profit before tax RT3 A A 349,705 207,965
Adjustments for: KFHETHRIE
Amortisation of intangible assets mIPEESE 1,342 250
Changes in fair value of REMEZ AREEE)
investment properties (168,875) (304,430)
Changes in fair value of structured deposits ﬁi% HEFRZ
NAEES (1,407) (160)
Changes in fair value of financial derivative ﬁnﬂmim Dz AR E
contracts EE) (103,854) (4,104)
Depreciation of property, ff%% WSS
plant and equipment e 20,425 5,667
Finance costs BATE A 177,788 100,644
Gain on disposal of an associate HE RS QRS (987) -
(Gain) loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMEA (H&Eﬁ)
J&518 (52,220) 67
Interest income 7T|J s A (34,215) (12,985)
Impairment loss on accounts and other RN Lt M RRIA
receivable  oRfEEE 7,746 40
Impairment loss on goodwill and intangible AEREEEEL
assets RIEEE 38,408 -
Loss on initial recognition of loan notes TEERERRE 2
EE‘%% - 440
Profits attributable to the third parties’ T BRBEEL
interest in consolidated structured entities % = R e A 82,001 2,486
Share of results of an associate g chail i NCIE 35 46
Unrealised loss (gain) on fair value change T EARA S ER AR
of financial assets designated w2 EREERANE
as at fair value through profit or loss BE) o KB
1R (M) 50,213 (92,098)
Unrealised loss on fair value changes of HIEEESREE
financial assets (liabilities) held-for-trading (aE)zAnEE
ZAREBELEE 16,407 16,259
Operating cash flows before movements HEEREHAIZ
in working capital KEIMPIRE 382,512 (79,913)
Increase in inventories FEEm (2,708) (989)
Decrease (increase) in financial assets BERBANE ABE
designated as at fair value through ZeBBEROGEM)
profit or loss 32,972 (379,019)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable FEURER SR (3Z 00 )R (82,851) 1,838
(Increase) decrease in held-for-trading REEE 21E (8)
investments poae (1,602,475) 91,594
Increase in deposits, prepayments and other B FBNRIEREME
receivables Wk IEIE AN (2,532) (74,126)
(Increase) decrease in financial derivative SRSTES K (0 Rk
contracts (2,370) 92,055
Increase in accounts and bills payables FEATBR TR S FE AT SR IR IE hN 360,763 829,155
Decrease in accrued liabilities FEE B & R H At JE AT 508
and other payables VR (15,232) (8,875)
Cash (used in) generated from operations wE (A EECRS (931,921) 471,720
Income tax paid [=ENIZIEET! (16,133) (1,821)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING REXB (TR EEZR
ACTIVITIES R (948,054) 469,899
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & —=

—tFtZRA=t—RLFE

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-—Z—tH§ HE-ZT I F
+=H=+—H +ZA=+—H
LFE 1EUE A
FaE FTHET FAT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Placement of restricted bank deposits GFEAZRHIFEITER (1,114,480) (841,106)
Placement of structured deposits GFALERBETR (610,782) (3,126)
Loan advance to a third party BNTFEZFZER (78,127) -
Advance to a related company BT —REERR ZFIE (78,058) -
Acquisition of an available-for-sale WiE—Er HEERE
investments (62,961) (1,116)
Settlement of consideration payable XA ES AR EE SR 2
of acquisition of Hui Kai Holdings ER(E 34 (62,877) -
Acquisition of property, W - R KRR
plant and equipment (12,562) (21,565)
Acquisition of other non-current assets ~ WEEEMIERENEE (2,921) (9,932)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits ~ 1REVE R HlI3R 1717 5K 845,157 -
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEMBARZESRAFRE
subsidiaries 49(b)&(c) 703,616 17,429
Proceeds from redemption of structured  f&[E & #& M F R 2 Fr 8708
deposits 525,282 2,813
Deposits refunded for potential BIEWE B RIES
acquisitions 315,233 -
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREWZE 2 FSHRIA
properties 111,817 -
Deposits received from disposal of HEREME ZBEWIES
investment properties 110,700 -
Repayment from a related company KE—EEAERRRER 78,058 -
Interest received B2 U FI B 20,646 9,203
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposit REB ERRITIFR 18,785
Proceeds from disposal of interestinan  HER—EL QAR 2
associate Fri5sa 16,100 7,815
Subscription of loan note receivable REBEWNERZE - (1,460,808)
Acquisition of an investment property I BB & W % - (1,261,374)
Net cash outflow on acquisitions WM B AR 2 Re R F58
of subsidiaries 48 - (1,112,447)
Deposits paid for potential acquisitions — BEWE 2 2% $ - (315,225)
Investment in an associate i Al/NET - (8,400)
Deposits paid for potential investments  BEKRE 2 EfEE = (5,000)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABEPRITFR - (2,948)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REEFBREA)Z
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFE 722,626 (5,005,787)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & —=

—tFtZRA=t—RLFE

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-Z—tH HE_Z—F
+=A=+—B +=-—A=+—8H
IEEE 1ENEA
FET FAET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEE
Repayment of loan notes BEEREE (1,441,537) -
Repayment of margin financing loans BERISMEER (611,059) (414,797)
Repayment of bank borrowings EEIRITER (207,527) -
Repayment of third parties’ contributions in 1@5&% TR e EE
consolidated structured entities EREZER (189,594) -
Interest paid BEAFLE (128,755) (27,529)
Dividends paid BE (95,025) -
Repayment of loan from a related company EiERE —EEEAR]
ZER (70,958) -
Repayment of other borrowings BEHMEE (40,626) -
Repayment of vendor financing loan BESHFREER (32,149) (60,345)
Repayment to related companies et YNCIE O] (14,536) -
Proceeds from margin financing loans REBECBMEERZMEHIEA 1,328,872 685,142
Proceeds from issuance of loan instrument BITERT A A8 621,656 -
Proceeds from other borrowings raised E@ﬁ%fg%‘Zﬁﬁﬁﬁ 328,753 -
Proceeds from third parties’ contributions in FE=TREREE DT%BMZ
consolidated structured entities BRLZ TS 5R0E 131,923 1,163,100
Proceeds from subscription of rights shares R 2 FTis 5/I8 - 1,792,185
Net proceeds from issuance of loan notes %éf?%f?ﬂ?fZﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁr%E - 1,381,050
Proceeds from bank borrowings raised S ERITEE ZFTS3A - 560,967
Proceeds from placing of new shares PR FTAR 1D 2 Fr{S 308 - 360,000
Proceeds from loans from Tai He Financial REAME @'%IEFE
Group Limited ZER S RIA - 332,960
Proceeds from loan from a related company e —fEEER TZE%’X
Z S F0R - 178,625
Proceeds from vendor financing loan EmEE MZFﬁ?%?K = 92,896
Advance from related companies REBERR]Z B - 9,930
Transaction cost directly attributable BT BB FE(G
to issue of rights shares R KA - (10,943)
Transaction cost directly attributable fo 3T B R ELS
to placing of new shares R - (1,828)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING RMESEE (FTA) Bz
ACTIVITIES ReFH (420,562) 6,041,413
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN ReRZERRLEE (D)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EhnFE (645,990) 1,505,525
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE IMEERSTH I HE
RATE CHANGES 10,013 (11,494)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE F/HO2EERER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR/PERIOD HEIEH 2,016,662 522,631
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT F/HRZRAERER
THE END OF THE YEAR/PERIOD, ReEE - RITHER
REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES kR
AND CASH 1,380,685 2,016,662
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z - —+F+_A=+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL

Tai United Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In the opinion of the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”), the Company’s
ultimate holding company is Satinu Resources Group Ltd.
(“Satinu Resources”), a company incorporated in British
Virgin Island (“BVI") with limited liability. The registered office
of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at Suite 1206-1209, 12th
Floor, Three Pacific Place, 1 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 55.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 8 July 2016,
the Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name of
the Company issued by the Registry of Companies in the
Bermuda on 15 July 2016 and the Certificate of Registration
of Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong
Company issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong
on 12 August 2016, the Company changed its name from
Bestway International Holdings Limited to Tai United Holdings
Limited with effect from 19 August 2016.

The consolidated financial statements presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

—REHR

RFERARAR ([ ARAR )R EREZM
Ry A—HEREERAR  ERONE
BEERSBR AT ([HRZA]) £ o &
AAIER([EERAE  ARRAZEREER
‘A &) /& Satinu Resources Group Ltd. ([ Satinu
Resources |) (—HREBELZHE ([ HBRXL
BEDEMRZZBRAR) o ARRZ M
PrEER{IF Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda * " A Fl 2 F B
FHWEMURBEBRRRNER 1AL ESFEIH
121£1206-1209% °

ARR B —EREERARmMAR AT 2ME
NAZ T BEBEMFESS

ot

RENR T RFLANBBBZERIREA
= BREQAEMER-ZF-A"FtAt+tH
BEhz AR EREREMERAERBEAR
AMERER-_Z—R"FNAA+T-REHZE
MIEFERAREERRWAMEAS - XA
HEMh BB ERER R R E SRS AR
RERRAR  BZZE—RFENAATNLRARE
R

HFaMBRERTIAETT(ETZS 8RR
AZIBEER 5 -
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A BT RARMIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z - —+F+_A=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2. FEBBRREREE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The reporting period end date of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) was
changed from 31 March to 31 December from last reporting
period because the Directors determined to align the annual
reporting period end date with the financial year end date of
the Company's principal operating subsidiaries established
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Such change
is in response to the increase in operation and number of
Company's subsidiaries established in the PRC during recent
years. The Directors consider that the change of the financial
year end date will better facilitate the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. Accordingly,
the comparative amounts shown for the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated
statement of cash flows and related notes cover a nine month
period from 1 April 2016 to 31 December 2016 and therefore
may not be comparable with amounts shown for the current
year.

Significant events and transactions in the
current reporting period

Acquisition of Tai Infinite Holdings Group Limited and
its subsidiary (the “Tai Infinite Group”)

On 5 January 2017, the Company entered into the sales and
purchase agreement with Mr. Chua Hwa Por (“Mr. Chua"),
former ultimate shareholder of the Company, pursuant to
which the Company has agreed to purchase the entire equity
interest of the Tai Infinite Group and to accept the assignment
of loans from former shareholder of the Tai Infinite Group.
The principal asset of the Tai Infinite Group is commercial
property units located on 79th Floor of The Center, Central,
Hong Kong.

The acquisition has been completed on 24 March 2017 and
the consideration was satisfied by the allotment and issuance
of 446,742,544 ordinary shares of the Company with par
value of HK$0.05 each.

Details of the above acquisition were set out in Note 48(i)
(g) and also in the announcements of the Company dated 5
January 2017 and 24 March 2017.
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Significant events and transactions in the
current reporting period (Continued)

Disposal of Leon Property Limited (“Leon Property”)

On 18 September 2017, the Group had entered into a sales
and purchase agreement with an independent third party
to dispose of its entire equity interest of Leon Property,
which engaged in property investment activities, at a cash
consideration of Great British Pound (“GBP") 52,719,206
(equivalent to approximately HK$557,080,000) and the
disposal was completed on the same date.

Details of the above disposal were set out in Note 49(b)
and also in the announcements of the Company dated 18
September 2017.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") for the first time in the current
year.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 12

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current year and prior period and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. In
addition, the amendments also require disclosures on
changes in financial assets if cash flows from those financial
assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash
flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries
or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign
exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other
changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in Note 53. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in Note 53, the application
of these amendments has had no impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BRG] REEFTEBMBRE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ZR([EEMBEREED ] @)

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

C 28 o 1 1e AR 4 B2 AT RARAEET
BEMBREER

IR B R TP B R R AER 2
] MKIERT BB IS 2R

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments' ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%iﬁ%i@,ﬁﬂ SETA
E9%
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BRI REER BE AW RAEBETA
Customers and the related 155
Amendments'
HKFRS 16 Leases? BEBIEEN HE?
£16%
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts* ﬁf’é,ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁ” RERE 4
F17%
HK(FRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions BE(ERIERE  INEXHREMNRE
and Advance Consideration’ REZEY)
—REBE2F
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax EEEBTHERSE  FIERHEREZ TETE
Treatments? REZEY)
—REBE3N
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement BB RS R R BERNRIHZHER
of Share-based Payment FEIRETA e
Transactions’
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial BAMEREER HEBHKREENEIRRE S
Instruments with HKFRS 4 FBAFIERTR A —HIERA B M RS ER
Insurance Contracts' EWREHTA
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with BAMEREER REEFHERARHE
Negative Compensation? FIREITA
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BRHBIMEER REEHEBLNARALLE
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its F10RREBLE ZEHETIANEE

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Associate or Joint Venture?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle'

Transfers of Investment Property!

SRS 285k ERT A
BEGERF 28
EEIE
BB G EAIF 28
EEIES

BBEEAIFA0R

BRLARANAELRORIRS

ERUBRSLAN =T
EoERFBEEENE
2-35"

BRRENE

{EETAR
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BEMBREER BENBMEEN S —HE
2015-2017 Cycle? [ERTAR T FREFRME

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

! R-ZT—NF— B —BRIAKRFIGZFEHRE

2018 XV

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZZE—NF—A—B=EHB 2 FEHH
2019 XV

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be : ST EEE 2 B Bisk A& B se 2 S 1E AR A K
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 RZTEZ—F—A—Bx A EHB 2 FEHH
2021 AR
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and
Interpretations mentioned below, the Directors anticipate
that the application of all other new and amendments to
HKFRSs and Interpretations will have no material impact on
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group
are:

e all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are generally measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All other financial
assets are measured at their fair value at subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that
is not held-for-trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RN REETEEBVRERE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ZA(TEBRBHREED ] @)
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) EBNBREEAEIREMIA

(#&)

e in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS e SREEREIE  BAMBHREEAE
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed O ERBHEEBAER  BHEBEE
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The FRIEI R EEEEERAENIEL
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account R - BEHEEBARAEREEBNER
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected AR EERA R A GETEE G
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in 8 - AR YR TERE 2 EERREME
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is BEZ  TBREFREEESHEAR
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred RIEERK -

before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk BEAEBR_FT—+tF+A=+—Hz%
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the BT A KE ﬁ%@ﬂ( F ERFEHIRRAE
Directors anticipate the following potential impacts on initial B ISR E ERFTRA NI EETE

application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement: PERIE -

e Debt instruments classified as loan note receivables o INMIFE23ATHEE - OB REWERE
carried at amortised cost as disclosed in Note 23: these BOREEHERAIR) BB LA : %%
are held within a business model whose objective is DAERAERE B2 T R ER 2 AN e RE K
to collect the contractual cash flows that are solely SHEMNENRENERB M2 EBER
payments of principal and interest on the principal Mg - Bt - EREEBI RS 4L
outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets will BN - REUMBEEREBNERIEZ
continue to be subsequently measured at amortised EHEHRARETE -

cost upon the application of HKFRS 9.

e Debt instruments classified as available-for-sale o INMIFE24FTHEE AT HEERE
investments carried at fair value as disclosed in Note 24: WEBIATDRAAERE  WHRER
these are held within a business model whose objective is FRFARKEAELRERE RN ARTIS
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and HEEBTAMEXNEBERX THE
selling the debt instruments in the open market, and ARE KGR REE B BEERNR SN
the contractual terms give rise to cash flows on specified EARRINRE RAREERSHN S8
dates that are solely payments of principal and interest BEBLIE - Hit - ERAEBNBREER
on the principal outstanding. Accordingly, the debt FoWe  BEHIAEZBEEZERE
instruments will continue to be subsequently measured EEBARAAEE - MANREER
at FVTOCI upon the application of HKFRS 9, and the fair HE RN AN EREREEREBNME
value gains or losses accumulated in the investments BLAKIERNENHEREESH D
revaluation reserve will continue to be subsequently B (BRENSBEERBENATZ
reclassified to profit or loss when the debt instruments RSN EERT - BFHERBERTP
are derecognised or reclassified (except in the case of ik WiREMEERENDEBANHA
reclassifications to the amortised cost measurement AEEHFAE) -

category in which case the accumulated gains or losses
are removed from equity and adjusted against the fair
value of the financial asset at reclassification date).



AMEZERBIRAT] ——+544#

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BT RARMIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z - —+F+_A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement: (Continued)

o Equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at cost less impairment as disclosed
in Note 24: these securities qualified for designation
as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9, however, the
Group plans not to elect the option for designating
these securities to be measured at FVTOCI and will
measure these securities at fair value with subsequent
fair value gains or losses to be recognised in profit or
loss. Upon initial application of HKFRS 9, the fair value
change related to these securities, representing the
differences between cost less impairment and fair value
would be adjusted to accumulated losses as at 1 January
2018.

. All other financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same bases as are
currently measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment:

In general, the Directors anticipate that the application of the
expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier
provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation
to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised costs
and other items that subject to the impairment provisions
upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the Directors, if the expected
credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the
accumulated amount of impairment loss to be recognised by
Group as at 1 January 2018 would be increased as compared
to the accumulated amount recognised under HKAS 39
mainly attributable to expected credit losses provision on
accounts receivable, other receivables, loan note receivable
and deposits with financial institutions. Such further
impairment recognised under expected credit loss model
would increase the opening accumulated losses at 1 January
2018.
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:
e  Step 1: lIdentify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may result in more disclosures, however, the
Directors do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
will have a material impact on the timing and amounts of
revenue recognised in the respective reporting periods.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as
well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
other operating lease payments are presented as operating
cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and
an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flows by the Group.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately HK$39,893,000
as disclosed in Note 43. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of approximately HK$10,042,000 as rights
under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits
are not payments relating to the right to use the underlying
assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits
may be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments
are considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments
to refundable rental deposits paid would be included in the
carrying amount of right-of-use assets.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are measured at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs are to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFBER @)

(Continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate.

Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held-
for-sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assume as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting
a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets/financial liabilities
at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other individual
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does
not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represents the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or groups of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata based on
the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit (or groups of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal
(or any of the cash-generating unit within group of cash-
generating units in which the Group monitors goodwill).
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an interest in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. Change in net assets of the associate other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest in an associate (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interest in the
associate that are not related to the Group.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-current assets held-for-sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held-
for-sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. The management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held-for-sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held-
for-sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFBER @)

(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue or income arising from financial services business are
recognised on the following basis:

e Commission and broking income for broking business is
recorded as income on a trade date basis;

e  Service fee income are recognised when the relevant
transactions have been arranged or the relevant services
have been rendered,;

e Interest income from margin clients are recognised on a
time proportion basis, taking into account the principal
amounts outstanding and the effective interest rates
applicable; and

e Insurance brokerage service income is recognised when
the underlying service transactions are completed.

Other interest income is accrued on a time apportionment
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Gains or losses from disposal of distressed debt assets
designated as at financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL") and unrealised fair value changes on such
assets, both of which are accounted for as changes in fair
value of distressed debt assets.

The net increase or decrease in fair value of trading
investments comprises all gains and losses from changes in
the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities held-
for-trading and dividend income from equities held-for-
trading.

Revenue from the sale of petrochemical products, metal-
related product, medical equipment and other general goods
are recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have
passed.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Loan raising costs

Loan raising costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
borrowings form an integral part of the effective interest rate
of the borrowings and amortised through the expected life of
the borrowings, or, where appropriate, a shorter period and
recognised as an expense on an effective interest method
over the loan period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs not directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFBER @)

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition other than in a
business combination of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
properties are depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation of
which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit schemes
in relation to employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in
the PRC, Singapore and United Kingdom (“UK") and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme in relation to employees
of the Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

4,

BEREFTEHE®

INEE &)

MEIEREMBREMS - AREBINEHZ
BERBENERNSREHRBITZEXE
ERAKE 25 G (AET) - WEB TS
HRZFHEXRBE - FEEZERZE
(WA R EM 2R E AR - WNEE R
RIE TR EEA R (BN IFERES -
B °

HEBINERBT(BIHEARENEIEHZE
B - IS RRAREBIREINEBENZM
BAREHIRZMESRE AW OHEARER
B MEeRaIER ARG RSN R
BEZERD)N  SIARRHEE ABGZIEE
BRESTRIAZMBEELEZEREENOEE

Bz e

RRBRIBAR

FABARRRAPE - 370 N SR B A
AlZ BB 2 BRERRABHGFEI AR AR
M BARZREZRBIEATES A EIF
ZHFREECREREMARESER MR
R RER BRI ©

HHESEAN

R BN YRR B IR RIS RS T
Mz REEREN S RER - PIARIEEREH
BER/HAX - R BEEMBREERRE
S AFFRHER T ABBERARERIN o

BEZENEM(BIMIERTS  FBRER
B IRHBENE N SR REREE -



4

2 N\

y .

Tai United Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z - —+F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less residual values over their estimated useful lives using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries is included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment losses.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value of investment
properties are included in the profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Mining rights

Mining rights that are acquired separately are carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses and are subject to
amortisation upon commissioning of the mine for production.
Amortisation of mining rights is recognised using the unit-of-
production method based on the actual production volume
over the estimated total recoverable reserves contained in
proven and probable reserves at the related mine.

Impairment on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwiill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwiill
above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories represent goods held for resale and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories
are determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories, including loans and receivables, financial assets
at FVTPL and available-for-sale (“AFS") financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFBER @)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including loan note receivable, accounts
receivable, other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
restricted bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition
of interest would be immaterial.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is (i) held-for-trading or (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL.
A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held-for-trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement and disposal
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets and is included in the “revenue”
line item. Fair value is determined in the manner described in
Note 46(c).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFBER @)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period except for unquoted equity
investments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.
Changes in the carrying amount of AFS debt instruments
relating to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method, are recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on
AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFBER @)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past due, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFBER @)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of accounts receivable and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When an
account receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., EREFTBER @)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRTHE@®E)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued) THEERKRATAE)
Equity instruments RATLA

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is held-for-trading.

A financial liability is classified as held-for-trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any interest paid on the financial liabilities and is
included in the “revenue” line item.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFBER @)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accounts and bills payables, other
payables, borrowings, amounts due to related companies,
loan notes, loan from a related company and other liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair values at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedging relationship.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from these
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Control over Haitong Dynamic MultiTranche Investment
Fund IV S.P. (the “Haitong Dynamic Fund”)

On 15 December 2016, the Group has entered into a
subscription agreement with Haitong Global Investment
SPC Il ("Haitong Global”) pursuant to which the Group
agreed to subscribe for 50,000 Class R participating shares
at a total consideration of the United States Dollars (“US$")
50,000,000 of Haitong Dynamic Fund.

Pursuant to Notes 23 and 39, it described Haitong Dynamic
Fund as being controlled by the Group although i) the Group
has only held Class R participating shares of Haitong Dynamic
Fund and the Group is not entitled to appoint any directors to
the board of Haitong Global, which established the Haitong
Dynamic Fund and ii) investment manager of Haitong
Dynamic Fund has existing rights to direct the investment
decision of Haitong Dynamic Fund while the Group has no
right to appoint investment manager of Haitong Dynamic
Fund.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. EASHHBRMAEATTIREE 2

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Control over Haitong Dynamic MultiTranche Investment
Fund IV S.P. (the “Haitong Dynamic Fund”) (Continued)

In making the judgments, the Directors assessed whether or
not the Group has achieved control over the Haitong Dynamic
Fund based on HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and considering the facts that i) the purpose of setting up the
Haitong Dynamic Fund was initiated by the Group and solely
for subscribing loan note issued by an independent third party
(the “Borrower”) and after the subscription of the loan note,
most of the investment capital in the Haitong Dynamic Fund
has been used up and no further investment decisions could
be made until the maturity of the loan note; ii) in accordance
with the subscription agreement, the Group could receive
the residual value from Haitong Dynamic Fund after paying
the principal and target return, which is 6.5% fixed interest
income of the US$150,000,000 principal of the Class P
participating shares; and iii) the Group agreed to provide the
guarantee in favour of the Class P participating shareholders
for the performance of the Haitong Dynamic Fund with the
maximum liability of US$103,000,000. After the assessment
on all the facts in the subscription agreement, the Directors
concluded that Haitong Dynamic Fund created significant
exposure to variability of returns to the Group given that
the expected return of the Haitong Dynamic Fund reached
28% during the two years term and the Group also has to
compensate any potential loss to the Class P participating
shareholders up to US$103,000,000, approximately to
69% of the principal contributed by Class P participating
shareholders, and concluded that the Group has control over
the Haitong Dynamic Fund under HKFRS 10 and the Group
has consolidated the assets and liabilities of Haitong Dynamic
Fund since Haitong Dynamic Fund set up..
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Control over iMEEBREEELBLE(GREE)

Hangzhou Hong Nong Limited Partnership* (“Hong
Nong LP")

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 78§ 7 @b & &
& 1 B BR A 7 Tibet Hong Rong Asset Management Co.
Ltd* (“Tibet Hong Rong”) and I AR EEEEHR A G
Zhejiang Tai Rong Asset Management Co. Ltd* (“Zhejiang
Tai Rong”), wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group, entered
into a limited partnership agreement with 3 T34T 288 & &
& 12 B R A 7] (“Zhejiang Zhenong"), an independent third
party, in relation to the establishment of a limited partnership
called Hong Nong LP with total registered capital of Renminbi
("RMB")140,010,000 (which subsequently reduced to
RMB120,010,000 in June 2017). Zhejiang Tai Rong, Zhejiang
Zhenong and Tibet Hong Rong acted as general partner,
senior-tranche limited partner and junior-tranche limited
partner of Hong Nong LP, respectively.

5. EXSHER AT AREM 2

FERR @)

AT BERNE Y Ew)

HOMERBREEELBLEF (ERER) (£
BER )’

REBEEZZT—+tF+_A=+—HLEFE A
BEARMEEEREARAG (AR AR ) FAE
E2EMBATINIAREEEEBR AR
(T AR ) B — 87 58 = 5 Wi 2 8848
BEEEARARCINTNE DT BRAE
i RREBRR Y —HEATEARZER
AR E - BEMERR AR 140,010,000
T(EERZZE—tFNARLEARE
120,010,0007T) ° T AR - AT & K ik
RRDAETLREER 2 —RERAN BEE
BRAZANLRBEERAEA °



AMEZERARAE —F 55 . i 127

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BT RARMIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z - —+F+_A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Control over iMZEREEELSHBLE(EREE)
Hangzhou Hong Nong Limited Partnership* (“Hong
Nong LP") (Continued)

Pursuant to the limited partnership agreement, Zhejiang
Tai Rong and Tibet Hong Rong collectively invested
33.3% registered capital of Hong Nong LP amounting
to RMB40,010,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$45,233,000). In making the judgment on control over
Hong Nong LP, the Directors assessed whether or not the
Group has achieved control based on HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements and considering the facts that i) the
Group acted in the capacity of general partner who has the
rights to direct the investment decision and the relevant
operating activities of Hong Nong LP; ii) the purpose of setting
up Hong Nong LP was initiated by the Group which solely for
acquisition of distressed debt assets; iii) in accordance with
the limited partnership agreement, the Group could receive
the residual value from Hong Nong LP after repaying the
invested capital, amounting to RMB100,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately to HK$112,800,000) (subsequently reduced
to RMB80,000,000 in June 2017 (equivalent to approximately
to HK$90,240,000)), and the target return, which is 10%
fixed interest income of the invested capital, back to
Zhejiang Zhenong; and iv) the Group agreed to provide the
guarantee in favour of Zhejiang Zhenong for the performance
of the Hong Nong LP with the maximum liabilities of
RMB24,000,000. After the assessment of above facts of the
limited partnership agreement, the Directors concluded that
Hong Nong LP created significant exposure to variability of
returns to the Group and the Group also has to compensate
any potential loss to Zhejiang Zhenong up to RMB24,000,000,
which is 24% (subsequently increase to 30% in June 2017)
of the capital invested by Zhejiang Zhenong, and concluded
that the Group has control over Hong Nong LP under HKFRS
10 and the Group has consolidated the assets and liabilities
of Hong Nong LP since its establishment.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Control over iMEEREEESBLE(GREZE)

Hangzhou Hong Nong Limited Partnership* (“Hong
Nong LP") (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Hong Nong LP
has acquired distressed debt assets through public auction
in the PRC amounting to approximately RMB142,947,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$164,846,000) and part
of the distressed debt assets have been disposed of with
realised gains to approximately RMB33,060,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$38,125,000) and recognised under
distressed debt asset management segment.

In December 2017, the Group has repaid the invested
capital with fixed return amounting to approximately
RMB105,142,000 (equivalent to approximately to
HK$123,621,000, including profits attributable to the third
parties’ interest in consolidated structured entities amounting
to approximately HK$5,929,000) to Zhejiang Zhenong and
Hong Nong LP become the wholly-owned limited partnership
of the Group.

* The English name is for identification purpose only
Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties, including those investment
properties classified as held-for-sale, that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolio and concluded that the
Group's investment properties are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group's deferred taxation on investment properties,
the Directors have determined the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is not
rebutted.

In respect of those investment properties located in the PRC,
the Group recognised additional deferred taxes relating to
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT"”) and Enterprise Income Tax
(“EIT") on changes in fair value of such investment properties
as appropriate. In addition, in respect of those investment
properties located in the UK, the Group also recognised
additional deferred taxes relating to the UK Profits Tax
on changes in fair value of such investment properties as
appropriate.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.

Valuation of investment properties, including those
investment properties classified as assets held-for-sale

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment
properties, including those investment properties classified
as held-for-sale, are stated at fair value of approximately
HK$3,441,828,000 (2016: HK$3,625,760,000) based on the
valuations performed by independent qualified professional
valuers. In determining the fair values, the valuers have made
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties in the same location and conditions and where
appropriate by capitalisation of rental income from properties.

In relying on the valuations, the management of the Group
has exercised their judgments and is satisfied that the
valuation technique used is reflective of the current market
conditions. Details of the investment properties, including
those investment properties classified as held-for-sale, as at
31 December 2017 and 2016 are disclosed in Notes 17 and
32.

Valuation of financial assets designated as at FVTPL —
distressed debt assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s financial assets
designated as at FVTPL in relation to the distressed debt assets
are carried at fair value of approximately HK$446,660,000
(2016: HK$452,600,000). The fair value was determined
based on lower of the fair value of the collaterals of the
distressed debt assets and the carrying amount of the
distressed debt assets according to the terms of relevant
contracts. The collaterals of the distressed debt assets
including plant and machinery, residential, industrial and
commercial buildings, and land use rights in the PRC. The
Group engaged an independent qualified professional valuer
to perform such valuation. A direct comparison approach
was used to determine the fair value of the collaterals of
distressed debt assets by making reference to comparable
market transactions of the collaterals and adjusting according
to the conditions and natures of the collaterals to arrive at
the value for sale under repossession.

Details of the financial assets designated as at FVTPL as at
31 December 2017 and 2016 are set out in Note 26.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of mining rights

While assessing whether any indications of impairment exist
for mining rights, consideration is given to both external
and internal sources of information. External sources of
information of the Group includes changes in the market,
economic and legal environment in which the Group operates
that are not within its control and affect the recoverable
amount of the mining rights. Internal sources of information
includes the manner in which the mining rights are being
used or are expected to be used and indications of economic
performance of the assets and operating results. The carrying
amounts of mining rights are reviewed for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets whenever
certain events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Mining rights are assessed annually to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. The Group's
cash-generating unit ("CGU") for impairment assessment of
mining rights is the cash-generating unit that holds mining
rights (the “Mining CGU").

When an impairment review is undertaken, recoverable
amount is assessed by reference to the higher of 1) value in
use (“VIU") and 2) fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCD").
The best evidence of FVLCD is the value obtained from an
active market or binding sales agreement. Where neither
exists, FVLCD is based on the best information available to
reflect the amount the Group could receive for the Mining
CGU in an arm’s length transaction. The recoverable amount
of the mining rights are determined based on the VIU
calculation and certain key assumptions. VIU calculation used
the discounted future pre-tax cash flows expected to be
derived from the Mining CGU and the Group has engaged
an independent qualified professional valuer to perform
such valuation. The key assumptions used in estimating the
discounted future pre-tax cash flows are tungsten metal
estimated selling price, estimated future costs of production,
estimated future operating costs, recoverable reserves,
resources and exploration potential, discount rates and
exchange rates. Changes in these key assumptions can result
in changes of the carrying amounts of the Group’s mining
rights that may impact the profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of mining rights (Continued)

During the reporting periods, no impairment loss has
recognised for the mining rights as the recoverable amounts
are higher than the respective carrying amounts. Details of
the mining rights as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are
disclosed in Note 20.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the CGU to which goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives have been
allocated, which is the higher of the VIU or FVLCD. The
VIU calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. As at
31 December 2017, goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives have been fully impaired. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are disclosed in Note 21.
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6.

REVENUE 6. U=
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year/period is as REBFE HERE 20T
follows:
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BZE S
—E—tF T REF
+=HA=+—H +=ZHA=+—H
LHEFEE 1EAEAR
FExT FAT
Sale of petrochemical products HEALEM 5,775,660 5,314,254
Sale of metal-related products HE S BIERER 4,841,700 2,553,001
Effective interest income from loan note JEWE R R 2 BEFIE
receivable (Note 23) WA (KiFE23) 217,386 6,798
Changes in fair value of financial assets HEERESRIEE(BR)Z
(liabilities) held-for-trading NIEE 157,049 53,308
Property rental income MERS WA 129,689 2,263
Changes in fair value of financial assets BERBRANEAEZZ
designated as at fair value through SREEZANEE
profit or loss 80,601 150,068
Sale of medical equipment and HEBEIERLA M —RER
other general goods 21,627 21,851
Service fees, commission, broking income and  KE®MEEF L RIRIEES K&
interest income from margin clients from R EH 2 REE
financial services business and insurance & R KT ERA
brokerage business 19,884 1,187
11,243,596 8,102,730
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM"), being the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods or services delivered or rendered and the activities
engaged, is set out below.

For the management purpose, the Group is currently
organised into seven operating divisions summarised as
follows:

(i) Financial services segment — fund investment, provision
of securities and margin financing, trading and
brokerage of futures contracts, asset management,
money lending business and insurance brokerage service
to customers in Hong Kong;

(i) Securities investment segment — trading equity securities
and derivatives in the PRC, Hong Kong and Singapore;

(i)  Commodity trading segment — trading of petrochemical
products and metal-related products in Singapore;

(iv)  Property investment segment — property investment and
leasing of properties in the PRC, Hong Kong and the
UK;

(v) Distressed debt asset management segment — managing
of assets arising from acquisition of distressed debts
assets in the PRC;

(vi)  Mining and exploitation of natural resources segment —
mining and production of tungsten resources activities
in the Republic of Mongolia (“Mongolia”); and

(vii) Other segment — consists of trading of medical
equipment and other general goods in the PRC.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. FERER @
Segment revenue and results DI S R LA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and NN RREE R 2HHEHE D 2 N EBE W
results by operating and reportable segments. REEGE 2 DT o

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_F—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

Mining and

Distressed  exploitation

Financial Securities  Commodity Property  debtasset  of natural
services  investment trading  investment management resources Other Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

RER

TREH IS
SRR BERE BRES NERE EEER RAER At it
TiEn TiEn TER FiEn TER TiEn TER FiEn
Segment revenue Ak 237,210 157,049 10,617,360 129,689 80,601 - 21627 11,243,5%
Segment results i 85,529 117,224 33210 258,905 56,423 (14,29) 185 537,180
Gain on disposal of an associate  HE-FIEE AN 987
Gain on disposal of asubsidiary  HE-FMEAFNE 4,960
Share of results of an associate  AE—HBERAEE (35)
Net foreign exchange gains EplmER 3,424
Unallocated finance costs ROREBRA (110,209)
Central administration costs PRTBER (86,602)

Profit before tax BB ATRR

349,705
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER®)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Nine months ended 31 December 2016

7 R UL ER B SRR ()

BE—F-—AELZA=+—HINEA

Mining and

Distressed ~ exploitation

Financial Securities  Commodity Property debt asset of natural
senvices  investment trading investment  management resources Other Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

RER

TRER BE
SRR FAkE BRES NERE BEER RRER E 5t
TiEn Fiin TR Fiin T Tiin T Tin
Segment revenue AHkE 7,985 53,308 7,867,255 2,263 150,068 - 21,851 8,102,730
Segment results AEE 4718 6,824 (11,602) 298,395 133,193 (1,102) 648 431,074
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary LE-RHBLAAZER (67)

Loss on initial recognition of loan A EREHBE 2 BB

notes (440)
Share of results of an associate A5 —FHERTEE (46)
Net foreign exchange losses EXERFR (60,974)
Unallocated finance costs RABEHRE (67,784)
Central administration costs FROTBER (93,798)
Profit before tax BB ARR 207,965

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales for the reporting periods.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 4.
Segment result represents the profit earned or loss incurred
before tax by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs including Directors’ emoluments, legal
and professional fees, office rentals and other operating
expenses, net foreign exchange gains (losses), unallocated
finance costs, share of results of an associate, loss on initial
recognition of loan notes, gain on disposal of an associate
and gains (losses) on disposal of subsidiaries. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

EXFRER 2 D BREIIRINBEPEE 2K
& o NG BEDEHE -

A2HN MG BEREN TAMBEA SRR Z
SRR - DEEETIER R BLFRTT
BHX(BRESHH ZE2REXER B
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B VpERERRECEE  hE—REE
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER®)
Segment assets and liabilities ITHEERARE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and AEBEREERAIZMoFE D EEREE
liabilities by operating and reportable segment: AT
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—Z2—+F ZE—RF
THET FHET
Segment assets PEHEE
Financial services Rt 1,901,120 2,063,330
Securities investment BHRE 3,178,208 1,846,081
Commodity trading EAmE S 1,377,325 1,194,036
Property investment MERE 3,512,886 3,664,866
Distressed debt asset management TREBKEEESE 454,571 497,256
Mining and exploitation of natural resources  £#BE & #1ER KR E R 457,096 454,584
Other HA 14,884 8,898
Total segment assets PWEERTE 10,896,090 9,729,051
Interest in an associate RS QR R = 15,301
Available-for-sale investments AHEE A 70,919 1,116
Structured deposits HEBEER 89,020 313
Deposits paid for potential acquisitions BEWEEES = 315,225
Unallocated property, plant and equipment ROBYIE - HFEREE 21,871 163,272
Unallocated intangible assets ROELEE 4,155 4,130
Other unallocated corporate assets HEthRDEAREE 86,967 45,611
Consolidated assets REEE 11,169,022 10,274,019
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DEER @)
THEEREE®)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+tF ZE—RF
FET FHTT

Segment liabilities PHAE
Financial services ERbART 1,311,139 1,290,291
Securities investment BHERE 1,049,548 388,365
Commodity trading EAmE S 1,247,682 809,927
Property investment MERE 780,141 1,250,212
Distressed debt asset management TREBEEER 34,771 40,409
Mining and exploitation of natural resources  £#8E & #1ER KR E R 93,679 93,158
Other Hity 3,689 797
Total segment liabilities PEHEBREE 4,520,649 3,873,159
Amounts due to related companies FESERE A RIRUA 192 14,728
Loan notes BERER - 1,412,116
Loan from a related company FERRIZER 121,847 171,444
Unallocated borrowings ROBEE 1,307,498 498,471
Other unallocated corporate liabilities HiRDEARIBE 35,830 71,871
Consolidated liabilities RERE 5,986,016 6,041,789

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

REENHRAREN M ZHERAEME ¢

BN —RBE QR s - IHEEZR
B ERUER - BalEze R -
AOEME - BERRE  RORETLE
EREMARDEAREE(ETBEBERD
FRTTHEBR RN MBEEEHN R

ERERAZHmE -

e all assets are allocated to operating and reportable .
segments other than interest in an associate, available-
for-sale investments, structured deposits, deposits paid
for potential acquisitions, unallocated property, plant
and equipment, unallocated intangible assets and
other unallocated corporate assets (including primarily
unallocated bank balances and cash).

BRENBIEQRZIA  BEXER  BEQ
AZER - RAOBEEREMBRD AR
BESN ABEREINRERZE R 2R

S -

e all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable .
segments other than amounts due to related companies,
loan notes, loan from a related company, unallocated
borrowings and other unallocated corporate liabilities.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER @)
Geographical information @& R
The Group operates in five principal geographical areas — REERDBEFEM R —FNE - A8 - F
Singapore, the PRC, Hong Kong, the UK and Mongolia. B HEREEETRE -
The Group's revenue from external customers by location of RNEEIRIERANE A B 2@ B E 5 R B IMD
the relevant subsidiary’s operations and information about its BERPWm kikEERBMESI D 2 IERDEE
non-current assets by physical location of assets are detailed BERFBET
below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets (Note)
RENBEFE FRBEE(FF)
Nine months
Year ended ended At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B2 EE
-l of -3 ZE-REF R® i\
+=A=t-B +ZA=1—H —E-tf ZTRF
LtEE @A +=A=t—-B +ZA=1—H
TR THR TR THT
Singapore EemlbE 10,694,572 7,858,292 3,830 2,607
The PRC F 193,580 174,489 1,688,616 1,586,064
Hong Kong e 315,647 68,575 36,988 226,396
The UK HE 39,797 1,374 1,083,038 2,062,861
Mongolia B - - 457,022 454,553
11,243,596 8,102,730 3,269,494 4,332,431
Note: Non-current assets excluded loan note receivable, available-for- Mzt : IERPHEETBIEENESRZE « ajtHEY

sale investments, pledged bank deposits and deferred tax assets. &« BEBBITERRERIBEE
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about major customers
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group for the corresponding year/period

which exposed the Group to customers’ concentration risk
are as follows:

DEE R ()
FEEFZER
MIARERE A S B EEE S £ AR

AREESREEEN0% A L HEF Wz HE
T

Nine months

Year ended ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

BZE S

—E—+tF ZE—REF

+=HA=+—-8 +=—A=+—H

LHFEE 1EAEAR

FET FAT
Customer A BEPA N/A RE A" 4,919,6932
Customer B ®FB 6,291,6452 N/A T

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.

2 Revenue from commodity trading segment.

Other than Customer A and Customer B, there was no
revenue from other customers individually contributing over
10% of the total revenue of the Group for the reporting
periods.

' Bk ET BAAEEBWEERMI0% MU E

’ KEEmE S0 Eb e -

BREPAREFBIN - BEER B EME P Wt
R RAEEARERREBETRN0%IAL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z - —+F+_A=+—HIFE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HAslr A
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
Bz #H=
—E—tF —E—REF
+t=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
IHFE 1EV@E A
FHET FHT

Interest income from: REUTEEZFBHEA

— restricted bank deposits —ZRHIRITER 28,284 8,790

— bank and time deposits —RIT R EEIER 5,931 4,195
Commission rebate on trading securities BEEFRF e 2,365 -
Sundry income BB 4,359 3,162

40,939 16,147

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HftzmREE
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BZ H=
—E—+F ZE—RF
+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
LFE 1EUE A
THET FAT

Changes in fair value of financial derivative EEITEEHN 2 AAEEZE

contracts 103,854 4,104
Gain (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HEH BRI (E1E)

(Note 49) (Bt7E49) 52,220 (67)
Net foreign exchange gains (losses) b 5w (8518 ) F 78 3,424 (60,974)
Changes in fair value of structured deposits A X A/NIR =) 1,407 160
Gain on disposal of an associate (Note 22) o — R S A RIS (B RE22) 987 -
Profits attributable to the third parties’ FEoRGEEBERY

interest in consolidated structured entities ez PR A (82,001) (2,486)
Impairment loss on goodwill and mEMEREEREEBE

intangible assets (Notes 18, 19 and 21) (FF5E18 ~ 19%21) (38,408) -
Impairment loss on accounts and other R M5B 5 e EL At RRIBDR(E

receivable (Notes 27 and 29) [E518 (727 129) (7,746) (40)
Loss on initial recognition of loan MFERE R IEEE(M37)

notes (Note 37) - (440)

33,737 (59,743)

Tai United Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10. TSR AS
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
Bz #H=
—ZE—+F ZE—RF
+=HA=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
LHEFEE 1EV@E A
FET FAT
Interest expenses on T3 FERIFEFAE

— secured bank borrowings —BERRITEE 54,640 8,704
— other borrowings —EAfbiEE 50,776 -
— margin financing —REZME 29,506 17,825
— loan notes —BEREE 29,421 30,626
— loan from a related company ——REREZER 10,507 131
— vendor financing loan —EBREER 1,123 2,991

— loans from Tai He Financial Group Limited —AMEpEEBRAR
("Tai He Financial”) (IRHMew )2 ER - 32,278
Others Hith 1,815 8,089

177,788 100,644
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FTEHBA X
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
Bz S
—EB—+tF T REF
+=—A=+—HB +=—A=+—H
LFE 1EAEAR
FET FAT
Current tax: RITHIIE

The PRC EIT P EIREFRIST 26,817 4,849
Singapore Corporate Tax (“CIT") IR (T RERD 12,689 9,677
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNED 11,800 1,464
The UK Profits Tax EREFMEH 20,927 29
72,233 16,019

Overprovision in prior year: M EFERBRERE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNIEH (226) -
The PRC EIT P EIREPRIST (195) (1,604)
Singapore CIT N = (106)
(421) (1,710)
Deferred tax (Note 40) FEIEFIAE (MI5E40) (34,198) 152,549
37,614 166,858
Hong Kong Profits Tax and Singapore CIT are calculated at EEMNER LRI IEDER D RIREFEE
16.5% and 17.0%, respectively, on the estimated assessable B M BT E R B % 712 16.5% & 17.0% =

profit for the year/period. o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z - —+F+_A=+—HIFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the "EIT Law") and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the PRC EIT rate of
subsidiaries of the Group operating in the PRC was 25% or at
a lower concessionary rate of 9% for subsidiaries operating in
the Tibet Autonomous Region for the year/period.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Mongolia are subject to
Mongolian income tax which is calculated at the rate of 10%
on the first 3 billion Mongolian Turgrik (“MNT") of estimated
taxable income and 25% on the amount in excess thereof.
No provision for Mongolian income tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as there are no assessable
profits for the year/period.

The UK Profits Tax is calculated at 19.25% (nine months
ended 31 December 2016: 20%) of estimated assessable
profit for the year ended 31 December 2017.

1. IS8R @

RETFBEERAESPOE([REMERE]D) ki
EFSBURERGD - RFE /P8 A%H
R B2 A B R R R BRI SBA ER
B25% BN B RE LB AR /9%
BIEBERE -

RETFMALANBE R BAMPNST & E
FTiSH BB DA G ERFRRAS
3,000,000,0005 & EE 25 ([ R H EEE
7 )RI0% M EGE - B E1HER25% 8
MEFTE - HRFE AR M E £ ERT R
- B AR RERE FIEHRE AR & RS
Ve A -

HEAMNSHIREREZE_ZT—tF+=A
=+ — A LEFEOMGERBEFIEZ19.25%
(BE-T-—ARE+-_A=+—RHIAEA :
20%)5HE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 E—F—+&F+-A=+—HI- 5%

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax expense for the year/period can be reconciled
to the profit before tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

1. 8% @

FEPEAMEHRAY RGBSR EMEE
Wk 2 BRI RS R SR T

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BZE #H=
—EB—+tF —EREF
+=A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
LFE 1EV@E A
FHT FHT
Profit before tax B A58 A A 349,705 207,965
Tax calculated at the applicable domestic BARMBERAMSHEAE B
income tax rates (Note) TE(MEE) 77,062 64,143
Tax effect of expenses not deductible THIBF S 2 B2
for tax purpose 50,954 23,585
Tax effect of income not taxable BERGA 2 B E
for tax purpose (37,311) (297)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERIEE R 2 G 2 18,568 36,139
Utilisation of tax losses previously AIHARERIBEE 28 A
not recognised (15,043) -
Effect of concessionary tax rate of subsidiaries 75’:‘@%@2 EpEIEF %i‘%ZW%
operating in the Tibet Autonomous Region AEENR TR (5,316) (22,322)
Overprovision in prior year E@iif;ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂ% (421) (1,710)
Deferred tax effect of LAT in respect of BRMRFBEREMELAAE
change in fair value of the investment BE) 2 TIIRET CIRLER
property located in the PRC e 7 (49,414) 68,451
Exemption and allowance from Singapore BTN %P < B
tax authority e (1,465) (1,131)
Income tax expense for the year/period FE/HEAEHAY 37,614 166,858

Note: The amounts represented the combined effect of the
group entities basing on actual tax rates applicable for each
jurisdiction where the relevant group entities operate, taking

into account of applicable tax concession, if any.

BaE : S

NREASEERIREAHEEERLE
ESREEBEREANERTE - &5 M8
ABRER(IE)NAHEE -
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12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD 12. £ HREF
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
Bz HE
—E—+tF ZE—REF
+=HA=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
LFE 1ENE A
FET FAT
Profit for the year/period has been arrived after £/E BRI FI J548 305 (G A)
charging (crediting): T &IB18ED -
Directors’ emoluments (Note 13) FHRE% (FHEE13) 27,603 11,611
Other staff costs: Hh 8 TRA -
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind —F® R REDNR 74,741 30,351
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions —RPNEFFT SR 2,722 1,163
Total staff costs BT AAMERE 105,066 43,125
Auditor's remuneration ZEENEN S 4,780 3,964
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense B R AR ZFERA 10,658,280 7,882,354
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #73% - = LR EITE 20,425 5,667
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE 1,342 250
Legal and professional fee (Note) FEREESER (M) 33,142 66,424
Operating lease rental in respect of office BEAMAEECKEHERS
premises 28,501 18,619
Gross rental income from investment properties & ¥ FTEHE S WA LEEE (129,689) (2,263)
Less: direct operating expenses arising from B EEHSBWAZIREMERR
investment properties that generated rental EXCEELSERY
income 1,292 46
(128,397) (2,217)
Note: Legal and professional fees mainly related to various corporate MisT : S HIR AR R EE BRI EHEAEERED
projects of the Group including acquisitions and disposal ¥XEEHEH - BIEM 48 49 FE 2 Wi hE
of subsidiaries as disclosed in Notes 48 and 49 during the HEWB AT ©

reporting periods.
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 1.8 EETHAEREESHNS

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
The following table sets forth certain information in respect TREF PN MEHEEFEEZETER
of the Directors during the reporting periods:

Date of appointment

as the directors Date of
Name Position of the Company resignation
BZER
#E B ANAESAH FHMEAH
Mr. Chen Weisong Chief executive officer and executive Reappointed on 27 October N/A (Note i)
director 2017 (Note i)
BRELSTE THRHFNTES RZE—tHTAZTHRAER  TEAHE)
R (W)
Mr. Xu Ke Executive director 1 June 2016 N/A
[Clpis HITESR —E-R"ERA-H TEm
Mr. Ye Fei Executive director 28 October 2016 N/A
EFS HITER “EXETAZTNE TEH
Mr. Wang Qiang Executive director 16 December 2016 N/A
FREE HiTES ZE-RFTZATRA TEA
Mr. Hu Yebi Executive director 11 July 2014 28 October 2016
R ELE HWiTES ZT-EELAT—H ZE-RETAZTNR
Mr. Chua Chairman and executive director Reappointed on 1 February 11 July 2017 (Note ii)
2017 (Note i)
B4 IEFNTES R-_Z—+F_f—BEH “T—tFE AR

Dr. Meng Zhaoyi

Chief executive officer and executive
director

BEZE (W)
24 May 2016 (Note iii)
—T—FRA-1mA

24 October 2017 (Note iii)
T —+F+ A+ B (M)

AMESL THRHFNTES (B i)

Dr. Liu Hua Executive director 8 January 2016 9 October 2017

WEsE L HITESR “Z-"F-ANR “E—tF+TANA

Dr. Gao Bin Independent non-executive director 20 November 2015 N/A

=AERL BUFRTES —Z-R¥t+—AZTH TEm

Ms. Liu Yan Independent non-executive director 18 June 2015 N/A

£l aw BUFRTES “Z-RERATNE NER

Mr. Tang King Shing Independent non-executive director 1 February 2017 N/A

HEmEE BUFRTES “T—t+tF-R-H NER

Mr. Mao Kang Fu Independent non-executive director 5 January 2016 Passed away on 7 December 2017
BRAELE BUFRTES —Z-R"F¥-ARRA RIE—FTAtHEE
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13. DIR

ECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

Mr. Chen Weisong was appointed as an executive director of
the Company effective from 22 June 2016 and resigned for
this position on 25 April 2017. Mr. Chen was reappointed as
chief executive officer and executive director of the Company
effective from 27 October 2017.

Mr. Chua was appointed as chairman and executive director of
the Company effective from 19 January 2016 and resigned for
these positions on 8 July 2016. Mr. Chua was reappointed as
chairman and executive director of the Company effective from
1 February 2017 and resigned for these positions on 11 July
2017.

Dr. Meng Zhaoyi was appointed as an executive director of
the Company effective from 24 May 2016 and being the chief
executive officer of the Company effective from 8 June 2016.
Dr. Meng was resigned as the chief executive officer and the
executive officer effective from 27 October 2017.

13.EE - FETHAEREEME

(%)
G

U]

(i)

(iii)

PRENEEEZERRRRNITES - BT
—ANERNAZTZAREY - WRZF—+tF
MAZ+RBETUILEA - BREEEEFRET
RARFITHAZZNTES BT —tF
+A=Zt+tEBRBER -

BRLEZERANRALIERITESE B
T—RF-ATARRER TR -FT—RF
T ANEBHEULRAL - EEESHEZERE
FERATES BT tF-A—-HEE
BN —E-—LFLA T -BREZRER

fi o

TREETEZTARRARRNITESE A%
—ANFRAZTMARLEY  BAKRARITH
BE - BT AFAANBRBEN - RZFL
BITREEENTESE  A-T—+tF1+A
ol o = a0 2y
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 13.8EE - FETHAERESMHNE

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#&)

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ (a) EERFETHAEME
emoluments
Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the FE/HEEEREBITRAE ZHEIR
year/period, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing BER EmARR R A REOIRELNT

Rules and CO, is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_F—+Ff+_A=+—HILFE
Mr. Chen Mr. Wang Dr. Meng Dr. Liu
Weisong  Mr.XuKe  Mr. Ye Fei Qiang  Mr. Chua Zhaoyi Hua Total

HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
REQEE  BUEE  BREE O IRRE BRE ZREET  EEL #E
TR  TRr  TEr  TEn TR TEr  TEn  TER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HEz
Fees i - - - - - - = =
Other emoluments Httble
Salaries, allowances e EHREMHA
and benefits in kind 1,881 6,360 4304 4,349 3327 3,850 2,15 26,223
Retirement benefits scheme RIVERE AR
contributions " 18 18 120 9 15 14 205
Subtotal g 1,892 6,378 430 4,469 3,336 3,865 2,166 26,428
Mr. Tang Mr. Mao
Dr. Gao Bin Ms. Liu Yan King Shing Kang Fu Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEfT Y+ HERLE BEXR %4 ekl
TR T FET TR T
INDEPENDENT NON- BUFRTES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Fees ik 300 300 275 300 1,175
Other emoluments Hiie - - - - -
Subtotal et 300 300 275 300 1,175

Total Bk 27,603
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13.EE - FETHAEREEME
(#%)

(a) EEREERTRAEME @)

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’
emoluments (Continued)

Nine months ended 31 December 2016 BE_—F-—ANF+-A=+—HINBA

Mr. Chen Mr.Ye  Mr.Wang Dr. Meng Dr. Li Mr. Hu
Weisong ~ Mr. Xu Ke Fei Qiang Mr.Chua  Zhaoyi Hua Yebi Total
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
REMEE  #7%E  ERrE IRRE BRE ZHERL  OBEL £HB%4 k]
T T T Tin TR T T T T
EXECUTIVEDIRECTORS ~ Hif7ES
Fees e - - - - - - - - -
Other emoluments EtiMe
Salaries, allowances e BURED
and benefits in kind iz 1,964 2,108 679 286 806 3,028 1,856 W 10867
Retirement benefits
scheme contributions BB 11 9 3 7 6 12 14 7 69
Subtotal i) 1,975 2117 682 293 812 3,040 1870 147 10,936
Mr. Mao Dr. Gao Ms. Liu
Kang Fu Bin Yan Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERAEE =EEL 2% 7 1 ok
FET FHET FHET FHT
INDEPENDENT NON- BYFBITES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Fees we 225 225 225 675
Other emoluments Hipiie - - - -
Subtotal Nt 225 225 225 675
Total st 11,611




150 \ | . Tai United Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z - —+F+_A=+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 1.8 EETHAEREESHNS

EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#&)

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ (a) EERFETHAEMES @®)
emoluments (Continued)
The executive directors’ and chief executives’ FERATATESZRFETRABNEE
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services T RBEERARR T RME AR 2
in connection with the management of the affairs of BRGNS o ERMTRZE T IEATT
the Company and its subsidiaries. The independent non- EE N FENAMBEEEAARE
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were E2RBMEA -

mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors REEEE - AREBERES M
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or B - ERMAREESMARERE 2
as compensation for loss of office during the reporting BEEN Sk IE B 2 FE -

periods.

There were no arrangements under which a director EERME AR R EL MESR B RE
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the RIS BT Z B ©

reporting periods.
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 13.8EE - FETHAERESMHNE

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#&)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEMS
The five highest paid employees of the Group during HE-_Z-—R"F+-_A=+—HIENHE
nine months ended 31 December 2016 included four R FAEBRER=FIMEERENRE
directors (year ended 31 December 2017: five directors), FEEHEZ—+tF+ZA=+—HLF
details of whose remuneration are set out in the E:RRES)  EeEN EXERE -
disclosures above. Details of the remuneration for the BHE-_Z—R"F+A=1+—HILNE
nine months ended 31 December 2016 of the remaining A #8T—E2&aFiEES (WIERQF
one highest paid employee who are neither a director ERRTETHABR) ZMESFBOT ¢

nor chief executive of the Company are as follows.

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BZE HE
—E—+tF ZE—REF
+=A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
LFE 1ENE A
FET FAT
Salaries, allowance and other benefits in kind ¥ « 8 R EMEYEF - 1,450
Retirement benefits scheme contributions — iRVRAEFIFH 24 5k - 14
- 1,464
The number of the highest paid employee who is not WIERAREFKEZITHRAE BBEN
director nor chief executive of the Company whose TRy &Sy e HMEESBWNT -
remuneration fell within the following band is as
follows:
No. of employees
EE®R
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BZE HE
—E—tF ZE—RF
+=HA=+—8 +=ZHA=+—H
IFE IENEAR
FE T FAT
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 T2

1,500,000/ 7T = 1
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14. DIVIDENDS 14. BRE
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
Bz S
—EB—+tF —EREF
+=HA=+—H +=ZHA=+—H
LHEFEE 1EAEAR
FExT FAT
Dividends for ordinary shareholders NS S G S |
of the Company recognised as BRIWHER B IR IS -
distribution during the year/period:
2017 Interim — HK1.81 cents ZE—CFRE-FR1.817L
(2016 Interim: Nil) per share (ZE—RFhi: &) 95,025 —

No dividend has been proposed for ordinary shareholders of B A B R DASR A A [A) AR A B3 i AR AR SR R
the Company since the end of the reporting periods. AR ©

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. SR &R
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to RATHA NEENEREREF TIIRE TS
the owners of the Company is based on the following data: HIEATH -
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BZE #H=E
—E—+tF ZE—RF
+=HA=+—H +=—HA=+—H
LFE 1EV@E A
FHT FHT
Earnings B F
Profit for the year/period attributable AR EERERBRFK AT
to owners of the Company for the HEABGEEHREF
purpose of basic earnings per share 312,096 41,263
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z - —+F+_A=+—HIFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

15. BRR &R (@)

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
‘000 ‘000
Bz S
—E—+tF ZE—RF
+=HA=+—8 +=—A=+—H
LHEFEE 1EAEAR
TR T
Number of shares BRHOEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FARFTESREARZF|H L @A
for the purpose of calculation of basic T8
earnings per share 5,149,656 2,123,430

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the weighted average
number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic earnings
per share has been adjusted for the issuance of shares as
consideration for acquisition of the Tai Infinite Group in
March 2017. Details of the acquisition are set out in Note
48(i)(9)-

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016, the weighted
average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
calculation of basic earnings per share has been adjusted
for the subscription of rights shares and share placing in
November and December 2016 (details are disclosed in Notes
41(a) and 41(b)), respectively.

No diluted earnings per share for the year/period were
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue
during the year/period.

HE-Z—+F+-A=+—BIFE - AR
SREERERANNIMEFHHERR -F
—EF=ABETROESKRBARAREEZRE
TR o WIBFH BRI HTTE48()9)

HE-"ZT-—REF+-_A=+—HBILWEA " A
R ESREREFN T BRI FIIHD 5
R-T—RF+— AN+ AREHRRA
ETRMEEELAE - FE2RRHEE41a)
K41 (b)HEE °

RANFE /BRI ES BITEELAER - B
E2FFEPEGREERN -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - MERRE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements equipment Machinery vehicles Aircraft Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BA EERE
HEXB RBAERE HE RE it &5t
T Tk Tk T Tin TiEn
cost B
At 1 April 2016 RZZE-"ENA-A 2,643 6,804 - 3,075 - 12,612
Additions HE 5270 3919 - 12,376 - 21,565
Acquired through acquisiton of 8~ EBMEE—FIHBLAAER
subsiciary (Note 48(f) (480 . . . . 155,000 155,000
Exchange realignment [E R HE (163) (340) - (36) - (539)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-7"E+ZA=1+-H 7,750 10,473 - 15,415 155,000 188,638
Additions AR 1,752 3,624 2,302 4,884 - 12,562
Acquired through acquisition of ERNE-RHBATES
asubsidiary (Note 48(1)(g)) (Fi£48(ig) - - - 4250 - 4250
Disposals through disposal of BRLE-RNBARLE
asubsidiry (Note 49(c)) (Fiz¥49(0) - - - - (155,000 (155,000)
Exchange realignment B A% 301 420 - 176 - 897
At 31 December 2017 RZB—tF+-A=t+-A 9,803 14517 2302 24,125 - 51,347

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Rif#fE

At 1 April 2016 R=Z-"FMA-A 135 240 - 76 - 451
Provided for the period BhEE 1,067 1480 - 1552 1,568 5,667
Exchange realignment B AR (13) (31) - () - 47)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—"E+ZA=1-A 1,189 1689 - 1625 1,568 6,071
Provided for the year Enis 2,404 3338 460 4812 9411 20,425
Eliminated on disposals HERR - - - - (10,979) (10,979)
Exchange realignment B % n 110 - 3 - M3
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZA=1-H 3664 5,137 460 6,469 - 15,730
CARRYING VALUES REE

At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZA=1-H 6,139 9,330 1842 18,256 - 35,617
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+ZA=1+-H 6,561 8784 - 13,790 153,432 182,567
The above items of property, plant and equipment are EaiE - BERBRERET ARE 2 AT F e
depreciated, after taking into account of their estimated BEBUNESFIZATERRTE

residual values, on a straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of HERE MHEFHHSF
term of the lease (B £ A%)
or 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20% 10 33.3% G BERERPAERE 20%%33.3%

Machinery 20% t0 33.3% e 20%%£33.3%

Motor vehicles 20% 10 33.3% AE 20%%33.3%

Aircraft 14.3% o 14.3%
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. REM%E

HK$'000
FHT
FAIR VALUE DNRE

At 1 April 2016 RZZE—RFMNHA—H -
Additions NE 1,261,374

Acquired through acquisition of subsidiaries FBUEMN B A RER
(Note 48(i)(c) and Note 48(i)(d)) (P EE48(3) () R it 5E48(3)(d)) 2,049,856
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss PRIERAER 2 R ERE 304,430
Exchange realignment T 4, 3 B 10,100
At 31 December 2016 R-E—RF+-HA=t—H 3,625,760

Acquired through acquisition of subsidiaries FERUEN B A RS
(Note 48(i)(q)) (BM7E480)(g)) 606,529
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss REmAER 2 A EE 148,875
Reclassified as held-for-sale (Note 32) BB RFELE(MIFE32) (660,000)

Disposals
Disposals through disposal of a subsidiary

e (111,817)
BRHE—HMBARNE

(Note 49(b)) (P5E49(0)) (1,189,720)
Exchange realignment R 342,201
At 31 December 2017 R_ZE—+F+=-_A=+—H 2,761,828

Nine months

Year ended ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

BZE HE

—E—+tF —E—RF

+=—A=+—HB +=—A=+—H

LEE 1EAEA

FET FAT
Unrealised gains on investment properties FPAGEBEm L EMEERE

revaluation included in consolidated RAZEREYES L 2R

statement of profit or loss and other B

comprehensive income 63,986 304,430

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted
for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2017 and the date of reclassification to assets
held-for-sales have been arrived at on the basis of valuations
carried out by Cushman & Wakefield LLP and APAC Asset
Valuation and Consulting Limited (“APAC") (2016: Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporation Appraisal and Advisory Limited
("JLL"), GVA Grimley Limited and APAC), independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group.

AEBFRERBLEHEERBARRESNE
BEARREZDERRDERRAERAGEL
DERARIERRENE -

REEZRENER-_ZT—+F+_A=+—
BEREFOEERHEHENEEZEAZAR
BNREAEEVEMEE B LA EREEM
{BETCushman & Wakefield LLP & 55 A & EE 7T
FEMRBRAR(TER)(ZE—XRF : 2
BT A REABR AR ([ E8T]) -
GVA Grimley Limited %2 25 K ) 9 Bl 7 2 B
EE -
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17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

In determining the fair values of the investment properties,
the Group engages independent qualified professional valuers
to perform the valuation. The management of the Group
works closely with them to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model and explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair values of the investment properties to
the board of directors.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used
during the year ended 31 December 2017. In estimating
the fair values of the investment properties for disclosure
purpose, the highest and the best use of the investment
properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used).

17. BEWE @)

IEEREMEZANENS  AREREE
VEBREXEMGEMETHE AREEEE
HBREZRTAE AT ZEN ZERGER
MEBARE  YAEFSERREVELIL
BEREZER

RBEZZE—+F+A=+—HIFE
REERMEZS - MMEFHERERZ 2K
EMEANER  REVMEZERARERS
RERBRE -

TRINFZERENEANBEZEETAZE
B OCE R AERM AT AEARE) -

Investment Valuation Significant observable/
properties technique unobservable input(s) Sensitivity
REME fEER M EATEE FUBREARE HRE

Residential property units Market comparable

Market price of comparable properties

A significant increase in the market

located in the UK approach ranging from GBP1,602 to GBP3,313 price per square foot used would
(2016: GBP3,000) per square foot, by result in a significant increase in
taking into accounts of the accessibility,  fair value, and vice versa.
size, locations and condition and
environment of properties
IR ER 2 FEME TSt EA AELEMEZ THEBRABTART  SRNETHFRTSERAELEM,
v} T1602RFE333HFE(ZFT—N HERRAAREREEZN - R2ZTF

4 3000 EE) -

Eh2EAEE -

R o

R LB RIGEHARDERE

Hotel facility located in
the PRC

Income approach

t0 4.5%)

Gross monthly rental income of RMB
6,600,000 (2016: RMB6,600,000)
Term yield: 1.0% to 4.5% (2016: 1.0%

A slight increase in the term yield
and reversionary yield used would
result in a significant decrease in
fair value, and vice versa.

Reversionary yield: 1.5% to 5.0% (2016:

1.5% 10 5.0%)
iR B2 EESRE KA

AW AL A AREE,600,0007T
(ZZ—% : AR¥6,600,0007T)
BEHEHE : 1.0%E4.5%(=F

ERANERDHE RERDHRE )
R BB A AEARERD
R IREA

—NF 1.0%FE4.5%)
EREHME : 1 5%E5.0%(=F
—NF 1.5%%E5.0%)
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REW =)
Details of the Group's investment properties and information RNZE—tEFER_ET-—RE+_A=+—H"
under Level 3 fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2017 REEREMEZHBERE=ZBRAAERBRE
and 2016 are as follows and there were no transfers out of BN - RAARERE - SIEEgE=EEY

level 3 during the reporting periods:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+tF ZE—REF
FET FET
Commercial property units located in the UK /A BB 7 B 2 8B - 988,425
Residential property units located in the UK R ERE 2 (FEYEBN 1,080,848 1,074,375
A hotel facility located in the PRC AR B 2B S 3R 1,680,980 1,562,960
2,761,828 3,625,760
18. GOODWILL 18. BE
HK$'000
FAT
COST o
At 1 April 2016 RZZE—RFMNHA—H -
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 484(ii)) Fa U BE BT BB A B BT EE A (B RE48(iN) 12,014
At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 RZE—RF+-_A=1+—HEK
—E—+F+A=+—H 12,014
IMPAIRMENT wE
At 1 April 2016 and 31 December 2016 RIZZE-—RFHNA—ARZT—RF
+=—A=+—8© -
Impairment loss recognised EHERREEE 12,014
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+-A=+—H 12,014
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+_A=+—H -
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+-A=+—H 12,014
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are BREAREFHENS S ER 21 E -

disclosed in Note 21.
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B &=
Trading Vehicle
rights and license  Customers'
licenses plates  relationship Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RBERER BHE EFER @5t
FAT THL TR THT
COST BA
At 1 April 2016 RZZ—"FHA—HR - - - -
Acquired through acquisition of subsidiaries BB B A 714
(Note 48(i)(a), (i)(b),(i)Xe) (FE48()(@), (i)b), ) e) &
and Note 48(ii) rE4s(i)) 8,355 4,130 20,131 32,616
At 31 December 2016 RZB—RE+ZA=1+—H 8,355 4,130 20,131 32,616
Acquired through acquisition of subsidiaries 7 B EEM B A AL
(Note 48(i)(g)) (FHEE48()(9)) - 25 - 25
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t+$+ZA=1—H 8,355 4,155 20,131 32,641

AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BHELRE

At 1 April 2016 RZZ—REMNA-H - - - -
Provided for the period HRAHE - - 250 250
At 31 December 2016 RZE—"F+-A=1+—-H - - 250 250
Provided for the year FREE - - 1,342 1,342
Impairment loss recognised (Note 21) BERRESE(HE21) 7,855 - 18,539 26,394
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=RA=1+—H 7,855 - 20,131 27,986
CARRYING VALUES BREE

At 31 December 2017 R=FT—+F+-A=1+—H 500 4,155 - 4,655

At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+=A=1—H 8,355 4,130 19,881 32,366
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 19. BILEE (@)

The trading rights and licenses represents the eligibility rights
to trade on or through the Stock Exchange and The Hong
Kong Futures Exchange Limited and insurance brokerage
license and have no foreseeable limit to the period over which
the Group can use to generate cash flows. In addition, the
vehicle licence plates were issued by the relevant authorities
in the PRC and Hong Kong with no expiration dates.

As a result, the trading rights and licenses and vehicle licence
plates are considered by the management of the Group
as having indefinite useful lives. These trading rights and
licenses and vehicle licence plates will not be amortised until
their useful lives are determined to be finite and they are
carried at cost less any subsequent impairment losses, if any.
Instead, they will be tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Particulars regarding impairment
testing on trading rights and licenses are disclosed in Note
21 and the management of the Group determined that there
was no impairment of vehicle licence plates as their market
value exceeds their carrying amount as at the end of the
reporting periods.

Customers’ relationship arising from the acquisition of Hui Kai
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“Hui Kai Holdings”) as
disclosed in Note 48(ii) were initially recognised at fair value
and amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful
lives of 15 years and any identified impairment losses.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group
disposed of its 67% equity interest in Best Future Investments
Limited (“Best Future”) in which Best Future had recognised
customers’ relationship as part of its intangible assets upon
completion of the acquisition of Hui Kai Holdings in 2016.
Details of the disposal are disclosed in Note 57. Accordingly,
the Directors conducted an impairment assessment on the
carrying amount of customers’ relationship at 31 December
2017. Considering that the disposal consideration is lower
than proportionate net assets value of Best Future at the
date of disposal and accordingly, impairment losses have
been recognised on customers’ relationship of amounting to
approximately HK$18,539,000.

RHERERENSE BB REERNER
ZIBRRRIETR P 26 BREN RRBE
iR AEBERTTRLELRSREZ BEH
A AITRRIRBIFTARR  tboh - JAERE B
BN BB R B E AP - WEER A -

At AEEEEER DR HHENER R EH
ERAEERBERFY - ZEXHELMER
REWFEH TSN EEREZERF
HAA I TE A R IR I (R S IR AR AR A () ELARORL
EERKX(WA) AR - kil - WEFEHTREHHE
RAREAGEHMBERE - ARESESF(HER
F)EZRENH - BRI 51 K RRER
AZFHBERME21HE - REAEEEREET
BRI ERE - YRR ERRERRZT
EBHEREE -

Yo B PE S A R 2% B) e EL BT /8 2 =) (T FE %
) EE A 2 B P RBR (BN P 248 i) T I 58 ) 1)
IR R SEER RS 2 EEHERF AR
BEAOEEE MR ERARERK -

RERRE - AEEHETHERERRESR
BRABNER])67% 2 It - FERR TR
FRRBBEINERE  CHRAETNEFH
BFRENBDELEE - HEFBRERWE
57 At EER T —tFF+-A=1—
B EFPEERIRAEETREN S - €EE
HERBERN L E B HES eI fl# A
BEFE  CREPRRERREBESEY
18,539,000/ 7T ©
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20. MINING RIGHTS 20. ZRIERE

HK$'000
FET
COST [FZS
At 1 April 2016, 31 December 2016 and RZZE—RFMHA—AH - ZF—RF
31 December 2017 +ZA=F+—HR_ZE—+tF
+=-A=+—H 1,003,034
IMPAIRMENT RE
At 1 April 2016, 31 December 2016 RZZ—REMA—A —ZZF—XF
and 31 December 2017 +-A=F+—HBEK-_ZF—+t%F
+=-A=+—8 548,493
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 RZBE—RF+_A=+—H8BK
—E—+F+=-A=+—H 454,541

The mining rights represent the rights to conduct mining
activities in the location of Nogoonnuur Soum and Tsengel
Soum of Bayan-Ulgii Aimag in Mongolia. The mining rights
in Nogoonnuur Soum have remaining legal lives of 14 to
18 years, expiring in July 2031, March 2033 and December
2035. The mining right in Tsengel Soum of Bayan-Ulgii
Aimag has a remaining legal life of 19 years, expiring in July
2036. The mining licenses are issued by Mineral Resources
and Petroleum Authority of Mongolia and may be extended
for two successive additional periods of 20 years each. The
Directors are of the opinion that the application for extension
is procedural and the Group should be able to renew its
mining licenses at minimal charges, until all the proven
and probable minerals have been mined. No active mining
operation of the Group has taken place yet during the year.
The Directors expect that the exploitation of the mines will
take place no later than the end of 2021.

Mining rights are included in the mining and exploitation
of natural resources segment which is a CGU, representing
the Group’s subsidiaries — Kainarwolfram LLC and Ikh Uuliin
Erdenes LLC that holds mining rights for the purpose of
impairment testing. Particulars regarding impairment testing
on mining rights are disclosed in Note 21.

REREIREHEERIIEEKEFBRT R
%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@Z%ﬂ~mM§%@ﬁ
Zﬁﬁ%ﬂ%%iﬁ%%mimﬁ DRIRZ

—Ft+tA ZEZ=ZF-AR-ZT=HF
+_ﬂﬁﬁ MEE%ﬂ%éﬁmﬁmZ%ﬁ
EFRSETFEA19F  RE="FLAE
W BEERFRRBRIHEHEEERRARE
BREE  BEBHRN  BX20F c EE
RE - HEEEETRABRRET  HASLE
JERERERTOERMETEANEL BE
FrEFRARMGI2BRCERRAL - £
REB M RETERTEER - EFTEHZRSE
B TER T - —FRETHK -

KBERGFTARBEIRORRABRSH (R
REEEEM)  EBAREEZHBRF -
Kainarwolfram LLC X Ikh Uuliin Erdenes LLC %
BRI B VMR 2 ERIERE o B BB
BERIH 2 FIERM 21458 -
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21. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL, 21. 58  EREAFHELEER

INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES AND MINING RIGHTS

Impairment testing on goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out in
Note 18 and trading rights and licenses set out in Note 19
have been allocated to the CGU represented by financial
services segment.

The recoverable amount is the higher of FVLCD and VIU. The
Directors determined recoverable amount of the CGU related
to the financial services segment at 31 December 2017 by
reference to disposal consideration of Best Future because
the disposal consideration less costs of disposal is higher
than VIU related to the financial services segment which
estimated based on similar basis and key assumptions used
in 2016. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Group disposed of its 67% equity interest in Best Future in
which Best Future had recognised goodwill and trading rights
and licenses as part of its intangible assets upon completion
of the acquisition of Hui Kai Holdings in 2016. Details of
the disposal are disclosed in Note 57. Considering that the
disposal consideration is lower than proportionate net assets
value of Best Future at the date of disposal and accordingly,
impairment losses on goodwill and trading rights and licenses
of approximately HK$12,014,000 and HK$7,855,000 have
been recognised, respectively.

The recoverable amount of the CGU related to the financial
services segment as 31 December 2016 was determined on
the basis of VIU calculations and certain key assumptions. For
the purpose of impairment testing, the VIU calculations used
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management of the Group covering a 5-year period and
discount rate of 10.9%. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period
were extrapolated using a growth rate of 3%. Other key
assumptions for the VIU calculations related to the estimation
of cash inflows/outflows which included budgeted revenue
and gross margins during the budget period. Budgeted
revenue and gross margins were determined based on past
performance and the management’s expectations for the
market development. The management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the recoverable amount of the above CGU
below the carrying amount of the above CGU.

RIERE 2R ERIE

BENEREAFHRTLEEZR
BRI

FREAAME - ML 18/TEZ B8 MFE19
ez 2SN EREEDSEERSRRED
BFTRRMIREEA BN -

AR (Al € B8 A A S ER B A A B (s R B (B
HEZBREE - HRHERERDERATHNIR
BEHEREERR T — /\¢1EFHZ$Eﬂ€”*“1$
e BREHEEEERER - &é%
2EERZHEREETSRRGE D BR T
—tF+ZA=+—AREZESELSE uz
AIUREEEE o RIREIIRE - $&lﬁmhw

82 67%8HE - MEBE R T —NFTTR
W R BE S PR IR 1 - Eﬂm%h%¢%ﬁﬁﬁ&
RIEREBAEDDEREE - WEFBERSE
RIEES7 - EEEDEREBEAN LS B HE
IO EETE  CREERRS
1 N2 KR RRFE SRR B B 1B 5 5114912,014,00078 7T
%.7,855,000/8 7T,

ERRBHEIR T —RF+_A=1+—HIf
H2IReEEE uZTW@éﬁﬂﬁﬁ%E@
ﬁlgﬁ& ST RARRREE - sURERIFR
CEREEDREREEEIRE]EZSF
ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁéxuo.9%2?ﬁ£ﬁ$1§%fﬁéﬁﬁﬁu
T8 oiifﬁﬂﬂﬁ522i%ééﬁﬁJﬁﬁfﬁﬁ396;Ziﬁf§q?
c AREAEBESR ZH@@%F“B@
fg\%%qmziﬁ(ﬁ/nb)\/mu u+ &%ﬁ%ﬁiéuy
mREMNE)BE - BE W= RENEIIRER
BERBNEREEM SRR ENETE - &
BERBZEHREZ2AMNEEAEZSHIEE
By L it3R 7 A B A7 2 AT IR Bl & B R R LAl
SEABEMNZIRAEE -
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21.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL,
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES AND MINING RIGHTS
(Continued)

Impairment testing on mining rights

No active mining operation of the Group has taken place
during the year and the Directors conducted an impairment
assessment of the Mining CGU. For the purposes of
impairment testing, the mining rights set out in Note 20 have
been allocated to the Mining CGU represented by mining and
exploitation of natural resources segment.

The recoverable amount is the higher of FVLCD and VIU. The
recoverable amounts of mining and exploitation of natural
resources segment were determined based on VIU calculation
and certain key assumptions. For the purpose of impairment
testing, the VIU calculations used cash flow projection based
on financial budgets approved by the management of the
Group covering a period of four to nine years (2016: two to
seven years). The discount rates used for the VIU calculations is
21.50% (2016: 22.06% to 22.21%). Other key assumptions
in estimating the discounted future pre-tax cash flows are
included tungsten metal estimated selling price with 2.66%
growth rate (2016: 1.45%), estimated future costs of
production, estimated future operating costs, recoverable
reserves, resources and exploration potential, discount rates
and exchange rates.

21. B8  EREAFHELEER
BRIERE 2R BRI (@)

ERUERE BB R

RER AEBRAETIRREXS  EF
BEHRER S EA BUFELRENS - BURE
AIEME - 208l e REECEDEER
RELRBERABERDBRR2FBERSESE

oo

BN o

ARESEAASERDEXNNEFEREER
BEZESE FERBRIAERDEZ TR
EleEHIREREBEETERE TRRER
E o BRRERARME  FREEDNREAEE
EEEBHAEZONENFE(ZT—RF : WEL
FRBEzMBEEFERRESRENGE - &5
BEABERAZTRER2150%(ZF—X
F:122.06%%F22.21%) o (HEFARIR R L FL AT
ReRE s EMBRERBEGTBERER
266%(—T—NF 145%) 2B EE -
RETRRAEEMA ~ et RREBERA ~ AT
Bl - ARRERERE - IREREE -
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21. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL,

INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES AND MINING RIGHTS
(Continued)

Impairment testing on mining rights
(Continued)

The Group engaged JLL, independent qualified professional
valuers, to perform the valuation of mining rights at
31 December 2017 and 2016 based on the previous resource
estimation technical report and the latest feasibility study
report. With reference to the valuation of mining rights
performed by JLL, the Directors were in the view that no
impairment loss of the mining rights for the year ended
31 December 2017 (Nine months ended 31 December 2016:
Nil) was recognised for the Mining CGU in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
the recoverable amount of the Mining CGU was higher than
(2016: higher than) its carrying amount.

Regarding the recoverable reserves, resources and exploration
potential of the mining rights, the Group engaged a qualified
mineral technical adviser to prepare an updated resource
estimation technical report but yet to complete at the report
date. However, based on exploitation work conducted by the
qualified mineral technical adviser up to the end of reporting
period, the Directors did not notice any negative findings on
recoverable reserves, resources and exploration potential of
the mining rights. The Group plans to engage a Mongolian
professional firm to update the feasibility study report and
the environmental impact assessment report based on the
updated resource estimation technical report in 2018.

21. B2 - BEREAFHELEER

BRIERE 2R BRI (@)

RIERE 2R ERE®)

REBZRB S ERBEMEMP 20T
E R g RGBT RS R A 1T T
RBREHR _E—+FR_TE—"F+=A
=T BIZEEEELGE K2ESWITYH
RRERELNGER  EERABEREE
—E—+tF+-A=t+—HLEFEHEHE=Z
—ANE+ZA=Z+—RHILLNEA : T) 2B
ReEELBMNRGABEREMEZEEERR
EREEEZBERE  RARKERSESE
B zalEeBEaR(ZE—~F : a)HE
BRMEME °

HRAIWE R - FREEERRERERE
AEBDRIE— %A B RRE MR AR
RHERMGA MRS - ERRE B HERT
B X1 RBEERE IR A EREERM
BEEFTETORRIRE  EFL B A WE
- FEEZERMYRELEETAAEREE
B AEEFER T\ FZRE—HETE
ERRERNEHE RGBT R E AL AT

TR E MRBE R B ERE -
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22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 22. REFE N F 2 s
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—+tF —EREF
FHET FHET
Cost of unlisted interest in an associate B R E 2 IF EhiEm AR - 15,194
Share of post-acquisition losses and FE(EU R R 518 R B 2 e
other comprehensive income - 107
- 15,301
Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the reporting RIMEER - AEBEBE AT ZFBRT
period are as follows:
Proportion of nominal
Establishment/ value of registered
Form of business incorporation and capital/share capital Proportion of voting
Name of entity structure operation held by the Group power held by the Group  Principal activities
R/ rEBRERMER/
BEER EBERER RIUREE RAHEE LA FEEFERERLN  TEXH
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZEtE 2R ZE-tf T 5F
Shanghai Jilan Investment LP* Domestic limited The PRC - 40% - 40%  Investment holding

partnership
LEERRATL(ERAY)  RERRAY PE RERK
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22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 22. REEE DT 2 R (#)

Note: As disclosed in Note 49(a), the Group disposed of its 46% BiaE : BINPEE49@)FTIEE - AEBREE T
equity interest of Shanghai Jilan Investment LP* t & & 5 1% —RNETZA=T—HIENEABEBER
&R (B R A 1K) (“ilan”) to an independent third party at a FEEREERPL(BRER)([ER 2
consideration of RMB16,000,000 (equivalent to HK$18,523,000) A6%BIEHE T —RBHUE=) KER
during the nine months ended 31 December 2016. Upon AR 16,000,000 7T (8% 7 18,523,000/
completion of the disposal, the Group has lost the control to 7o) e PIHE TR - AEBEBE K EEHER
Jilan and continued to participate in the partnership meeting, ZiEh]  BESLMEY AR EUHRT
therefore, the remaining 40% equity interest was accounted A0%BER_Z—A"FT+A=T—HAK
for as interest in an associate as at 31 December 2016. FIER—FRIB &R E 2 as o
On 22 May 2017, the Group had entered into a share transfer R-ZE—+FRA-+-H AEFEHE—F
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of its B E=FRIROERGE - UHEER
entire 40% equity interests in Jilan at a cash consideration of BOR 2 BREZ40% BEREBARE
RMB 14,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$16,100,000). 14,000,0007T (18 & 7 4716,100,000/8 7T ) °
The disposal was completed in May 2017 and the gain the HEER-ZZ—tFRAZK - HEFRN
disposal of Jilan were calculated as follows: WasEtE T -

HK$'000

T

Cash consideration HerE 16,100

Carrying amount of interest in Jilan at the date of disposal & B HIR BRI 2 BREE (15,732)
Cumulative exchange differences reclassified from equity ~ RAHEE—BHERATEHESENHRES

to profit or loss upon disposal of an associate BaMRTELESE 619

Gain on disposal & 2 e 987

*  The English name is for identification purpose only. o RXEREIEMER
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23. LOAN NOTE RECEIVABLE

23. EIRERRE

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

—Z2—+F ZE—RF

FHET FHIT

At the beginning of the year/period iy ikl 1,460,808 -

Loans notes subscribed BRI 2 ERRR - 1,550,800
Loan note arrangement fee and advisory TEWEREBRZHERR

fee receipt in advance ERERIE (93,496) (93,051)
Amortisation of arrangement fee income ZHEBRAWA KRG AEA

and advisory fee income LN 372 93,066 3,059

Exchange realignment Rk 11,740 -

At the end of the year/period RE HiR 1,472,118 1,460,808
Analysed for reporting purposes as: 2B WFTER DT -

Non-current assets B EE - 1,460,808

Current assets MENEE 1,472,118 -

1,472,118 1,460,808

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016,
the Group entered into a subscription agreement with
Haitong Global pursuant to which the Group agreed to
subscribe for 50,000 Class R participating shares at a total
consideration of US$50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$387,700,000) of Haitong Dynamic Fund.

There are two classes of non-voting shares in the capital of the
Haitong Dynamic Fund, namely Class P participating shares
and Class R participating shares and the shareholder of Class
P participating shares is a company controlled by Haitong
International Securities Group Limited, an independent third
party not connected with the Group. The principal of the
Class P participating shares is US$150,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,163,100,000) and Haitong Global has
appointed Hai Tong Asset Management (HK) Limited as its
investment manager of Haitong Dynamic Fund.

HE-_Z—XF+_-_A=+—HBINAEA K
% Bl i Haitong Global 5] R BE s » it -
N & E [ & LA 42 A 850,000,000 3% 7T (HH &
7 #7387,700,000 % 7T ) 72 B Haitong Dynamic
Fund,250,000/%REEZX BLAR (5 ©

Haitong Dynamic Fund &I IR N9 A 48 i 1 5=
RERR D - BIPERS B RRELEMRY - fP
H2HEROORR A EAEBHEEENE
VE=FRBEEESEBERATIESA—
fIRA] - PAES E AR 19 #) N & /3 150,000,000
JE(HB% 4 491,163,100,000 7T) * ffiHaitong
Globa EZEEREEER(BB)ERAAA
H Haitong Dynamic FundtyiR & EIEA °
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23. LOAN NOTE RECEIVABLE (Continued) 23. EINEREE ®)

The Directors have assessed the facts that i) the purpose of
setting up the Haitong Dynamic Fund was initiated by the
Group and solely for subscribing loan note issued by the
Borrower and after the subscription of the loan note, most of
the investment capital in the Haitong Dynamic Fund has been
used up and no further investment decisions could be made
until the maturity of the loan note; ii) in accordance with the
subscription agreement, the Group could receive the residual
value from Haitong Dynamic Fund after paying the principal
and target return, which is 6.5% fixed interest income of the
US$150,000,000 principal of the Class P participating shares;
and iii) the Group agreed to provide the guarantee in favour
of the Class P participating shareholders for the performance
of the Haitong Dynamic Fund with the maximum liability
of US$103,000,000. After the assessment on all the above
facts, the Directors concluded that Haitong Dynamic Fund
created significant exposure to variability of returns to
the Group given that the expected return of the Haitong
Dynamic Fund reached 28% during the two years term and
the Group also has to compensate any potential loss to the
Class P participating shareholders up to US$103,000,000,
approximately to 69% of the principal contributed by Class P
participating shareholders, and concluded that the Group has
control over the Haitong Dynamic Fund under HKFRS 10 and
the Group has consolidated the assets and liabilities of the
Haitong Dynamic Fund.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016,
Haitong Dynamic Fund had entered into a subscription
agreement with the Borrower pursuant to which the
Borrower agreed to subscribe for loan note with a principal
amount of US$200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,550,800,000) at a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum
with a maturity period of 2 years ended on 19 December
2018. Arrangement fee and advisory fee shall be charged
on principal amount at 6% upon issuance of the loan
note and the thirteenth month from the loan note issue
date amounting to approximately HK$93,051,000 and
HK$93,496,000, respectively.

Amortisation of arrangement fee income and advisory fee
income amounted to HK$93,066,000 (nine months ended
31 December 2016: HK$3,059,000) have been recognised in
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2017.

EEEAMUTEE  NDASEEERK Y
Haitong Dynamic Fund 2 B H) 5 1€ 5 7 R &
BRABITZERER  RBEREER -
Haitong Dynamic FundZ X% &% & & A B B
SAELEMIRERT - EEEREEE
/HH ; ||)$ETJ§WE§T57’J AEEA RIS R
B {Z @R % & Haitong Dynamic Fund U 57 5l &
BB - £ APHL 150,000,000 A 2
6.5%ETEFEWMA ; KilAEERERES A
f&4%103,000,0003% 7T Z Haitong Dynamic Fund
ZBAMPESHERFIZMRE - RFENUE
FTE =& % -+ M Haitong Dynamic Fund ¥ 78
HA B 47 28 A W 4F BN 3028 % K A R E IR ZA )
PXA 2 BAAR 3R 4 {8 5 % 103,000,000 7T 2 £ 7]
BIEETE © 4)69% AN MPELHBRTE -
%%Eb?%Haltong Dynamlc Fund ¥ RS B ZE 4
“@JI&%KJ—L WRA/REEBRE
E/’é W E R E 105ﬁ§THaltong Dynamic
Fund A 1% %'JTE&$EIEH Haitong Dynamic
Fundz BERAEGRAE AN

BHE-_Z-R"EF+-_A=+—BLNHE
A Haitong Dynamic Fund £2 {& FX A 5T 32 2
BiHE - Bt ERARERELASEAR
200,000,000 7T (#8& 7 47 1,550,800,000 /%
TTIMERER - BEFMERS% - RMEF
FE - IR =T -N\F+ A+ NB#EIE %
Hﬁéﬁﬁ&%ﬁ?ﬂ%m PRI ERERBREITRRE

EREBRBTHAHEANET=EAZEL:
%EG%&H £ 58 BII#) 493,051,000 7T M
93,496,000/8 7T °

ZHEBRARARBAEARASBHESE
93,066,000 B L (B ZE =T — A ~F+= A
:+—E¢MIE : 3,059,000/ 7C) EREE

—tF+ A+ HILFEZIESPHE

=7
[0
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24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 24, TEHEZKRE

25.

26

Available-for-sale investments comprise: AHEEZIRERIE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—Z2—+F ZE—RF
FHET FAT
Unlisted investments: I EmIRE -
— equity securities in the PRC, at cost — R B AFE F (R A)
(Note (i) (BEG)) 1,201 1,116
— equity securities in Singapore, at cost — ¥R AR TR H (FRR AN )
(Note (i) (BF&EG)) 22,599 -
— investment funds, at fair value —REES(EQAAE)
(Note (ii)) (B (i) 47,119 -
70,919 1,116
Notes: PitsE

(i) The amounts represent investments in unlisted equity securities
issued by private entities established in the PRC and Singapore.
They are measured at costs less impairment at the end of the
reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the Directors are of the opinion
that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

(i) The amount represents investment in unlisted investment
funds in the PRC and it is measured at fair value by reference
to the quoted bid prices at the end of the reporting period.
The unlisted investment funds have been fully disposed of in
February 2018 and the changes in fair value up to the date of
disposal is not significant.

INVENTORIES
Inventories represent goods held for resale.

FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group acquired distressed debt assets through public
tenders in the PRC with collaterals, including plant and
machinery, residential, industrial and commercial buildings
and land use rights in the PRC. Such distressed debt assets
are accounted for as financial assets designated as at fair
value through profit or loss according to their investment
management strategy. The changes in fair value of financial
assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss
comprised realised gains from disposal of distressed debt
assets and their unrealised fair value changes on the
collaterals of distressed debt assets. Any interest income
arising from such assets are also included in the changes in
their fair values, if any.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of the distressed
debt assets was determined with reference to a valuation
carried out by JLL, an independent qualified professional
valuer, amounting to approximately HK$446,660,000 (2016:
HK$452,600,000).

() FZFCRIERAENES B RN FAE
BT ETRAFES - RMSHR - Bk
RARERENE  RESAEAREMEH
EBNEE  MEERR/EIAE A ET

=
= °

(i) ZARIERERINTEZFETIREES
HBB2ERmE BRMHREABRARER
B - ZEFLTREESEN T -\F_A
TaHE  BEEHEAMAAEEDHTTE
* o

25. 78

FEEFIFEE 2Em -

26. EERBRAABETABRENER
&E

AEBESBEEBAFARRKBEN AR
(BRANFEOME RS £F - TER
BEEFRIMERE)NTIREHREE -8
AT REKEERBREREEEREARRE
ERBAREFABENEREE - HE/E
AREFABRENEREENAEZS B
HETREBEBEENEZFR WG NETRER
BEERRRIARERRAELE - EAHZE
BEELNFSWATARLREZE (40
B)e

R-ZE—+F+_A=+—"H KLEHIA
EREEGEMPERTETZGEMETN
TREBEENAEN A446,660,00078 7T
(ZZ 7<% 1 452,600,000/ 7T) °
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

27. FEUERRX

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+F ZE—RF
TR FHT
Accounts receivable arising from the sales of &R ERREBIREESR

petrochemical products and metal-related B4 B REUR K

products 27,558 -
Accounts receivable arising from Y FE M 2 WA ZE £ R FEIER K

property rental income 32,887 -
Accounts receivable arising from the BHRZHEBEENERIRK -

business of dealing in securities:

— margin clients —MERF 40,645 29,847

— cash clients -BReERP 1,654 529
Accounts receivable arising from the HREREER 5 EBEE

business of dealing in futures and options: HIFEER R

~ clients —&F 35,535 26,045

— clearing houses, brokers and dealers —EEFT - SR ER S 21,587 25,775
Accounts receivable arising from the IR A 40 ZE R AR MO FE IR 3R

business of insurance brokerage 2,163 -
Accounts receivable arising from the sales of ~— $HE BB R E M H it —RE R

medical equipment and other general goods & 4 HYFEURER X 4,624 2,907

166,653 85,103
Impairment loss in relation to: LATNIE B 8URIERK
Accounts receivable arising from the BHR 5 HERGEF IR

business of dealing in securities:

— margin clients —BERP (36) (40)
Total Faby 166,617 85,063
Analysed for reporting purposes as: 2B BFTERI DT -

Secured A 40,609 29,807

Unsecured EeS i 126,008 55,256
Total Faby 166,617 85,063
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27.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The Group allows a credit period of 30 to 120 days (2016:
30 to 120 days) to its customers in relation to sales of
medical equipment and other general goods and sales
of petrochemical products and metal-related products
depending on the type of products sold.

The property rental income receivable from tenants and
accounts receivable arising from the business of insurance
brokerage are due for settlement upon issuance of invoices.

The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from the
business of dealing in securities are two days after trade date
or at specific terms agreed with clearing houses, brokers and
dealers, and accounts receivable arising from the business of
dealing in futures and options are one day after trade date
or at specific terms agreed with clearing houses, brokers and
dealers.

Accounts receivable from margin and cash clients arising from
the business of dealing in securities, futures and options are
repayable on demand subsequent to settlement date.

The Group offsets certain accounts receivable and accounts
payable when the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the balance and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the balances simultaneously. Details
are set out in Note 46(d).

Before granting credit to customers, the Group reviews
the credit quality and defines credit limits by customers.
Limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a year
and each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit quality
of the customers and seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables so as to minimise credit risk. If
there are any shortfall between fair value of the collateral
pledged by the margin clients and the outstanding balances
of accounts receivable arising from the business of dealing
in securities, futures and options, the Group will exercise its
rights to request the immediate repayments from respective
clients and the clients’ collateral can be sold at the Group's
discretion to settle any outstanding balances.

27. EWERK (@)

NEBRFTEEMERRHEEEREREM
—MBEmMEE O LERREBIEBERR T
HEP30E1200R(ZZE—"F : 302120K)
ZIEEH -

ENEP 2 MER S WA RRBRELEBESL
ZEUWRSN AR RR B EHE -

BEERSFEBELZRBERZEERR/RS
HERMRSIREEEN - KX FH AR
AR IRRME - MAEMREEXTEL Y
ERER 2 EERRZ AR —K - SR8
B BERZ 582 ARGAGRNE

REERR  BEES  HERIREBELE
ZEWMEE MR e TP RKARERERE -

RNEEE A REESR 2 BIA 8 ERITRE
o At e EE TRKER R R EMEESR M
BEEBLFHEANEE  RANERER - 5
IBEAKIEE46(d) ©

RAZEFRLEER  AEESH[EFZE
EEZLAEFENR - RTEFPZHREF
B —REEBREFPUARSEENR - A%
BREARECEEBRRUFBETLPZEEERK
SREEHAERBRBTRERBREEE - U
HiEERBEERE - HEEFPAERZE
ARz ANEREEES  HERRERKE
EZHAERBURERSEHR 2 MEEAES
AEBBITEEENZ KBTS ARER
&P 2 B A A SEEIE L ERENE
[BICESEr P



AFMZERERQE] —=—55% . i 171

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z - —+F+_A=+—HIFE

27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 27. EWERK (@)

Account receivable due from margin clients are secured
by the pledge of customers’ securities as collateral with
fair value of HK$237,311,000 (2016: HK$22,917,000) as
at 31 December 2017 and bear interest with reference to
Hong Kong dollar prime rate with spread. The clients’ listed
securities can be sold at the Group’s discretion to settle any
margin call requirements imposed by their respective securities
transactions. The Group is able to use client’s securities up
to the amount of 140% of the loans to margin clients as
collateral of the Group’s borrowings (with client’s consent). If
the fair value of the collateral pledged by the margin clients
is less than the outstanding balances of accounts receivable,
the Group will exercise its rights to request the immediate
repayments from respective margin client.

The Group assesses at each of the reporting period end
whether there is objective evidences that account receivables
are impaired. The Group has a policy for determining
the allowance for bad and doubtful debts based on the
evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of accounts
and on management’s judgment, including the current
creditworthiness, collateral and the past collection history
of each clients/customers. For accounts receivable due from
margin clients and cash clients which are past due but not
impaired as at 31 December 2017, the fair value of each
client’s listed securities is higher than the carrying amount of
each individual loan to margin client and cash clients in this
category or with substantial settlement after the reporting
period. Accounts receivable due from margin clients and
cash clients of approximately HK$36,000 (2016: HK$40,000)
which are fully impaired as the fair value of client’s pledged
listed securities is lower than the carrying amount of each
individual loan and without substantial settlement after the
reporting period. The Group does not hold any collateral over
the balances arising from the sales of medical equipment
and other general goods, petrochemical products and metal-
related products, property rental income and insurance
brokerage service.

No ageing analysis for the accounts receivable arising from
the business of dealing in securities, futures and options as in
the opinion of the Directors, the ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of broking business.

R-ZB—+E+-A=+—0 BEUBETF
Z RSB A EA237,311,0008 7L ( —F
—7NF 022,917,000 70) 2 B EH (EAR
WER)IEER  W2EBILRERF EHE
B AEEABMBLERFP 2 EWES - LUE
BEMZRESSA®ITZEFR S AEINZTF
REEEX - KRFPRAER  ALEMFEREK
ZAMERFEREBIAON 2 EEEAER
REBBEZEER - WRERPEMR 2K
W2 A AERR MR EEERER T 5
REEBTEEENEREURERFPRNE

o
A °

AEFEREHREMRTEREERERERET
EYERAERE - ARBEREBEEREREME
LB - ZBRER TR E R B 2 A R E 1R
RERRONMEEEB A (BREEFPZE
RIEE - WS BEWRECER) MHIE © 3
RZE—+F+ZA=+—HEBBREL R
BEzRUBEEFRRESEFPZERAME @ &
EPLWmESZANBERTERRETRE
EFEBREFEPZEMEMNERZEREE - R

EEHFZAABERSERNERZEEENK
WHERREHEELEEEEN  BHRER
FRBEEP ZEZR#H36,00087T(—FT—X
F 1 40,0008 70) BEBERAE - ANEBEWED
HEBEREREM—BAR - AltERRS
BiEEESR - WERSKRARRBREL RS E
&2 BRI AERR -

ENRLEBINE  EER/REDITILEER
SMEME - M EFLES  HERRR 5%
TEE A M BRSO BRER AT ©
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27.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of accounts receivable
presented at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice dates in relation to sale of medical equipment and
other general goods, petrochemical products and metal-
related products, property rental income and insurance
brokerage service which approximated the respective revenue
recognition dates:

27. EWERK (@)

AT RREEHRRREERRERE R A —
gEm - AtERMEEEEER  WEHES
WARRBELCREAERNEZAR(EESS
WARER B HIEE ) 25 RUERFRER DT

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E—+tF —EREF

FET FET

Within 30 days 30HA 10,661 631
31 -90 days 31£290H 38,450 1,207
91 - 120 days 91£120H 15,416 185
Over 120 days 120H A = 2,705 884
67,232 2,907

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$43,882,000 (2016:
HK$1,319,000) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period but not considered as impaired. The aged
analysis of accounts receivable arising from the sales of
medical equipment and other general goods, petrochemical
products and metal-related products, property rental income
and insurance brokerage service which are past due but not
impaired is as follow:

55 B FE IR BR SR B 3E 4B BRI (B 43,882,000/ 7T
(ZZF—7X4F 1 1,319,000 70 ) 2 N EREHIK
BB EME N KRR AREZ BUIR K - HEE
BERBREM—MER  AERRESBERE
Ef - WEASRARRBELRBEEEZD
ER N R E 2 RURR R BRER D ATZA T -

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

—E—+tF —EREF

FET FAT

Within 30 days 3084 9,774 -
31 -90 days 31290k 15,987 -
91 - 120 days 91£120K 15,416 -
Over 120 days 120 KA == 2,705 884
43,882 884

Majority of the accounts receivable arising from the sales of
medical equipment and other general goods, petrochemical
products and metal-related products, property rental income
and insurance brokerage service that are neither past due nor
impaired have no default repayment history and there has
not been a significant change in credit quality.

REBHBEEBRRELEM—REM - Ak
EmlEeBERER MEHERARFRRE
RIS EL 2 EARE BT R (B 2 FE Y AR R I
BEERENCHIEEERYBELTAE
) o
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 27. FEWERRR ()
Movements in the impairment allowance for bad and RERAEREZSHNAT

doubtful debts are as follows:

HK$'000
FHT
At 1 April 2016 RZZE—RFMNHA—H -
Impairment losses recognised ERERREEX 40
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF+-A=+—H 40
Reversal of impairment losses recognised BRI E R LR (4)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZA=+—H 36
In determining the recoverability of the accounts receivable, RETE MR AT EER - AEEGZE
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of BEAREEEZ BERERSE B HIEMA
the accounts receivable from the date of credit was initially EWEEREEE R 2 EEE) - ARTPER
granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit BEFA R AN - EESTRERAR - Bt
risk is limited due to the customer base being large and BEERR - EREYREREFNREIEELEES
unrelated. Accordingly, the Directors believe that no further MER - WEERRIBRIELE—DRIE -
impairment for bad and doubtful debts is required given the
substantial settlement from accounts receivable after the
reporting periods.
28. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 28. HEEE 2 RE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—tF ZE—RF
FET FHTT
Financial assets held-for-trading: BEEECZSRMEE *
Listed equity securities held-for-trading REBFEEE 2 LMRAFS
in Hong Kong 2,244,524 651,856
Financial liabilities held-for-trading: HEEEZERMEE:
Commodity futures contracts held-for-trading R¥TIMEIFEEE 7 A MmEBAEA LY
in Singapore 6,600 -
The fair values of the held-for-trading investments were BIEEERE 2 AABETREEBERZ 5 TPTHR
determined based on the quoted market bid prices available ZHEANBETE °

on the relevant exchanges.
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29. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

29. B - MAREREAEYKIR

RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—+tF ZE—REF
FET FAT

Loan receivable (Note (i) FEUCE R (BIFE()) 78,127 -

Interest receivable FEUFILE 21,090 7,521

Other receivables, net of impairment and ot FEMGRIE (FOBRRE)

prepayment (Note (ii)) K 3B R (B (i) 21,034 26,506
Rental and other deposits HekEMES 10,962 16,559
Refundable deposits paid for potential BETEWESEE N 2 FRES

acquisitions (Note (iii)) (PG - 315,225
Deposits paid for acquisition of distressed RUWBETNRBEBEED N 2ES

debt assets - 44,656

131,213 410,467

Notes: Pi%E

(i)  The amount represents a loan advance to an independent () SBEEA—BBUE=-HREZER €85
third party of approximately HK$78,127,000 (2016: Nil) which #978,127,000/8T(=F —/"4F : ) HAEE
was unsecured, carried at fixed interest of 3% per annum and o BREFEENEI%T B AEERRAE—
repayable with a term of 1 month. The loan has been settled in B8R - BRER=ZZE—N\F—ABE-

January 2018.

(i)  Other receivables and prepayment mainly comprised (iy EMERFEMENFEIEERKTLEE
consideration receivable from disposal of Mason International ERERERAR(EEDRE EIRNHIE
Limited (“Mason”), advance payment to staff and prepayment T4 B s TEAS /IR (AR IR E 497,750,000
for operating expenses, net of impairment of approximately TNZT—RF &) -

HK$7,750,000 (2016: Nil).

(i) The amount represents a refundable deposit paid to a UK (iy ZEEERBZE_T—X"F+=-A=1+—8
lawyer during the nine months ended 31 December 2016 in 1E FU{E A 7 gk 78 W B Riverbank House Unit
relation to a potential acquisition of an entire equity interest of Trust([Riverbank |) 2 2 EBAR A M 2 4 — & R E
Riverbank House Unit Trust (“Riverbank”). The principal asset 22 FHIZE - Riverbankz T BEAE AR
of the Riverbank is a property located at 95-103 Upper Thames 95-103 Upper Thames Street, London EC42 —
Street, London EC4. The Directors decided to terminate the EME - BEFERFR T R"F+-AKIZ
acquisition in December 2016 and the amount was returned WHEEE  MZSBER T —tF—ARE
to the Group in January 2017 and therefore are classified as FTAEE  BtHERRBEE
current asset.

30. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS 30. ERITEEH
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+F ZE—RF
FE T FAT

Foreign currency forward contracts SMNEZRHIE A

classified as current assets DERREDEE 93,539 -

classified as current liabilities NERAREEE - 12,685
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30. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS 30. LRISTEE N (@)

(Continued)

REHRE - AEBD A INERRE Y
HNEMXFEBEEZINERR - BE_F

During the reporting periods, the Group has entered
into foreign currency forward contracts to hedge against
foreign currency exposures arising from commodity trading —+tFF+ZA=T—HILEFE  ERTEEYD
business. Changes in fair value of financial derivative ZANEEEN S FX103,854,000/8 7T (HE—
contracts amounting to approximately HK$103,854,000 T—XNF+-_A=+—BI1ENM[EA : 4,104,000
(nine months ended 31 December 2016: HK$4,104,000) BIT)ERER AR o

have been recognised in profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2017.

The amount represents the fair value change on the ZEBERRTEINERAEH 2 AR BEEE
outstanding foreign currency forward contracts and the ERZE—+E+ - A=+—AR=_FT X%
major terms of these foreign currency forward contracts as at TZA=T—BEZEIINERBENZ EEZBRK
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 as follows: NN i N

At 31 December 2017 R-B—+tHF+=A=+—H

Notional approximate amount Maturity Exchange rate

ERALUSHE

I GRE

E=

Sell US$7,862,000
£ 1147,862,000% 7T
Sell US$12,172,000
£1112,172,000FE T
Sell US$6,465,000
£ 16,465,0005 7T
Sell US$1,302,000
£ 141,302,000 7T
Sell US$8,951,000
£118,951,000% 7T
Sell US$8,942,000
£ 18,942,000% 7T
Sell US$11,487,000
£1411,487,000% 7T
Sell US$9,784,000
£ 119,784,000% 7T
Sell US$11,774,000
EH11,774,000%7T
Sell US$4,901,000
£ 14,901,000% 7T
Sell US$7,828,000
£ 117,828,000 7T
Sell US$7,086,000
£ 17,086,0003 7T
Sell US$4,806,000
£ 14,806,000 7T
Sell US$9,799,000
19,799,000 7T
Sell US$7,801,000
& 17,801,000
Sell US$4,815,000
& 14,815,000 7
Sell US$4,766,000
& 14,766,000 7T
Sell US$6,082,000
& 6,082,000
Sell US$6,082,000
£ 16,082,000 7T

23 March 2018

—E-NF=A=+=H

15 March 2018

—E-)\F=A+HH
9 March 2018
—ET—-N\F=ZANA
9 March 2018
—E-N\F=ANH
9 March 2018
—E-N\F=ZANA
9 March 2018
—E-N\F=ANH
9 March 2018
—E-N\F=ZANA
7 March 2018
—E-N\F=RH+tH
7 March 2018
—ET-N\F=ZAEH
2 March 2018
—E-N\F=H=H
1 March 2018
—E—-N\F=A—H
1 March 2018
—E-N\F=H—H

23 February 2018

—E-N\F-A=+=H

23 February 2018

—E-N\F-ZA=+=H

23 February 2018

—ZE-N\F-_A=-+=H

13 February 2018

—E-\$-A+=HR

17 January 2018

—ZE-N\F—-H++tH

12 January 2018

— - N\F—A+=H

12 January 2018

—=—-N\F—A+=H

US$7.0537/RMB
1257T=7.0537 AR
US$7.0655/RMB
13E70=7.0655 A 1
US$7.1440/RMB
1ZET=7 1440 ARIE
US$7.1100/RMB
1E7T=7.1100 A R
US$7.1040/RMB
12E7T=7.1040 A R
US$7.1040/RMB
1E7T=7.1040 A R HE
US$7.0982/RMB
1257T=7.0982 A R 1
US$7.0934/RMB
1367T=7.0934 A R #E
US$7.0758/RMB
1257T=7.0758 AR
US$7.0487/RMB
12671=7.0487 AR HE
US$7.0820/RMB
12570=7.0820 A R
US$7.0438/RMB
1367T=7.0438 AR
US$7.0690/RMB
13£7T=7.0690 A 1
US$7.0420/RMB
12670=7.0420 A R
US$7.0905/RMB
13£70=7.0905 A R #&
US$7.0560/RMB
12571=7.0560 A R
US$7.1340/RMB
13E7T=7.1340 A B HE
US$7.1405/RMB
1257T=7.1405 A R 1
US$7.1405/RMB
1E7T=7.1405 AR HE
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30. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

31.

(Continued)

At 31 December 2016

Notional approximate amount

ERALUSHE

30. ERPTE SN (@)

R=-B-—A"F+=A=+—H

Maturity
EIpEGRE

Exchange rate

=

Sell US$7,343,000
& 7,343,000
Sell US$8,730,000
£ 148,730,000 7T
Sell US$11,294,000
£ 111,294,000FE T
Sell US$6,117,000
EH6,117,000% 70
Sell US$11,481,000
£ 411,481,000 T
Sell US$8,796,000
£ 18,796,0003 7T
Sell US$4,563,000
& H4,563,000% 70
Sell US$4,566,000
£ 14,566,000 7T
Sell US$8,752,000
£ 18,752,000 7T
Sell US$4,536,000
& 4,536,000 7
Sell US$4,562,000
114,562,000 7T
Sell US$8,876,000
£ 118,876,000 7T
Sell US$8,786,000
& 18,786,000 7T
Sell US$8,844,000
£ 118,844,000 7T
Sell US$3,050,000
£ 13,050,000% 7T

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/STRUCTURED
DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits

The pledged bank deposits represent bank deposits placed
in a bank account and carried no interest which is restricted
for settling a secured bank borrowing with a carrying value
of approximately HK$573,000,000 as at 31 December 2016.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the secured bank
borrowing together with the pledged bank deposits have
been disposed of when the Group disposed its entire equity
interest of Leon Property.

22 November 2017
—T—+F+—HA=+=H
17 November 2017
—E—+F+—A++tH
16 November 2017
—E—+tF+—A+<H
14 November 2017
—E—tF+—A+HmA
8 November 2017
—E—+F+—ANH
25 September 2017
—E—+tFhAZ+hHH
21 September 2017
T tFAA=+—A
21 September 2017
—E—+tFhAZ+—H
19 September 2017
—E—+tFhA+NE
14 September 2017
—E—tFNA+TEAE
8 September 2017
—E—+tFhANH

7 August 2017
—E—+FN\AtH

2 August 2017
—E—+#F/\HZH
27 July 2017
—E—+tFtA=++tH
14 June 2017
—E—tFXATHEA

EEARITER

R-ZB—RE+-A=+—0  CHEBRTE
FIEGFHRRITREF ZRITER - HTEE
N B8~ BRI {E 49573,000,0007% 70 2 A 1K
HRTEEMZRG - HEZ_T—+F+=
A=+—HIEFE ' A5EERHEHERLeon
Property 2 & B A% # s & B IR SR 1T 15 RUE
EEEIPRITFR -

US$7.0730/RMB
1267T=7.0730 AR I
US$7.0920/RMB
1257T=7.0920 A B i
US$7.0495/RMB
13E70=7.0495 A R #E
US$7.0300/RMB
12571=7.0300 A 2
US$6.9380/RMB
125 7T=6.9380 A R
US$6.8210/RMB
1E7T=6.8210 AR &
US$6.8340/RMB
12577=6.8340 A R HE
US$6.8301/RMB
1257T=6.8301 AR
US$6.8530/RMB
13E70=6.8530 A R
US$6.8430/RMB
1257T=6.8430 A R #E
US$6.8010/RMB
1257T=6.8010 AR
US$6.7577/RMB
12E7T=6.7577 AR
US$6.7610/RMB
1267T=6.76 10 AR
US$6.8015/RMB
125 70=6.8015 A R
US$6.7178/RMB
1E7T=6.7178 ARHE

31. EEABITHER BBUEER
%mﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ/ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
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31. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/STRUCTURED
DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH
(Continued)

Structured deposits

The structured deposits as at 31 December 2017 consisted of
deposits denominated in RMB amounting to approximately
HK$89,020,000 (2016: HK$313,000) issued by banks in the
PRC. The structured deposits carried expected interest rates
ranging from 4.0% to 4.1% per annum (2016: 3.3% per
annum), depending on the market prices of the financial
instruments, including money market instruments and debt
instruments. The structured deposits are designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition as they contain non-closely related
embedded derivative. The Directors consider the fair value of
the structured deposits based on the prices that counterparty
banks would pay to redeem at 31 December 2017 and the
carrying amount of structured deposits recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values. These structured deposits have been fully
redeemed in March 2018 and the changes in fair value up to
the date of redemption is not significant.

Restricted bank deposits

The restricted bank deposits represent bank deposits
restricted by certain bank to secure the issuance of letters of
credit in relation to the purchase of petrochemical and metal-
related products. The deposits carry fixed interest ranging
from 1.35% to 2.13% per annum (2016: 1.40% to 1.81%
per annum). The entire amount will be released upon the
settlement of the letters of credit within twelve months from
the end of the reporting period and are therefore classified as
current assets.

Bank balances and cash

The bank balances (including time deposits) carry interest
at market rates which range from 0.01% to 1.71% (2016:
0.01% to 1.65%) per annum.

31. BERIBITEE /nﬁﬁ% R/

SREBTER RITEREE
cAC )

BREER

R-B—+E+-A=+—0  #EUEFZE
FERBENRTETZUARBEZEEY
89,020,000/ 7 (ZF — 74 : 313,000 L)
2R o BBEFEFIENT40%E4.1% 28
HFEMEFB(ZZT—RF  33%FFE)
BIeMmIA(RREEEMENERIARE
BIR)Z2TBER - EHBEEFER W)Jﬁ“ﬁ@
R EARANBEEREEAR  BEesIER
PRENRALSTETLR - EER 54 %\#ﬁ%ﬂ
ZAREBBEHTRITER T —+tF+=
A=+—B R 2 B R AEE TS
ARSI RESFG RS EIEEE
BEHAEADEBABER - ZSE&BEEFRE

:;E /\E‘ﬂﬁi%&ﬁ?@ﬂﬁzﬂiﬁaﬁﬂa’m

ZIRFBIRITERK

xﬁﬁ%uﬂéﬁf% RETFRTE S Z RITF
CNEREEABEALER RS BRBEE
E'DZEEHE c BRTFERIENT1.35%%2.13%
TE—RF 1.40%21.81%) 2 EEFF R
PR - 2SR AEREHRErZ@ARE
HMERBRERR BB AREDEE -

RITEHRES

BT (I IR BEEN T0.01%E
1.71% (ZZF—7"F : 0.01%=£1.65% )25
Flkstg .
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32. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE 32. o EAIBSEHEZEE

The major classes of assets classified as held-for-sale as at R-E—+tF+-A=+—ADEABIEHE
31 December 2017 are as follow: BEMEZEFIMT
HK$'000
FHET
Investment properties TEME 680,000
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e - BAREREAERGIE 118
680,118
HK$'000
T
FAIR VALUE RRE
Reclassified from investment properties as ENOBABIEHEZREME
held-for-sale (Note 17) (fF7E17) 660,000
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss RERAER 2 A EEZE 20,000
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZA=+—H 680,000
On 23 October 2017, the Group had entered into a sale RZE—tEFT+AZ+=0 " AEHEHE—
and purchase agreement with an independent third BEIE=ZFIUEEBEARESKE
party to dispose of its entire equity interest of Excel Fine 738,000,000 7T, tH & E 7 Excel Fine Holdings
Holdings Limited (“Excel Fine”) at a cash consideration of Limited ([ Excel Fine ) Z & &FA% 4 + Excel Fine
HK$738,000,000 and the principal asset of Excel Fine is ZEEEBERNNBEAPERPLTIVENEEY
the commercial property units located on 79th Floor of EBM - HEBR =T \F=A=+/\B%
The Center, Central, Hong Kong. The completion date of X o I 0 FiliExcel Finez DR AR EHE 2
the disposal will be on 28 March 2018. Accordingly, the BEBHNTZEARNLE EAL SR
above assets of Excel Fine expected to be disposed/utilised REFEMBERRERA - REBKIHERSL
within twelve months which were classified as held-for- 110,700,000 7t (FHE R 4238 &R ERI15%)
sale and presented separately in the consolidated statement (LBt EE34FT IR ) -

of financial position. The Group received disposal deposits
amounting to approximately HK$110,700,000, equivalent to
15% of the total cash consideration (as disclosed in Note 34).
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32. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE 32. 7 A ELEZEE®)

(Continued)

The fair values of the investment properties classified as held-
for-sale at the date of reclassification to assets held-for-
sales and 31 December 2017 have been arrived at on the
basis of valuations carried out by JLL, independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group.

In determining the fair values of the investment properties
classified as held-for-sale, the Group engages independent
qualified professional valuers to perform the valuation.
The management of the Group works closely with them to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model and explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair
values of the investment properties to the board of directors.
In estimating the fair values of the investment properties
classified as held-for-sale for disclosure purpose, the highest
and the best use of the investment properties is their current
use.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties classified as held-for-
sale are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques
and inputs used) and the investment properties are under
Level 3 fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2017.

REHMDBEREHENEEERR-_FT—+
FHZA=T—R 2ERBEHEZREY
RKZAREREMEARERERENE LS
BREEMEMPEBITRIT T HEEE
Bo

REEDBARIEHENRENE AL ER
AEEERBLAERERMGEEMERITF
e ARBEEREREZRTAFURLEERN
RERMMGERLGABBLAEFSHE
BREWMELAANERBNREA - RMEFHERER
B2 BRBEHENREMERIAER - &
BEMEz R MREREAERERE -

TEREUDEAFIELENZEREMR DR
1B 2 AN {A 8 T (0 L2 b (B B0 A0 P A 8 A 8K
BIER-_F—tF+T-_A=1t—HF=ZER
REBFETREMEOERES -

Significant observable/

Investment properties

REME

Valuation technique

fRERM

unobservable input(s)

ERABR THBEEHAHE

Sensitivity

BRE

Commercial property Market comparable

Market price of comparable

A significant increase in

units located in HK approach properties amounted to the market price per
approximately HK$71,000 per square foot used would
square foot, by taking into result in a significant
accounts of the accessibility, increase in fair value,
size, locations and condition and vice versa.
and environment of properties
REBEBBEMESEN  TIHLEE AELREYE s TISERETH GANEFHRTSER

R4971,000787C - L&
EE - K/ (LB RIEEAR

YIRS

GOPNER Pl SECES N
BERRRIEM - R2ZTF
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33.

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

33. ENRARRENRE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—B—+tF ZE—RF
FHET FHT
Bills payable arising from the purchase of KEAEMREBREER
petrochemical products and metal-related EENENER
products 1,242,218 790,013
Accounts payable arising from the business BEZHEBEENER
of dealing in securities: BREK -
— clearing houses, brokers and dealers —EEM - BERR 5 12,127 26,022
— cash clients -RETF 6,597 5,582
— margin clients —BERP 28,384 48,634
Accounts payable to clients arising from the HE R S EBEENE
business of dealing in futures and options NEPRIERR 53,546 40,340
Accounts payable from the business of IR AT 40 ZE TG EE M FE ST BR R
insurance brokerage 2,294 -
Accounts payable arising from the sale of HEBREREREM—RER
medical equipment and other general goods A4 I FETERTK 1,364 -
1,346,530 910,591

The credit period of bills payable arising from the purchase
of petrochemical products and metal-related products is 365
days.

The settlement terms of accounts payable arising from the
business of dealing in securities are two days after trade date
or at specific terms agreed with clearing houses, brokers and
dealers. Accounts payable to cash clients and margin clients
are repayable on demand. No ageing analysis for accounts
payable arising from the business of dealing in securities
is disclosed as in the opinion of the Directors, the ageing
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature
of business of dealing in securities.

RBEAERMEBERERELNENRR
EEHR365K -

BHERGEBEENERNERNEERRR S
BHRMARIREEER  RERRIP A
BIBHZGHITNE - BNREEPLRETFH
BRRRREREER EREFXHEBHNNE
g EEZRRREROMLEREIMEE - RAE
BREEFXDEBELNENRRNER D
#r o
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33. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES 33.

(Continued)

Accounts payable to clients arising from the business of
dealing in futures and options are cash deposits received from
clients for their trading of these contracts. The required cash
deposits are repayable upon the closure of the corresponding
futures and options position. The excess of the outstanding
amounts over the required cash deposits stipulated are
repayable to clients on demand. No ageing analysis for
accounts payable to client arising from the business of
dealing in futures and options is disclosed as in the opinion
of the Directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of business of dealing in futures
and options.

The following is an aged analysis of accounts payable arising
from the sale of medical equipment and other general goods
and insurance brokerage service and bills payables arising
from the purchase of petrochemical products and metal-
related products based on the invoices and bills issuance
dates at the end of the reporting periods:

AR R ESES @)

HENMRR FEBEENENE PRI S
ZEANRHEREFPHRETFN - IRRE
FRERGERE M REEEEEN - 8
BREMBREFRZHREESRANTF
ZREEE ENPERARXSEBOE
B EEARKRRD T EBEIMEER L ER
BRI ZEBELEZENEPERRT
BRER DT

AT RRBERRLZEZNFEHAERHZT
R EBRR AR A —REmEENEMNE
AERBOCERREBREERELHNEN
RBERLIRTEE RENRIRARE DT

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E—+tF ZE—RF

FET FHTT

Within 30 days 30HA 148,640 -
31 -90 days 31%90H 1,097,236 294,989
91 - 150 days 91£150H - 405,153
More than 151 days but within 1 year BiEISTHERIFEA - 89,871

1,245,876 790,013
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34. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER 34. ErtRERH MBS RRIE
PAYABLES
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—B—+tF ZE—RF
FHET FHET
Deposits received for disposal of Excel Fine Bt H! & Excel Finez
(Note 32) EYEUR S (15E32) 110,700 -
Accrued expenses FEETF 19,916 39,130
Interest payable FERTFILE 19,577 10,472
Other tax payable Hopth B IE 20,746 10,952
Other payables At JEAT FRIE 9,361 23,356
Consideration payable in relation to acquisition FLIESIIEA% UK =18 2
of Hui Kai Holdings (Note 48(ii)) FERHRAE (P FE48()) - 62,877
Rental income receipt in advance AR S WA - 4,579
180,300 151,366
35. BORROWINGS 35. 68
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—Z—+F ZE—RF
FTHET FHET
Secured variable-rate bank borrowings (Note a) A28 R1TEE (Mi5Ea) 889,889 1,598,250
Less: loan raising costs B BERREEKA (2,567) (8,865)
887,322 1,589,385
Margin financing loans (Note b) RESREER(MIED) 1,028,403 310,590
Vendor financing loan (Note ¢) B mE R () - 31,121
Loan instrument (Note d) BRI A (M) 620,904 -
Other borrowings (Note e) EAfbiEE (fite) 288,127 -
2,824,756 1,931,096
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BEME AFTER DT -
Secured FeEGwiil 2,536,629 1,931,096
Unsecured ESHE 288,127 -

2,824,756 1,931,096
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35. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

()

As at 31 December 2017, the variable-rate bank borrowings
of approximately HK$489,889,000 (2016: HK$1,098,250,000)
carried interest at the London Interbank Offered Rates (“LIBOR")
plus a margin of 2.6% (2016: 1.8% to 2.65%) per annum,
which the effective interest rates are ranging from 2.88% to
3.12% (2016: 2.39% to 3.01%) per annum. The remaining
variable-rate borrowing of approximately HK$400,000,000
(2016: HK$500,000,000) carried interest at the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rates (“HIBOR") plus a margin of 2.8%
(2016: 2.8%) per annum, which the effective interest rate is
3.68% (2016: 3.36%) per annum.

The margin financing loans were arranged with securities
brokers which are independent third parties. As at 31 December
2017, the variable-rate margin financing loans of approximately
HK$1,028,403,000 (2016: HK$302,820,000) carried interest
at the Hong Kong banks’ prime rate minus a margin ranging
from 1.0% to 2.45% (2016: 2.8%) per annum and repayable
on demand and the effective interest rate ranging from 2.8%
to 4% (2016: 2.45%) per annum. The remaining fixed rate
margin financing loans as at 31 December 2016 approximately
HK$7,770,000 carried at effective interest rates ranging from
4.0% to 6.7% per annum and repayable on demand and has
been settled during the year ended 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2016, the vendor financing loan was
arranged in relation to the purchase of distressed debt assets
carried at effective interest rate at 10.5% per annum and
repayable within one year. The vendor financing loan has been
settled during the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered
into a note instrument subscription agreement (the “Note
Agreement”) with an independent third party (the “Subscriber”)
pursuant to which the Group agreed to issue and the Subscriber
agreed to subscribe for a 8% note (the “8% Note”) in the
aggregate principal amount of US$80,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$620,904,000) with a term of 3 years from
the date of issue. The 8% Note was fully subscribed by the
Subscriber in March 2017.

In accordance with the Note Agreement, the 8% Note
was secured by all the equity shares of two wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Best Future and Tai United Financial Group Limited
(the “TU Financial”). The Group has released the charges on
equity shares of Best Future and TU Financial for the purpose
of disposing its 67% equity interest in Best Future subsequent
to the end of the reporting period (details of the disposal
are disclosed in Note 57) by issuing cashier’s orders to the
Subscriber amounting to HK$650,005,000.

The other borrowings were arranged with independent third
parties of approximately HK$288,127,000 (2016: Nil) which
are unsecured, carried at fixed interest rate ranging from 5.0%
to 6.0% per annum and repayable with a term of one to two
years. One of these borrowings amounted to HK$210,000,000
was guaranteed by a former director of the Company.

35. B E#)

G

(a)

()

R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—8  FB2#H17T
& B #489,889,000 /& 7T ( — & — X £ -
1,098,250,000/% 7T ) 1% fi BUIR 17 A £ If B X

[MRZERTTRIZEFR B R MN2.6% (= "—/\E
1.8%E2.65%) 2 FFEFHE - HEERFHE
ToF2.88%%E3.12% ( —F—/N4F : 2.39%

£3.01%) ° 88 ¥ BEE#%1400,000,000% 7T
(=% fﬁi : 500,000,000/5 7T ) ¥ BB R1T
REFSX([BBRITAEFEEX])MN2.8%
(= :*—/\i 12.8%)ZFEREREE - HERSF
FE 53.68%(=ZF—7NF 1 3.36%) °

RECBMEDNEESFCL(BBYE=ZF)ER
e RN_T—tF+-_A=+—8  FBR
FHERE ER491,028,403,00058 T (— T —%
£ 1 302,820,000/ 7T ) I BB IRITHREZFE
B1.0%E2.45% (= F—RF : 2.8%) ZFF|
R EWBREREE ERFHNEL28%
FA% (T —7RF 1 245%) c R-ZT—RNF
+=—A=+—8" ﬁ%Tﬁgﬁ ESRABRL

7,770,000 TR B FHENF4.0%ZE6.7%
RN ARERKEEANBRE T —tF+ -
A=+—HLEFEDLE

55 o

RZE—R"FE+=ZA=+—8"
i%é%ﬁ%?kaﬁﬂﬁ% IR EBRFFE10.5%
FEYEAR—FRER REE-T—+tF
+= H +—BLFEBEIRMEERELS -

MEETRE

REE-_T—+F+_A=+—HILFE -
AEESEBYE=F([RBEHFDITLEET
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35. BORROWINGS (Continued) 35. {EE &)
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+tF ZE—RF
FET FET
The carrying amounts of the above borrowings B ERREERE AR EE
are repayable (Note): (M%) -
Within one year —F A 1,202,981 564,141
More than two years, but not exceeding MELE  BTBB=F
three years 620,904 -
1,823,885 564,141
The carrying amount of secured bank BE—BEEREREXEENHFTIE
borrowings that contains a repayment on BIRRREARE) B ER
demand clause (shown under current BEEMREERS QBT
liabilities) but contractually repayable as PATNBEREIEE -
follows:
Within one year —F A 700,871 393,955
More than one year, but not exceeding —FLAE BT BIBRE
two years 300,000 105,969
More than two years, but not exceeding MELE  BTBB=F
three years - 317,906
More than three years, but not exceeding =FLAE BT BBNE
four years - 549,125
1,000,871 1,366,955
2,824,756 1,931,096
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B E—FRRERL IR AR E
under current liabilities BENESHE (2,203,852) (1,931,096)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities  %I/RAIERBEEN S 620,904 -
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set MieT © R FEDIRBERIGRTEATEERRB
out in the loan agreements. HEtE -

Details of charges over the borrowings are disclosed in Note 50. BB 2 B R E R M EE50 -
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36. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED

36. FE{SBARE 1 R FKIR

COMPANIES
Name Relationship 2017 2016
£15B A& HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—tF ZE—RF
FE T FAT
Tai Capital (HK) Limited Under common control by Mr. Wang Qiang,
a director of the Company
RLRER(HB)BRAT BARRZEE TR ERRES 192 -
Tai He Financial Immediate holding company
(former ultimate holding company)
AHE R BHEERERAR(AISKERAT) - 14,728
192 14,728
The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on SZETIE A B NBEIRESREE o
demand.
37. LOAN NOTES 37. ERERE
HK$'000
FAT
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 1 April 2016 R-ZE—RFMOA—H -
Loan notes issued FrBTEREER 1,395,000
Loss on initial recognition of loan notes (Note 9) TIATERE NG 2 B8 (K15E9) 440
Transaction costs incurred FE 4 2 X SRR (13,950)
Interest expense charged during the period HARUE 2 B B R s 30,626
At 31 December 2016 RZTE—RFE+_H=+—H 1,412,116
Interest expense charged during the year FERYELZ FEFZ 29,421
Redemption of loan notes ERERE>D (1,441,537)

At 31 December 2017

WZ2—tF+=-A=+—H
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37.

LOAN NOTES (continued)

On 28 September 2016, the Company entered into the
loan notes and warrants subscription agreement (the
“Loan Notes Subscription Agreement”) with Cheer Hope
Holdings Limited, Songhua Investment Holding Limited and
Haitong International Investment Fund SPC (the “Investors”)
pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to
issue, and the Investors conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, the loan notes in the aggregate principal amount of not
more than US$180,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,395,000,000) (the “Loan Notes”) with an initial term
of 2 years from the date of issue, which may be extended for
a further term of one year by the Company with the consent
of the holders of Loan Notes (the “Loan Notes Holders").
The Loan Notes were fully subscribed by the Investors on 30
September 2016.

Pursuant to the Loan Notes Subscription Agreement, in
consideration of the subscription of the Loan Notes by
the Investors, the Company conditionally agreed to grant
the warrants to the Investors. The warrants will entitle the
holders (the “Warrants Holders"”) thereof to subscribe for up
to 279,000,000 shares of the Company at an initial warrant
shares subscription price of HK$1.0 per warrant share
during the warrants subscription period. The warrant shares
subscription price is subject to adjustment according to the
terms and conditions of the warrants instrument.

If Loan Notes Holders are also Warrants Holders, such Loan
Notes Holders shall have option to elect to use all or part of
the outstanding principal amount of the Loan Notes held by
them to set off the relevant exercise money payable upon the
exercise of the warrants held by such Loan Notes Holders. If
the Loan Notes have not been converted, it will be redeemed
by the Company at maturity date.

The Loan Notes bear interest at 5% fixed coupon rate per
annum calculated by reference to the principal amount
thereof and payable semi-annually in arrears on 30
September and 31 March of each year, commencing with
the first interest payment date falling on 31 March 2017.
Each warrant outstanding as at the last day of its Warrants
Subscription Period (as defined in the announcement dated
28 September 2016) shall be redeemed by the Company
on the last day of its Warrants Subscription Period at the
redemption price which shall be an amount that will yield a
15% return on the initial subscription price paid for the Loan
Notes per annum calculated from the Loan Notes closing
date. The warrants shall be transferable by the Warrants
Holders in whole amounts or integral multiples of the warrant
shares subscription price.

37. EREE@w)

RZZE—RNFRAZTNB  ARRIHEE
2RR A PR A A + Songhua Investment Holding
Limited K&z Haitong International Investment Fund
SPC([REEHE DI LERERBERRBREER
Bz EREBEREHZE]) Bt - &2
AIERHERIEET MREEEKRERER
K% #8587 % 72 180,000,000 3% 7T (8% %
#71,395,000,000/8 L) 2 ERRE ([ ERE
B - BETEHR REMF - ATHAARF
KERZBEREANTEREEFEADRER
E—FPER—F - EREBER_Z—RFH
A=+ BEEEREERE -

REEREEREHE  EAREERERIER
ZRE  ARABBRERER FIREERRE
FHoRBREEBETEEARRERETE
ADRRBEFERE AR VA RRIEFER
NREBESTRRABREZRMD1.0BTRERS
279,000,000& AR 2 RIA& 10 o SRARIERE AR (0 7R
BB T IR R SR ARAE B SR Z IR S G R EE -

HWERZBERFBEAMSBBEEREA Al
EEFEBERBEARARERNAREESRR
BRAARBZERZBENZHMRID REE
AL RMEERZE ERFIERE APIRFRR
RRETREEMNZERITES - HEXRR
REEE - AARRERENRELARRE
& e

BERERZESFS%ETEZmAEZF R L
(2ZBHEARSEFNE)  BY¥EIHEIN—
o RBFAA=ZTAR=A=+—AZH
A-_Z—+tF-A=Z+—BEENSEARA
T RRRRERBEH(EERLBHAE-T
—~NFENAZHNBZRE)R%E —BEBMHE
BT 2 R R R A D BN R EERE
HiR#%—AABEREER - MEBEREEAER
REREEINZVRREEEEREERE
BHRAESEBEL15% R S5 - BB
B R AR B E AN RRAEZRD R
Bz AR EHEEE -
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37. LOAN NOTES (Continued) 37. EREE@w)

Should there are no warrants being granted by the date
falling six calendar months after the first closing date of the
Loan Notes, or any other date as agreed in writing between
the Loan Notes Holders and the Company (the “Warrants
Long Stop Date”) (i.e. 30 March 2017), in accordance to the
Loan Notes Subscription Agreement, the Loan Notes Holders
can exercise early redemption rights by giving a written notice
of early redemption to the Company and all or any of the
Loan Notes held by such Loan Notes Holders are immediately
due and repayable at a redemption price (the “No Warrant
Early Redemption Price”).

The No Warrant Early Redemption Price shall be the amount
equivalent to the sum of (i) the outstanding principal amount
of the Loan Notes to be redeemed by such Loan Notes
Holders; (i) unpaid interest accrued on the Loan Notes from
the issue date to (and including) the date of full payment of
the No Warrant Early Redemption Price; (iii) unpaid default
interest (if any) accrued on the Loan Notes; (iv) such amount as
would result in an internal rate of return of 9.1% per annum
on the outstanding principal amount of the Loan Notes to be
redeemed from the issue date to (and including) the date of
full payment of the No Warrant Early Redemption Price; and
(v) all other outstanding amounts payable by the Company
to the Loan Notes Holders under the other transaction
documents.

In accordance with the Loan Notes Subscription Agreement,
the Group pledged all the shares of two wholly-owned
subsidiaries, namely, Best Future and Hongrong Financial
Holding (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd to a security agent, Songhua
Investment Holding Limited who held the equity interests on
behalf of the Investors as collaterals. The collaterals will be
discharged when the net assets value of the Group exceeds
HK$3,000,000,000 and debt ratio not exceeding 200%. The
Loan Notes were guaranteed by Tai He Financial, Mr. Chua
and one of his wholly-owned company. As at 31 December
2016, the above said conditions are fully satisfied and the
charges on collaterals are released.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the issuance of
Loan Notes amounting to approximately HK$13,950,000
are included in the carrying amount of the Loan Notes and
amortised over 2 years using the effective interest method.

R B EEREEZE B BRR A EEAZR
SERRERAARLARBE@IBE 2 M
His BE([ R RREL RS - BI=F
—tF=ZA=TRUERERBHHRLA
R - ERERFEANEBARARE
HieFBOz EmMEBMTERAEREREH
ERRBERBAMBEZMBLEAERRRE
BIES | Bt Bl E ([ JERR B E IR R
EDER -

ARHRREFRFELERESN THIZE
ZH:(WVEHERZEFBEABELEREE
CAREBEATE  (VEXEBRARITHELE
ERYINABEHRREFRFELEALY
(RIEE R)NEFAMFE  (NEREIERNE
FIARMNEBAOME(RE) - (v TERERER
ZREEASEARTABBRESEEIMR
BRI EERESENEAS(EEE R RS
FIN%MANHLEHMEAE 2 BRSEE - k()
BEEMZ SRR RENTFERZERE
AR H ARG EFRIE o

REBEFRZERERZ  AEEMEHERE
Songhua Investment Holding Limited 2 ## / f&]
Z2EWE R A (BMES R ARREEER ORI
BRAR) 2 EHG  WRRERERLES
BEREUMEARRR - MIFRERASEE 2
& EF{EH383,000,000,000/8 7T & & (&t &
NEBB200% 85 T LARERR - EREHRBHAME
B BEAREREQRZ—EER N -Z
—RNE+ZA=+—8 bl e ERSuE
B B AR IR R 2 4K o

BITEREBEE RN HZ4913,950,000
BT AERZ IR EREERME A TR R EE
A HABR AT TS o
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37.

LOAN NOTES (continued)

The fair value of the Loan Notes are measured based on the
present value of the redemption amount at maturity with
reference to a valuation report carried out by an independent
qualified professional valuers, JLL, at the Loan Notes
subscription date (i.e. 30 September 2016).

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the Loan Notes were
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method
and the effective interest rate of the Loan Notes is 9.1% per
annum. As at 31 December 2016, the Company has not yet
fulfilled all the substantive conditions precedent for granting
the warrants to the Loan Notes Holders. Pursuant to the
Loan Notes Subscription Agreement, the Directors considered
that the probability of fulfilling all substantive conditions and
issuing the warrants within the Warrants Long Stop Date
is remote. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
management of the Group has negotiated with the Loan
Notes Holders for not granting any warrants and the Loan
Notes Holders agreed to exercise their rights to demand
for immediate repayment of the Notes at No Warrant Early
Redemption Price at the end of Warrant Long Stop Date,
which is 30 March 2017 and therefore, considering the facts
above, the Loan Notes would be accounted for as a straight
bond carried at 9.1% interest per annum and repayable on
30 March 2017.

On 30 March 2017, the Company redeemed the Loan Notes
from the Loan Notes Holders, at the outstanding principal
amount including all interest payable of approximately
HK$1,441,537,000.

37. EREE@w)

EREBERARETNZEE LA BREEMERM
IRRNEERSBRNERRERE (R
TE-RFAAZTR)RIHEEREE L
REFTE -

RYEERE  BERZBRFEAEEREMNREAR
BHEAANNRERERZERCEBRTRRA
91% - RZE—RF+ZA=+—H ' &R
AR E R E B RE AR L RIEEERFT
BHRIEN - REERZERERE &
FERE - ERABELSORMEG RN RIREE
H&E B AR TRRERE Z AT a R A
NoBEZT—+F+_A=+—HBIEFE "
AEBEEEEHERZEFFARTEEE
RIEEETER  MERZEFEARE
RRREESERILLBRER(IR =S —+
FZA=1+H)RTEELRFERIZAFE DR
REFERELENREEEE Rt =&
B EMEE  BREEBIZIN%ZFFET
EALREANEAN-_Z—+F=A=+HE
o

RZZE—+FZA=Z1+H ARABERERE
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H(EEE2HEMFE)EBELERREE



189

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z - —+F+_A=+—HIFE

38. LOAN FROM A RELATED COMPANY 38. ~HEEQNTZER
As at 31 December 2017, the loan from a related company, RZZE—tFE+-A=+—H ke —fHH#
Tai An Capital (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.* KZ & A& CEII) BIR ERAAZEARRYINERRAI(T AL )2
A 7] (“Tai An"), with carrying amount of HK$121,847,000 BRME A121,847,0008 L ( — T — /XN
(2016: HK$171,444,000) is unsecured, interest bearing at 171,444,000 7T) K E 7 BT - $24.75%
4.75% (2016: 4.75%) per annum, repayable on 28 December ZERF 1 A475%) 2 FREF B RARS
2018 and denominated in RMB. Tai An is established in Z-N\EEFT_AZT/\HEERAARE
the PRC with limited liability and is under common control FHE o K& A —RBRFEAR LB
by Mr. Wang Qiang, a director of the Company. The loan WERARWHARRZESEREEHLRE
is measured at amortised cost, based on the present value # o ZEFRNEHEKARTE - BEREKAT%
of the estimated future cash outflow discounted using the (ZE—REF 7%) 2ERFEREE - 2RALR
effective interest rate of 7% (2016: 7%) per annum and the fHetRERE R MEE-_T—AF+_A
initial fair value adjustment on loan from a related company =+—RAIENEARKE —REEARZER
is recognised as other capital contribution reserve during the LS ANERARDERRSEMTERE -
nine months ended 31 December 2016.
*  The English name is for identification purpose only. o RXEABIERBR -
39. OTHER LIABILITIES - INTEREST IN 30. HiLBE - RE S EBHER
CONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITY e
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+fF —T—RF
FHET FHTT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: 2B FTIER DT -
Current liabilities mEBE 1,203,767 -
Non-current liabilities FERBEE = 1,165,586
1,203,767 1,165,586

As disclosed in Note 23, the Group had consolidated an
investment fund structured entity — Haitong Dynamic Fund.
For the investment fund where the Group involves as
investor, the Group assesses whether the investment it held
creates exposure to variability of returns from the activities
of the investment fund that is of such significance and the
guarantee given to the other investor that it indicates that the
Group is a principal.

AN 23ATIREE - AREREE SO EEIT
% & H ¢ B8 —Haitung Dynamic Fund ° ¥ 7%
REBEAREENRELS - AEETHE
REZRERTERREEREY LB AIE
MERE R E R EMIREEELERME
TRAREE R F T A EF B REE -
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39.

OTHER LIABILITIES — INTEREST IN
CONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITY
(Continued)

Third-party interest in consolidated structured entity consist
of interest of third-party shareholder in consolidated
structured entity which are reflected as a liability since they
can be put back to the Group for cash. The realisation of
net assets attributable to third-party shareholder’s interest
in consolidated structured entity cannot be predicted with
accuracy since these represented the interest of third-party
shareholder in consolidated investment fund that are subject
to the actions of third-party shareholder.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, profit attributable to
the third party’s interest of approximately HK$76,072,000
(nine months ended 31 December 2016: HK$2,486,000) in
consolidated structured entities is presented in other gains
and losses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Haitong
Dynamic Fund distributed the interest income amounting to
US$8,468,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$65,973,000)
to Haitong Global and Haitong Global decided to
reinvest US$2,468,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$19,123,000) to Haitong Dynamic Fund. The third
party’s interest in consolidated structured entity, including
the principal, distribution, reinvestment and profit shared
from the investment fund structured entity, amounted to
approximately HK$1,203,767,000 (2016: HK$1,165,586,000)
as at 31 December 2017 is presented as other liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
consolidated structured entity is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amounts
shown in the consolidated structure entity’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

30. HhBE-HRESHEBMER
ZREE ()

AE=ZITRCateREER el =
FIRENRE GBI TR EamHlmE
AEBUERE  HERBRAAEE - F=K
RREAHEBEER RERIGEEFELZ
IR EIEHERY - REAHEARE=)
BRERITHMRBHE=TRRNGERELS
P £l

BHE_Z—+F+-A=+—HBLLEFEHM

FZFREAHABUEETE 2 EEEGET
#976,072,000 8 L (B Z2=ZF—~F+=A
=+—HIENER : 2,486,000 7C) NEr A 18
mRANEMKREMEEREMEERET 2
Bl o

HE-_FT—tF+-A=+—BIEFE "
Haitong Dynamic Fund @ Haitong Global J& 2
8,468,000 7T, (#8557 4765,973,000% 7T, ) 2
FE WA - i1 Haitong Global j& 7€ [7] Haitong
Dynamic Fund & ¥ 1% & 2,468,000 % 7T (15
M#919,123,00087T) c R=ZZT—+F+=A
—t—H B FREHEBETRE B
(BREELGREREESHBEER A
IREE - BRI E s 58471,203,767,000
BIT)(ZZ—XF : 1,165,586,00078 7T ) 1E A
HiBE2YIRREMBERRERA -

BERAKBECAMEBEER ZMB AL
BN TX - TXZHBERBERER S
BHREERR D EHEBEER ZMHR
RAFREH
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39. OTHER LIABILITIES - INTEREST IN 39. HhBBE-HNE 4B HER
CONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITY pa:-3:3¢ ),
(Continued)
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+E —T—RE
FET FAET
Current assets MEEE 1,646,794 98,771
Non-current assets JEMBNE E - 1,460,808
Current liabilities MEAE 2,204 73,977
The above amounts of assets and liabilities FiEErRBESTE
include the following: BREATEIE
Cash and cash equivalents HekZERREER 171,224 94,987
Loan note receivable JENE R EE 1,472,118 1,460,808
Dividend payable JERRR B - 73,663
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BZE HZE
—E—+F —ZE—RF
+t=A=+—-H +=-A=+—~H
IEFEE 1ENEA
FET FAET
Revenue for the year/period EFHRI S 217,386 6,798
Profit and total comprehensive income FE/HEEMNREEKSEEE

for the year/period 135,069 5,541
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40. DEFERRED TAX 40. EEBH
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement RRFEMBIRAERNEZWMENMS - & TE
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities LEHIEEERBREEE - LN AR BRE
have been offset. The following is the analysis of deferred tax B 8 i R B R EE AT

balances for financial reporting purposes:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—B—+tF —EREF
FET FET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HE2HREWFTER DT -
Deferred tax assets FEEFTAE E (2,039) -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEBE 224,251 245,453
222,212 245,453
The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities REHMEBACEEZRERB(EE)BER
recognised and movements thereon during the reporting HEEHB0T -
periods:
Revaluation
of financial
assets  Revaluation  Revaluation Accrued
designated of mining ~ of investment interest
as at FVTPL rights properties Tax losses income Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EftiEEA
BOME
THABRE
ZEREE  ERiNBE ERRENE BEEE  ESHEHA @t
TATL TAT TAL TATL THTL TATL
At1 April 2016 W=2—7EmA-A - 93,158 - - - 93,158
Charge to profit or loss nesnEafn)
for the period (Note 11) 8,041 - 144,508 - - 152,549
Exchange realignment [ 5% (48) - (206) - - (254)
At 31 December 2016 RIZ—RE
+-A=+-8 7,993 93,158 144,302 - - 245,453
(Credit) charge to profitor ~ (RFA)IEEREE
loss for the year (Note 1) (Fif&E11) (2,824) - (32,672) (1,959) 3,257 (34,198)
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEFB AR
(Note 48(i)(g)) (MFE48(i)g)) - - 976 - - 976
Exchange realignment [ R 486 - 9,566 (80) 9 9,981
At 31 December 2017 RZZ

—t#
TZA=t-H 5,655 93,158 122,172 (2,039) 3,266 222,212
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40. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 40. IEFEBL IR ()

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$305,155,000 (2016:
HK$259,393,000) available for offset against future
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$2,039,000 (2016: Nil) of such losses. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$303,116,000 (2016: HK$259,393,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$30,407,000 (2016:
HK$81,288,000) that will expire from 2018 to 2022. Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
difference attributable to the retained profits earned by
the subsidiaries in the PRC amounting to approximately
HK$576,276,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$152,128,000) as the Group is unable to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Under the Provisional Regulations of LAT ((FFZE A RHEFIE
T HbIBERE TTIEM))) effective on 1 January 1994, and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT ({H 2 A R HFIED £ 30 48 (B B 17 15
B & j 41 Bl )) effective from 27 January 1995, all income
from the sales or transfer of state-owned land use rights,
buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject to
LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the
appreciation value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures in relation to the gains arising
from sales of properties in the PRC effective from 1 January
2004. Deferred taxation of LAT has been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of appreciation
value of an investment property located in the PRC.

RBEHR  AEBEZRPEHREBEY
305,155,000 7T ( ==& — 7S 4F : 259,393,000
BIL) AR MEE R AT - R EHEER
JEFE R I8 & 2,039,000/ 7L ( — & — /K F ¢
) o B KR ICEF AR 2 A TR - B
48 5 £8  303,116,00078 7T ( = 2 — /N 4F ¢
259,393,000 7T ) RIELERIBEE © 5T A
KRR IER B 2 F51830,407,0008 L (==
—7N4F 81,288,000 L) E T —\FE
TEZCFER o BB ER A -

BEFBRCEMSHEN 8 =TS N\F— A
—HR BAEEZFREWER B w5 F
Bk REBEFWTER - R=F—+F+ A
=+ —H  WARREE P BEWE AR M
BRI RE R EGEEREEZETIE
IR E 5 7B 49576,276,00078 7T ( — & — /N4 ¢
152,128,000/ 7T) + E 7N B A1 6B it
R 2 OIS B a7 R M = A A TE RS AR
Nl 2 E

RIEE—NNTF-A-RERZPEARK
ME L BERETERS - RE—ANAF—
AZ B &Rz PEARKME L IR ER
EITIRGIERARR - FAEREHERERTE
BELMERE BT REMBREZBAR
RIE L HIRETIEN F30% £60% 2 1E{E R
MERGH - AHEMEMERIERLHEE T E
YMERES WS ZAIIRAY - B —FTMF
—A—BEAN - DHIREREEHRACIL
R B2 R EMEZIEERES P HRERAG
TRERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & —=

—tFtZRA=t—RLFE

41. SHARE CAPITAL 41. BA&
Number of Share
shares capital
HK$'000
RBEE &N
FHL
Authorised ordinary shares at ZBR0.05BTZEEEBR
HK$0.05 per share
At 1 April 2016, 31 December 2016 RZZ—RFMA—H -
and 31 December 2017 —E-RE+tZA=+-HBRK
—ET—+&+_-_fF=+—H 34,566,666,668 1,728,333
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares at EER.05BTZERTR
HK$0.05 per share BREBR
At 1 April 2016 RZZE—RFMA—H 1,501,092,436 75,054
Subscription of rights shares (Note a) REEF R (MzTa) 3,002,184,872 150,110
Placement of new shares (Note b) F e 3ty (MEEh) 300,000,000 15,000
At 31 December 2016 RZB—RFE+A=+—H 4,803,277,308 240,164
Issue of shares (Note c) BITHR D (M) 446,742,544 22,337
At 31 December 2017 —tF+-A=+—H 5,250,019,852 262,501
Authorised preference shares at EBR0.05B T ZEER LR
HK$0.05 per share
At 1 April 2016, 31 December 2016 RZZ—RFMA—H -
and 31 December 2017 —E-RE+tZA=+-HBRK
—ET—+&+_-_F=+—H 5,433,333,332 271,666
Issued and fully paid preference shares ZER0.05BTZERITR
at HK$0.05 per share BREER

At 1 April 2016, 31 December 2016
and 31 December 2017

Notes:

(@ On 1 September 2016, the Company entered into an (a) EQ_:,

75/3:7: NEMA—H -
ZE-RFTZA=1+—H8k
—E—+tF+ZA=1+—H

NENA—B KRR BED

underwriting agreement, pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to allot and issue 3,002,184,872
rights shares at the subscription price of HK$1.00 per
rights shares on the basis of two rights shares for every one
existing ordinary share of the Company held on 21 October
2016 (the “Subscription”). The Subscription was completed
on 7 November 2016 with net proceeds of approximately
HK$2,991,242,000 and resulted in the increase in share capital
of HK$150,110,000 and share premium of approximately
HK$2,852,075,000, net of transaction costs of approximately
HK$10,943,000.

& Bt - AR B EEHRE LSRRGS
1.oo;‘%7‘52%%%5.%1%@5%&%??3,002,184,872
R - EEEBRARR T —AF+
BRZ+—BHEEE—KRBEEE LHX‘M’%?;EEﬁ
BRERBRG(TREEE]) - REEEER
—E-XFE+—A+tHEK FAEZHEEF
FE#)52,991,242,00058 T H S R A1 A0
150,110,0007% 7T} B% 15 /4 (B 492,852,075,000
FIC - B S AN4)10,943,000% 7T ©
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41. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 41. [RZ ()

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  On 15 December 2016, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Haitong International Securities Company
Limited (the “Placing Agent”) whereby the Company agreed to
place, through the Placing Agent, 300,000,000 new shares of
the Company to no less than six placees at a price of HK$1.2
per share (the “Placement”). The Placement was completed
on 30 December 2016 with net proceeds of approximately
HK$358,172,000 and resulted in the increase in share capital
of HK$15,000,000 and share premium of approximately
HK$345,000,000, net of transaction costs of approximately
HK$1,828,000.

(€0 On 24 March 2017, the Company issued 446,742,544 ordinary
shares which form the consideration for the acquisition of
Tai Infinite Group and resulted in the increase in share capital
of HK$22,337,000 and share premium of approximately
HK$585,233,000 and constituted a non-cash transaction.
Details of the acquisition of subsidiaries are set out in Note 48(i)

(9).

42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

BiaE - (4%)

b)) R-ZZE—R"F+-A+EB  AQFEER
BEREHFERAA([RERE] I IREER
FoBE ARARESREERERTD
RABEREAANERI2BETZREEBRER
/A 8),2.300,000,000 % #H B fn ([FREEE ) »
REFHER _Z—XF+_A=+H=EK
(P8 FIB F3849358,172,00087T) » FIf8 3K
B F 58 49 /5358,172,0008 7T » E 45 B AIE 0
15,000,000 7t & fi% 17 ¥4 (& %7345,000,000 %5
TC - R B ANK 1,828,000 T °

© RZZE—+tHE=A-1+WA KAQAAHEIT
446,742, 544 L BRIEAUEBE A REBMAR(E
2 — &5 - ESRRANIE 122,337,000 7T &
% 17 3% {8 49585,233,00078 o I Ak — 1B IE 3R
©325 o WIEKB ARz FH B M FE48()(g) 1%

5= o

42, FEIER R

Share of

net assets of

subsidiaries

HK$'000

PEME R E

EEFE

FAT

At 1 April 2016 RZE—R"FMA—H 9,015
Share of loss for the period SMEHIAE R (156)
Share of translation reserve DAGIE (383)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 49(a)) T A R (BT EE49(a)) (5,426)
At 31 December 2016 RZZT—R"F=A=+—8 3,050
Share of loss for the year DMEFREE (5)
Share of translation reserve DIGE 177
At 31 December 2017 RIB—+F+-A=+—H 3,222

The Directors considered that excessive costs would be
incurred with no additional value to disclose financial
information of Beijing Kanggiao Tongda Co. Ltd.* 1t &= &
1B E AR A A ("Kanggiao”) which are immaterial to the
Group.

* The English name is for identification purpose only.

EER/BENKAKGESL - ABLEHAK
SEEBTEENRIIMEERANEEILRER
BEARAR(EBDZMBESR -

* o RXABIEMHER -
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43. OPERATING LEASES 43. BERY
The Group as lessor AEBEEREHEA
Property rental income earned during the year ended 31 HEZFT—tF+-A=+—RHILFEARHFR
December 2017 was approximately HK$129,689,000 (nine 2%%%314&)\7,%,\@129 689,000/ T (HZE—
months ended 31 December 2016: HK$2,263,000). The T—RFE+ZA=+—HIEAMEA 12,263,000
investment properties are expected to generate rental yield of PEIL) o WA MEBHBIRBEELE5.05%(=
5.05% (2016: 5.70%) on an ongoing basis. Almost all of the — N 1 5.70%) TS REE - FTEEEY
properties held have committed tenants for next one to nine FHRRLHEFPEAFEEA T —ENEF -
years.
At the end of the reporting periods, the Group had RWEIR - AEERBTAIHEBEEHNE
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum B E Y2 2 BEUA TN AR R AR AR & T B AE =
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in RN EHZBIERMAT

respect of investment properties which fall due as follows:

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

—B—+tF ZE—RF

FHET FHTT

Within one year —FR 95,095 142,011
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZFELF(BREEEMF) 380,382 568,042
Over five years AFUE 380,382 682,021

855,859 1,392,074
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43. OPERATING LEASES (Continued) 43, REHN (@)

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating lease
in respect of office premises during the year ended
31 December 2017 was approximately HK$28,501,000 (nine
months ended 31 December 2016: HK$18,619,000).

At the end of the reporting periods, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office premises
which fall due as follows:

REBE/FEBAA

HE-_Z—tF+_A=+—BItFR  RE
KEHARMAEYEE N HEHS N RLD
28,501,000 L (ZE—XRF+-_A=+—H
WEAMEA ¢ 18,619,000/ 7T) °

R|ERR - AEERER T HEI ST
AHBEEERORBRAEME 2 RARKEERS
BECS K

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

—Z2—+F ZTRF

FTHET FHET

Within one year —FR 25,002 24,130
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEEFNF(BEEEMST) 14,891 34,880
39,893 59,010

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises during the reporting periods.
Leases for office premises are negotiated for a term ranging
from one to five years (nine months ended 31 December
2016: three to five years) with fixed rentals.

HEREHN[  LEBEONRIEREERES
THAEMEERNZES - BAZYEENEK
ERRBEEEE /BN —ERAF(ZFT—X
FH-A=t—RIAEA: ==FF) -
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44. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Apart from details of the balances with related parties
disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position
and other details disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had entered into the
following significant transactions with related parties during
the reporting periods:

(a)

(b)

44. BEALTHE

Brir e MR IR TR EE 2 B A L2 48
B HBERGEAEVBRREMEAMKREZE
BN AEENRE SR REEALFIL
INTEARRS

Transactions with related parties (a) BEBEALRS
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BZ H=
—EB—+tF —E-RF
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
IHEE IENEA
FTHET FHIT
Interest expense on loans from Tai He AMERzERZF S
Financial (Note) (BF3E) - 32,278
Interest expense on loan from a related B ARz B2 A B
company (Note 38) (Mi3E38) 10,507 131

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has a bank
borrowing with an outstanding amount of
HK$500,000,000 which is guaranteed by Tai He
Financial and secured by commercial properties units
in Hong Kong owned by Mr. Chua. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Group acquired those
commercial properties units from Mr. Chua and details
disclosed in Note 48(i)(g).

Note: Interest expenses were charged on loans from Tai He
Financial and the amounts were unsecured, interest
bearing at 4.5% per annum and repayable within
eighteen months since the draw down date. The entire
amounts have been fully settled during the nine months
ended 31 December 2016.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors, being the key
management personnel, are set out in Note 13, which
is determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

RZZ—AR"F+ZA=+—8 £EEZ
KB IRTTHE E 500,000,000 7T T A
MERMEERITIASEEERE 2 BEEE
MEBMNERE BE=-Z2—+tF+=
A=1+—HLEE  AEEHRELERE
SREmEDEENM - FBHEERMWE
48(i)9) °

MiEE - FBZHTIEREAME 5 E 5 i
BB ZA B AR - R45% 2 FF)
Kt B RZARERA SR HABARN
HE -BE-ZT—AFt+=-A=+—H
IENER - 2EREEEE ©

(b) TEEBABZHM

EE(AEEEIEAR) ZFHMMERME
13 EHFMIIAFMEZEeKEEEA
RALTIZBERETE -
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45. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45 EXRAMBERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders, to support the Group's
stability and growth, and to strengthen the Group’s financial
management capability.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes borrowings, loan notes and loan from
a related company disclosed in Notes 35, 37 and 38,
respectively, net of bank balances and cash, and total equity.

The Directors actively and regularly reviews its capital
structure and make adjustments in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payables to
shareholders, issue new shares or raise and repay debts. The
Group's capital management objectives, policies or processes
were unchanged during the current year and previous period.

The Directors monitor capital using net debts to net debts
plus total equity ratio. These ratios as at 31 December 2017
and 2016 were as follows:

AEBERREERN  EEBRAEENEREA
FERQE  TRBRRMERAR®R - XFAK
BEIRE RIE R - AR A S B EE IR

ak,
Be ©

AEBMEARERFAGEFE(HHIBIEW
7135 37MISWHEMIEE - ERFEBLEH A
RIZER) MBBITEL LIRS - UARER
4A%E o

ERE T R ML A AR WRRE
BRREBBIEL AL - AR BEE AR
- AEESEBERA TRENRE BT
HRABEA S REEES - WAFERIBE
509 AREETREAN DL BRI
AT B -

EERARAFEGARRFENE AT
EEEER N FLER-E-AETS
A=+—BHRSLEDT :

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E—+F ZE—REF

FET FAT

Net debts (Note a) aEFa (M) 1,565,918 1,497,994

Total equity (Note b) M58 (f3Eb) 5,183,006 4,232,230
Net debts to net debts plus total equity BEFHERAEEFENER

ratio (%) R (%) 23.20% 26.14%

Notes: BSE
(@) Net debts equals to borrowings, loan notes and loan from a (@ BEFESHEE BREE BBARIZE
related company less bank balances and cash. FORIRTTAESR IR -
(b)  Total equity equals to all capital and reserves of the Group (b) ERPEENAEENMERAREE 815

including non-controlling interests. FEPE R o
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. €@ T B
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) €T EHNER
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+tF ZE—RF
FET FAT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBERABRZCREE
Distressed debt assets designated BERANEGTABRZ
as at FVTPL TREBEE 446,660 452,600
Held-for-trading investments RIEBEERE 2,244,524 651,856
Financial derivative contracts CRITERL 93,539 -
Structured deposits designated BERASEABREZ
as at FVTPL BT 89,020 313
2,873,743 1,104,769
Loans and receivables (including bank B R EMGIA (R IERTT
balances and cash) EHNIRE) 4,252,234 4,767,962
Available-for-sale investments AEEECRE 70,919 1,116
Financial liabilities cRIEE
Financial liabilities held-for-trading HIEEESMAE 6,600 -
Amortised cost BEEHR A 5,526,030 5,702,266
Financial derivative contracts SRITERL - 12,685
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIEEMREEBERBR
and policies
The Group's major financial instruments include AEENFESRTAREETRANE
distressed debt assets designated as at FVTPL, loan note SFABRZTREBEE BHNERE
receivable, available-for-sale investments, accounts B AR E2RE - EURERTR - EME
receivable, other receivables, financial derivative WFIE ~ € BTERY HIEEEKRE -
contracts, held-for-trading investments, pledged bank IIRIRITIFIR ~ BB - ZRHIRTT
deposits, structured deposits, restricted bank deposits, TR RITAESRERS - BNRREER
bank balances and cash, accounts and bills payables, =ik HibETROE - 5B - JENREE A
other payables, borrowings, amounts due to related BIFE C BREE BB ZERNLEHE
companies, loan notes, loan from a related company HEE - BZELp T ERENERBTE
and other liabilities. The risks associated with these TiGER(EEER - FREREEME
financial instruments include market risk (currency BER) - EFERR - REBELERE KT
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk, REBERKE - ARENMRBEZES R
liquidity risk and distressed assets risks. The policies REN TN - BRETEREEZEER
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The AR RS R B B e EE Fa i

management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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46. ©EL T B (@)
(b) BIEMREEREREE®)

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk TSR

(i)

Currency risk

The Group has the foreign currency denominated
bank balances, held-for-trading investments,
deposits paid for potential acquisitions, financial
derivative contracts, bills payables, other payables,
borrowings and intercompany balance. Several
subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
purchases, which also expose the Group to
foreign currency risk. Approximately 99.8% (2016:
99.8%) of the Group’s purchases is denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of
the group entities making the purchases.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

(@)

EBEmE

NEBBEAUINETENRTE
% BEEBERE BREWEZE
NEe - eBOEEAYN  EBNAE
B HEMEMRE - BERARRM
ek o AREIE THBRARMINE
RBEAEEATINERR o AE
EHRBEH99.8%( —F—/N4F ¢
99.8% ) HASEE BHEERFAIEE
B2 M E A EHEETHE -

R EHR - NEEUINEGHER
EREELREKAENKREEDT

Liabilities Assets
=N &E
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
ZB—+tF —TRF ZEB-—tF —TRF
FHET FET FTHET FET
uss$ ES 620,904 1,412,116 70,279 9
RMB AR 1,242,218 790,013 4,163 106,387
GBP g - - 119,966 315,783
HK$ BT 43,906 7,770 149,047 36,084
Singapore Dollar("SGD") Al T
(F#rpnsT 1) - 1,117 10,761 5,816
Inter-company balance NSIIEFE =S
HK$ BT 1,110,000 1,110,000 - -

The Group conducts periodic review of the
exposure and requirements of various currencies B R MR EETE SR
and has used foreign currency forward contracts I B {55 R iR HASINE & £ ¥ R HNEE [
to hedge against foreign currency exposures as i o

disclosed in Note 30.

B30 HE - AEEYRA
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed currency risk related
to RMB, HK$, GBP and SGD.

For the entities of which their functional currency
is HK$ while holding assets and liabilities
denominated in US$, the Directors consider
that as HK$ is pegged to US$, the Group is not
subject to significant foreign currency risk from
change in foreign exchange rate of HK$ against
US$ and hence only consider the sensitivity of the
change in foreign exchange rate of HK$ against
currencies other than US$. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding monetary items which
are denominated in relevant foreign currencies
and adjusts its translation at the year/period end
for a 5% change in relevant foreign currencies
exchange rates.

46. €T E (@)
(b) HERABREEREERER®)

5 E B (4E)
() EEEEGE
BURE DT

AEBTEMEEARE BT
RERFIETHREN SRR -

HEMEEERABTMBTEUET
AHENEERAGBZER  EFR
o BTLHETHE - ARETE
HARTHETINEE R ZEFHNEK
SRR - HiL - BERABITTHE
TCLASN 2 B W B SN E [ R ) RO B
REDH - GRESTEBIEKE
B2 AERINEFHENERIRE
WHE/ R B REINEEREE)
Z5%HEEBE -
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46. ©EL T B (@)
(b) BIEMREEREREE®)

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) 5 R (4E)
(i)  Currency risk (Continued) () E¥Ek(E)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BREEDN (&)

The following table details the Group'’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2016: 5%) increase and decrease in the
functional currency of the group entities against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2016: 5%)
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. It did not take into
consideration the foreign currency forward
contracts outstanding at the end of the reporting
period as the Directors consider that the relevant
currency risk exposure is minimal. The analysis
illustrates the impact for a 5% strengthening of
the functional currency of the relevant group
entities against the relevant currency and a
positive and negative number below indicates an
increase and a decrease in profit respectively. For
a 5% weakening of the functional currency of
the relevant group entities against the relevant
currency, therefore would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit.

RMB Impact (i)

ARBHL()
2017 2016
HK$'000  HK$'000
8-t ZT-1F
Tgn  TEL

HKS Impact (ii)

TRHNAAEEUEEEEND
EEESEEINEAKS%(ZF
—RNE 5% ZHRE o 5% (=ZF
—NF 5% JRELLEKARRAA
HEBER A BREINE @R
B AEERELIMERE RS IZM] 4L
BE) 7 i o HIWARFTRARER
REABBOINERPED - RA
AEERAEEEERKREM - o
MR EEE TR NEER R
HEEEFAESRHTE - M N XA
FEET S B3 0E & T A9 0 KR
Lo MEBRSEERNIEEE N
HEEEEDES%  KHaNESE
[EDET:)=Z-

GBP Impact (iii) SGD Impact (iv)
HER (i) FMETEE(v)
2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
“2-7F SR-HE CT5F SE-LF 3A%
TeT  TAL  TAT  TAm  ThR

(Decrease) increase in profit (% )21 51379 28371

40,420 (5009  (13814) (447) (195)
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46. €T E (@)
(b) HERABREEREERER®)

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) m5EEE ()
(i)  Currency risk (Continued) () BEEE e
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRRE DT (&)
(i)  This is mainly attributable to the exposure on () FTEHRFEHRUARET

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

outstanding bank balances and bills payables
denominated in RMB at the year/period end.

This is mainly attributable to the exposure on
outstanding bank balances, held-for-trading
investments, borrowings and an inter-
company balance denominated in HK$ at the
year/period end.

This is mainly attributable to the exposure on
outstanding bank balances and deposits paid
for potential acquisitions denominated in
GBP at the year/period end.

This is mainly attributable to the exposure on
outstanding bank balance and other payables
denominated is SGD at the year/period end.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk as
the year/period end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year/period.

(ii)

(iii)

ERNREERTERIENR
IRHOTE H R -

TEARF HRABTIHE
MARBERITES  FIEEE
wE -~ BERARIHEEREE
Rk

TEARF HRARETHE
BB R IRITA R BB
FHENRENELRR -

TEARFHRAF I T
FHERRERIRITER MM
e R E SRR -

BEERR  ARFE/HROER

B

RERREEHERR - R

REDMTERKREBINERL
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group is mainly
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of market interest rate on accounts
receivable from margin clients as disclosed in Note
27, variable-rate bank balances and restricted
bank deposits as disclosed in Note 31 and variable-
rate borrowings as disclosed in Note 35. It is the
Group's policy to keep majority of its borrowings
at floating rates of interest so as to minimise the
fair value interest rate risk.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to loan note receivable as disclosed
in Note 23, accounts payable from margin clients
as disclosed in Note 33, fixed-rate borrowings as
disclosed in Note 35, loan notes as disclosed in
Note 37, loan from a related company as disclosed
in Note 38 and other liabilities as disclosed in Note
39.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuations of HIBOR,
LIBOR and Hong Kong Prime Rate arising from
the Group's variable interest rate instrument.
The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, the management will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

46. ©EL T B (@)
(b) BIEMREEREREE®)

5 b ()
(i) FIEmE

R-T—+F+-_A=+—8 ' #H
278 E N A R P ER R - Bt
FE31EFE BIRITESH LR HIRTT
FR KM ISR EEEMIETE -
RRMEHEES  AEBEEER
RIS mEFERRE - NEBMK
RERBERIEDEBERFHFE
e LS AAERERg ML ©

AR E TR E e A R W E SRR & (10
MIFE23FTINER) - RERF MR
R (IMEE33ATIE) - EEEE (D
MIFE3SATINER) - ERRE (M
37FERER) - BE R R 2 &SR (It
FE38PTIER ) R E A B A (AP EE39
PREZEE ) DA BT KR -

AEENRERENEZRBRERS
PRAEEFHNERTANETER
TREFRE RERTRARHKER
FEERBENXRKY - ARERE
WEMBEAITETAESLQOEHE
FrEERA A EER - AT - EEE
B EEE B ERNERE

B -
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for
variable-rate borrowings and accounts receivable
from margin clients at the end of reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming these
outstanding balances at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole period. A
50 basis points (2016: 50 basis points) increase
or decrease which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates is used.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2016: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2017 would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$7,246,000
(nine months ended 31 December 2016:
HK$9,312,000).

The Group’s exposure to bank balances and
restricted bank deposits was not included in the
above analysis as the management considers that
the exposure to these risks for bank balances is
insignificant.
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(b) BIEMREEREREE®)

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) 5 R (4E)
(iii)  Other price risk (i) B ESE R

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities and
funds which are classified as held-for-trading
investments and structured deposits classified as
designated as at FVTPL, respectively. The Directors
manage this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risks. The Group’s
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments of entities which are quoted in stock
exchanges in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group
currently does not use any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to other price risk. However,
the management has appointed a team to monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should that needs arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at
the end of the reporting period. A 10% (2016:
10%) higher/lower are used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in equity price. If the prices of
the respective equity instruments had been 10%
(2016: 10%) higher/lower, pre-tax profit for the
year ended 31 December 2017 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$233,354,000
(nine months ended 31 December 2016:
HK$65,217,000) as a result of the changes in
fair value of held-for-trading investments and
structured deposits.
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46. €T E (@)
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties arises from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team to compile the credit
and risk management policies, to approve credit limits
and to determine any debt recovery action on those
delinquent receivables. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of accounts receivable and
other receivables as disclosed in Notes 27 and 29 on an
individual basis at each reporting date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on the loan
note receivable as disclosed in Note 23 amounting
to approximately HK$1,472,118,000 (2016:
HK$1,460,808,000) as at 31 December 2017 and the
Directors considered its credit risk is limited because
the counterparty is a company listed on the Stock
Exchange and the counterparty is able to settle the
interest, arrangement fee and advisory fee of loan note
receivable to the Group in accordance to the repayment
schedule stated in the subscription agreement.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits, structured
deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank balances is
limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies and authorised banks in Hong Kong, the PRC,
the UK and Singapore with high credit ratings.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings and the loan note receivable, the Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers
and across diverse geographical areas.
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(b) BIEMREEREREE®)

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of bank balances and cash
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from weighted average interest rate at the end of
reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s
liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments.
The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted contractual net cash (inflows) and
outflows on derivative instruments that settle on a net
basis. The liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative
financial instruments are prepared based on the
contractual maturities as the management consider
that the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows of
derivatives.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 46. TRET E (@)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIEEMREEEEREE#)

and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) TEE R (E)

Liquidity table BB &K

As at 31 December 2017 RZE—tFE+-A=+—H

Weighted  On demand Total
average  or less than 3 months undiscounted  Carrying

interest rate 1month 1-3months  tolyear  1-5years  cash flows amount
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

ES e FURRS
mETSHE  FR-A -2=fR =fRE-£ -E1f mERE REE
% TR TiEn TER TR T TiEn

Non-derivative financial FTESRAR

liabilities
Accounts and bills payables EIEIREE - 249294 1,097,236 - - 1346530 1,346,530
Other payables HfERFE - 28,938 - - - 28,938 28,938
Borrowings &8 462 1537436 45,655 730,137 695412 3008640  2,824,75
Amounts due to related ERERATRE

companies - 192 - - - 192 192
Loan from a related company BB E 2 B3 7.00 - - 130,791 - 130,791 121,847
Other liabilties EfpBE 6.50 - - 1,268,610 - 1268610 1203767

1815860 1,142,891 2,129,538 695412 5783701 5,526,030

Derivatives - net settlement ~ $i£ TA-F4E
Financial derivative contracts ERITERD - (12,669) (80,870) - - (93,539) (93,539)
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 46. R T B ()
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIEEMREEEEREE#)
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TEE R (E)
Liquidity table (Continued) TN E & (&)
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+ZA=+—H
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  or less than 3months undiscounted Cammying
interest rate Tmonth  1-3 months 10 1 year 1-5years  cash flows amount
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ESe AERE S

mgETENE  AR—EA  -E=EA Z@AE-§  -ERF  iEEE HHE
% T TERL AR TR TERL AL

Non-derivative financial FTESRAR

liabilities
Accounts and bills payables EIETREE - 120,576 - 790,015 - 910,591 910,591
Other payables HMERFE - 96,705 - - - 96,705 96,705
Borrowings A8 295 1,490,206 447 573,832 - 2068509 1,931,09%
Amounts due to related e R AR

companies - 14,728 - - - 14,728 14,728
Loan notes EXEE 9.1 10501 1,462,329 - - 1472830 1,412,116
Loan from a related company BB E 2 B3 7.00 - - - 178,624 178,624 171,444
Other liabilities B 6.50 - - 75602 1238702 1314304 1,165,586

1732716 1466800 1439449 1417326 6,056,291 5,702,266

Derivatives - net settlement ~ $i£ TA-F4E
Financial derivative contracts ERITERD - - - 12,685 - 12,685 12,685
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46. €T E (@)
(b) HERABREEREERER®)

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) TEE R (E)

Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are ME AR ZEREZ BN 2B EE L2 E]
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month” time HoMat Al RZE KA 2 —1E A 12 RH
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December HEAN - RZT—F+-_A=1+—8"
2017, the aggregate principal amounts of these ZEMBE 2R ® 425 /51,000,871,0007%
borrowings amounted to HK$1,000,871,000 (2016: TL(ZT—7<4F : 1,366,955,000/8 7T ) °
HK$1,366,955,000). Taking into account the Group's ET AR E 2 AR - EERBE
financial position, the Directors believe that it is probable TIPRAIEATEEERANKFERZ BIE
that the banks will not exercise their discretionary rights o BEERE  ZESEEHRBENRMZE
to demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe Fretei e 2 B BREAE -

that these borrowings will be repaid in accordance

with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

agreements.

TRAVIAKEMBRZEREEGRRZ
EEAE LA SRR ERE  WHES
FENIR - APRREIR S BRI HE R
Z IR R E -

The following table details the Group’s aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows for borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause. To the extent
that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from weighted average interest rate
at the end of reporting period.

Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  or less than 3 months undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate 1month 1-3months  tolyear  1-5years  cash flows amount
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ESE] ABRRE
nEFHRE  FR-ER -2 ZERE-% -E1f mEaE REE
% TR Fin TR T Thn i

Borrowings with repayment  HEAREREE

on demand clause FHzEE

As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+E
+-f=1-H 3.15 1,406 6,394 716,474 308,061 1,032,335 1,000,871

As at 31 December 2016 RZE—RE
+-f=1-H 2.75 4610 8,087 433,248 1,033,297 1,479,242 1,366,955

The amounts scheduled above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

% B HIR 2 B RINREPRAEE
ZIERTRIR - ERBITESRTAZE
ETABREZERATENR
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Risk management of distressed debt assets

(i)

(ii)

Overview

Risk of distressed debt assets represents the
potential loss that may arise from counterparty’s
failure to meet its obligation or changes in
market conditions that lead to decline in asset
value. Risk of distressed debt assets can also arise
from operational failures due to unauthorised or
inappropriate purchase, disposal or management
activities, which result in the recoverable amount
of the distressed debt assets lower than their
carrying amounts. The Group’s distressed debt
assets risk arises from distressed debts which
the Group initially classifies as financial assets
designated as at FVTPL.

Risk management of distressed debt assets

The Group exercises standardised management
procedures, including project initiation, due
diligence investigation, design and approval
of recovery plan and continuous monitoring
and management. The Group enhances its risk
management by strengthening investigation,
review and approval procedures before taking
up the distressed debt assets, and monitoring
measures after taking up the distressed debt assets;
enhancing risk mitigation effect through collateral;
and continuously upgrading the management
system of distressed debt assets. Specifically,
the risks to which distressed debt debts initially
designated as at FVTPL mainly comprise valuation
risk, legal title risk and to certain extent credit risk.

46. ©EL T B (@)
(b) BIEMREEREREE®)
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46. €T E (@)
(b) HERABREEREERER®)

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)
Risk management of distressed debt assets TREZEZENEREE (F)
(Continued)
(i)  11EmE

(i) - Valuation risk

Valuation risk is the risk of negative impact arising
from the difference between actual results and
value estimations that the Group would use in its
management of distressed debt assets designated
as at FVTPL, due to variance in factors including
future cash flows, collection period, repossession
discount rate, and disposal cost, etc. Measures the
Group takes to minimise the valuation risk include:

o Perform investigation strictly on the parties
involved in the transaction (including the
debtors and the guarantors), collateral
provided, repayment sources, etc.; and

o Adopt conservative estimation on incurrence
rate, repossession discount rate, and disposal
cost when performing valuation and review
the difference between actual results and
estimation after the completion of the
disposal of distressed debt assets to improve
the accuracy of future estimations.

The Group has established an independent
valuation process for distressed debt assets.
The Group has engaged on independent
qualified professional valuer for the valuation
of distressed debt assets and the Directors
performs an independent review of the valuation
methodologies, inputs, assumptions and valuation
results. The finance department records these
items and prepares the disclosure of the distressed
debt assets, based on the independently reviewed
valuation.

HERRAERBELEAREE R
BERAAEFABREZ TRES
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Risk management of distressed debt assets
(Continued)

(iv) Legal title risk

Legal title risk is the risk of loss, arising from the
decrease of recoverable amount when the legal
rights to claim was partially or entirely lost due
to inappropriate daily management of distressed
debt assets such as expiry of claim period without
taking proper legal actions on time. Measures the
Group takes to minimise the legal title risk include:

. Set up alert management system to ensure
the expiry of legal claim periods related
to distressed debt assets are managed
effectively;

o Set up periodic revisiting mechanism to
monitor the conditions of collateral. Maintain
regular investigation report properly to
ensure the Group has access to the most
updated information; and

o Set up reporting mechanism of significant
event to ensure immediate recovery action
be taken when certain risk elements emerge.

46. ©EL T B (@)

(b) MEERERE B ERBEE @)

TREBEENELEEE (&)

(iv) R
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46. €T E (@)
(b) HERABREEREERER®)

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Risk management of distressed debt assets TREZEZENEREE (F)
(Continued)
(v)  Credit risk v) 1EEEE

Certain distressed debt assets designated as at ETHEERANEFABR IR

FVTPL may be subject to credit risk. Depending
on the status of the obligor of distressed debt
assets that are designated as at FVTPL, the Group
may decide to pursue repayment from the obligor
instead of disposing it to third party, credit risk
arises in such situation.

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may
arise from a customer or counterparty’s failure to
meet its obligation. Measures the Group takes to
minimise the credit risk of distressed debt assets
include:

e Manage the creditworthiness of counterparties
using independent credit rating on the
counterparties as reference;

e  Select counterparties with appropriate
creditworthiness and repayment capability;
and

o Require counterparties to provide collateral
to cover the credit exposure.

EHAETEREREEAR -
B iR AR AT ABN 2 TR
BAENESAKR - AEETR
ERREGAGETESREES
= BEER TEELEEE
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46. ©EL T B (@)
() EMIENAARENE

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
Directors are responsible to determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.
The Directors works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model.

AR AR BB TSR
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique and inputs used).

46. ©E T B (@)

() ERMTENDAETE@R

REEUBEMEERE A A EGTENTH
BEERTHEBHAALE

AEEHLTREELRSRABNERE
HIRIRARERE - TREFIARMAE
EZEFeREERTRABNAARECL
HEFERNGBERMRBAZRE) NE

¥ o

Financial assets/ Fair value Relationship of unohservable
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy ~ Valuation technique(s) and key inputs ~ inputs to fair value
SREE/SHER RUATBENALE MESR HERTRIERARE TUBREAHERAAENER
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-tf “ERE
TR TR
Held-for-trading Asset-2,244524  Asset-651856  Level ! Quoted bid prices in an active market /A
investments
REEERE BE-24504 AE-65185% F-Ef  EETBHBEAE NER
Financial liabilities held-  Liability - 6,600 Liability - Nil - Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market N/A
for-trading
REEEZ2RAR Bf&-6,600 8- E-BR  EEGSMRELAE Wil
Financial derivative Asset-93,539  Liability- 12,685 Level2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are ~ N/A
contracts estimated based on forward exchange rates
(from observable forward exchange rates at
the end of the reporting period) and contract
forward rates
SRTERD BE-93539  AfE-1268 F-ER  EARALRE - ARRERENENEH FER
EX(REERNTBRNEHEEFS)
RAatiEEnx
Financial assets Asset-446,660  Asset-452,600  Level 3 Market comparable approach Assignificant increase in the market
designated as at Market price of comparable properties per price per square meter used would
FVTPL (distressed square meter, by taking into accounts of result i a significant increase in fair
debt assets) future construction cost to complete, size, — value, and vice versa
locations and condition and environment of A significant increase in repossession
properties and repossession discount rate ~ discount rate used would result in a
significant decrease in fair value, and
vice versa
EERALEHARE  HE-446660 AE-452600 F=BR  wHHAE FRANE T AATENAR A
R oREE TERBNEGT AR TENG IME  EHAAEAREN - R TR
(TREKEE) CARTIRERA RE - HE RRR  FRAOKEHRENOAE LS

BRARMRFEE

IRAERETH  RZHA
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (Continued)

46. ©EL T B (@)

() ERMIENIREFER

REEUBEMEERE A A BT ENTH
BERETHAMEN L 2EA)

Financial assets/ Fair value Relationship of unohservable
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy ~ Valuation technique(s) and key inputs ~ inputs to fair value
SREE/SRER RUATBENALE MESR HERTRIERARE TUBREAHERAAENER
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-t% ENF
TiEn AT
Structured deposits Asset - 89,020 Asset-313  Level3 Discounted cash flows Asignificant increase in bank interest
Expected yields of 4.0% to 4.1% (2016 rates used would result in a significant
3.3%) of money market instruments and increase in fair value, and vice versa
debt instruments invested by banksanda A significant increase in discount rate
discount rate that reflects the credit risk of  used would result in a significant
the banks (Note) decrease in fair value, and vice versa
HREER EE-89,020 BE-313 £ZER  nRALNE AR ENABE M EH

Available-for-sale Asset - 47,119 Asset-Nil  Level2
investments
AL ERE BE-47,119 EE-T ZZER

Note: The Directors consider that the impact of the fluctuation
in expected vyields of the money market instruments
and debt instruments and discount rate to the fair
value of the structured deposits was insignificant as the
structured deposits have short maturities, and therefore
no reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements of
financial assets is presented.

BS R AR RENEERST AR
BRTANA0%Z41%(ZE—1E
33%) UERRBETEERRRERE
(FizE)

MRERRELIT R2HR
AERRTREHARENBEHA
REMARTE - R2HR

Derived from quoted prices based on net asset  N/A

value of the investment funds

REREESNARFERERN

g

MR %S

NER

BUHERIHMERE - HEER

REBETS TARBEBTAR SRR
FRENEBDHEBUETFRAAENTEL
TER FANKTEZFIECHEEL=ER
NAEFTEBZEHE -
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 46. ©E T B (@)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial () ERMIENQIREFER
instruments (Continued)
Fair value of the Group's financial assets and FEBUALAE M BEEZ N EEBN 2
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value BERLTHEMENALE(IE)

on a recurring basis (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of TREEF—BHRANETEZYE -
financial assets.

Financial assets
designated as at

FVTPL
HK$'000
EBERAIAE
FABHEZ
cRIEE
FAT
As at 1 April 2016 RZE—XRFMNA—H -
Recognised in profit or loss (Note) Rigz R (M) 150,068
Purchases BE 710,056
Disposal HE (389,007)
Exchange realignment PE 3% (18,517)
As at 31 December 2016 RIZB—RF+-A=+—H 452,600
Recognised in profit or loss (Note) PR R () 80,601
Purchases BE 329,760
Disposal HE (448,890)
Exchange realignment M AR 32,589
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZA=+—H 446,660
Note: The amount included an unrealised loss on fair value Msr - REIR A o 82 B) 518 49 50,213,000
change of approximately HK$50,213,000 (nine months BrT(HEZZ—XR"F+=ZA=1+—8
ended 31 December 2016: unrealised gain on fair FH@EA - REBRALBEE S WL
value change of approximately HK$92,098,000) in 92,098,000/8 L) Bat ASRABHE N E
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other EmEkEE -

comprehensive income.
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46. ©EL T B (@)
() ERMIENIREFER

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (Continued)

No unrealised gains or losses are recognised in profit
or loss relating to changes in fair value of structured
deposits classified as Level 3 in the reporting periods
as the amount involved is insignificant, and therefore
no reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements is
presented.

There were no transfers in different levels of the fair
value hierarchy among Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year/
period.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value
disclosures required)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that are either:

e  offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position; or

. not offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the offsetting criteria are not
met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement
made between the Group and Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“"HKSCC"), brokers and
dealers, the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off the money obligations receivable and payable with
HKSCC and brokers on the same settlement date and
the Group intends to settle on a net basis.

REEUBEMEERE A A BT ENTH
BERETHAMEN L 2EA)

MRS R EEANER - Ft Iy R
SHEREAE —EANAERUEERAR
BB A AR R ER Wt kB 1R R R
R AREINE=BRANEAENE
BE o

REE/HBE - AAESRE— k=
[E 2 L B[R] & AR PR 884

FEENTHEEREHBEEHRAALET
WH BB MEE (LB RERZAE
EMEE)GEAE

7
Fn A

R
Iy

A
Ny

=% R A SRR RIS AV IR 35
KAANRZ EBEEREBABZREE
BEAERE -

<

TRATE 2T BRI AT E
BEZHSRBEUREIRRNEREER

TREE  BE:

o RAKERAMFBIRAHREKAEH
MBELERTA @ 3k

o RETHAEBEERE  WENGRARM
BRI R SR T A -

BIEAEEREBSPREEERAG(E
BEE])  RERZXGEARTNFEFRE
HEEWE - AREEREE S AR REIMITE
FIAER R4 E B mE B F I &
ERREEE - MEREBEEEIRFHEE
HELEE o

=
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 46. ©E T B (@)
(d) Financial assets and financial liabilities (d) ZKEZHFFABRNESMEE
subject to offsetting arrangements kemaE
Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to ZHIE - AR BIMITAF A E T A
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements or Ui R emEERERA R

similar agreements

As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tHF+=-A=+—H
Gross amounts
of recognised Net amounts
financial assets of financial
Gross amounts (liabilities) liabilities
of recognised set off in the presented in
financial consolidated  the consolidated
assets statement of statement of
(liabilities) ~ financial position ~ financial position Net amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RERE %

BERLH DY REEME
EE(8F) ZCRRER  HRBER2IZ

#E EEEREE SREETFE ik
7 T 7 7
Description ik
Accounts receivable from clearing ~ JEUREE TR
houses 108,286 (91,123) 17,163 17,163
Accounts payable to clearing houses ~ fEf & & FiFUB (103,250) 91,123 (12,127) (12,127)
As at 31 December 2016 R-E—R"F+-_A=+—H
Gross amounts
of recognised Net amounts
financial assets of financial
Gross amounts (liabilities) liabilities
of recognised set off in the presented in
financial consolidated ~ the consolidated
assets statement of statement of
(liabilities)  financial position  financial position Net amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PRE I
Y s Ve g liNGEE b
BE(BR) JERERER  MRBREIZ
BwE  BE(BRE)LE SRERBFE 8
FET FET TEr FEr
Description ik
Accounts receivable from clearing M E R FUE
houses 310,470 (310,470) - -

Accounts payable to clearing houses ~ fEf &£ & 3B (336,492) 310,470 (26,022) (26,022)
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 46. ©R T B (@)

(d) Financial assets and financial liabilities
subject to offsetting arrangements
(Continued)

The gross amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities and their net amounts as presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position, both of
which have been disclosed in the above tables, are
measured as follows:

e Amounts due from HKSCC, brokers and brokerage
clients — amortised cost

. Amounts due to HKSCC — amortised cost

The amounts which have been offset against the related
recognised financial assets and financial liabilities in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position or
subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements are measured on the same basis as
the recognised financial assets and financial liabilities.

47. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group has retirement plans covering a substantial portion
of its employees. The principal plans are defined contribution
plans.

The Company's subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the rules and
regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority. The Group’s employees are required to join the
scheme. The Group has followed the minimum statutory
contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’
relevant aggregated income with a cap of HK$1,500 per
employee per month.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC, Singapore and
the UK, in compliance with the applicable regulations of
respective jurisdictions, participated in various pension
schemes operated by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments. These subsidiaries are required to make defined
contributions to these schemes at a fixed percentage of their
covered payroll. The Group has no other obligations for the
payment of its staff’s retirement and other post-retirement
benefits other than the contributions described above.

The total contributions in respect of the year ended
31 December 2017 charged to consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income amount to
HK$2,927,000 (nine months ended 31 December 2016:
HK$1,232,000).

(d) REFELZHFARRNEHEE
kema s

ERABERGARBIBE 2T
BATE RS WA BB RIUFRIR
THsate -

s RUBEGE RLEMRELEFPK
TH — BN

o  RENEAEER-HIERA

RAEEERA BBIRRER AR 185
SRAERSMAGNRESY RTTRY
MHT 2 B R R E R SRR TR
R4 RACEZSBEAERSBE
R S8 -

47. BIRERIFHE

AEERE —EERREAHNS R E 2RI
B - EBHEAREHKAE -

ARRNEEMBARRERGIMEATESF S
EERNARARRELEEF LTS
AEEEBHAZ M E - NEREDBTIE
ERERFBERAERESEABERAN
5% M - LRREREESA1,50087TT

RBTERDEERBERBL - AABRFE
I KRB B AR 2 BZ AR BREE T
B &8s LR GRS - ZEMBRRIA
AR EH 2 BE A D L AZE
BEH RN o BR LA RSN - AEREAL T
HAS B TRKEEMERKRENORE

HE-FT—tF+-_A=+—HLEFEER
AEZhEM2ERSRNBZAHKA
2,927,000 L(HE=T— R "F+_A=+—
BiEAEA :1,232,00057T) °
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48.

ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had
completed a material acquisition in acquiring controlling
interests in certain companies at a total consideration
of approximately HK$607,570,000 (nine months ended
31 December 2016: HK$1,319,309,000). For the companies
set out in note (i), they did not operate any business prior
to the respective dates of acquisitions and accordingly,
the Group considers the nature of these acquisitions as
acquisitions of assets in substance and the considerations
have been attributed to the individual assets acquired and
liabilities assumed based on the relative fair values of the
individual items. For the acquisition as mentioned in note
(i), the acquisition is considered as business combination
under HKFRS 3 and accounted for using acquisition method.
Acquisition-related costs had been excluded from the cost of
acquisitions and recognised directly as an expense in the year/
period when incurred within “other operating expenses” line
item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

(i) Assets acquisitions
(a) Acquisition of San Siu Company Limited (“San
Siu”)

On 20 June 2016, Tai United Capital Limited, a
directly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
acquired the entire equity interest of San Siu at a
consideration of HK$1,800,000. The principal asset
of San Siu is a vehicle license plate issued in the
PRC, which is being valued at HK$1,800,000.

(b) Acquisition of Citi Elite Limited (“Citi Elite”)

On 5 July 2016, Tai United Capital Limited, a
directly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
acquired the entire equity interest of Citi Elite at a
consideration at HK$2,330,000. The principal asset
of Citi Elite is a vehicle license plate issued in Hong
Kong, which is being valued at HK$2,330,000.

48. EEREBUWEEE

REEZZ—tF+ZA=+—BLEFE &
SEB TR —EE B ER{E%607,570,000
BT(HE-E—A"F+-_A=+—HILAR
A ©1,319,309,000/ 7T ) BB & T 2 Bl i 42
mZ ERREERTE - HRMEOmE AR
HEWENEES 5 U B EATE ST
% At ARERABLFWENHEEE
BUBEE MREESEZZRMERIEE AR
Bt 27 TESREBIEERFTEAERE - $#R
PsEG TR M FE 18 - RE B IEIRIEE
B SRS LR EIFNWEBAEBRESH - WR
BUREEARR o B ETEMABAKAS UK
RPGIG  WRGEEBRREME2ERER
[EMe MYy IREENFE R EERER
BFY o

(i) EEWE

(a) WHE=IERAA(=])

RZE—ARNFNAZ+H AR
Alz H¥ 2 &M E R A Tai United
Capital Limited 42 #& = /)N 2 & &0 &
7 R{E/51,800,00087T « =/
FEEERPHEBTHNER - EE
71,800,000/ 7T °

(b) WIEFEEERL B ([ FEE5))

RZZFE—AR"FtARH ' ARFEZ
HE2 LM BAFTai United Capital
Limited W & B #0 2 2 Zp A% #& - R
842,330,000/ - iz £ 2
BEREBHITHNEE  BEEA
2,330,000/ 7T °
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48. ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS 48. EER XK WIEEE w)
(Continued)
(i) EEWE®)

(i) Assets acquisitions (Continued)

(c) Acquisition of RCBG Residential (UK) Limited (c) YHERCBG Residential (UK)

(“RCBG”) and MRB Residential Holdings Limited(/ RCBG_/) % MRB
Limited and its subsidiaries (“MRB Group”) Residential Holdings Limited X &
#1822 5 ([ MRBE & J)

On 24 September 2016, BG Residential Holdings
Limited (“BG Residential”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with The Rothschild
Foundation (Hanadiv) Europe, The Rothschild
Foundation, RCBG Residential (Jersey) Limited,
MoREOF BG Residential Holdings Limited and
Brockton Capital | (Tenenbaum) Limited (collectively
referred to as the “Vendors”) pursuant to which
BG Residential has agreed to purchase the entire
equity interest of RCBG and MRB Group and to
accept the assignment of loans from the former
shareholder of RCBG and MRB Group amounted
to GBP46,928,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$443,939,000). RCBG and MRB Group together
legally held 100% interest of residential properties
located at 6-9 Buckingham Gate, London SW1E
6JP, which is being valued at GBP112,202,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,061,431,000).

The aggregate consideration of the acquisition
is GBP58,803,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$556,276,000) and the acquisition has been
completed on 4 November 2016. Details of
the acquisition were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 18 October 2016.

RZE—-—RFEAAZ+TDTA -
ARArRlzEEZ2ENEB R RBG
Residential Holdings Limited ([ BG
Residential J) E2The Rothschild
Foundation (Hanadiv) Europe *
The Rothschild Foundation »
RCBG Residential (Jersey) Limited »
MoREOF BG Residential Holdings
Limited )2 Brockton Capital |
(Tenenbaum) Limited (%t 78 A&
[ERDEIYE&EmZE B
BG Residential 7] & & B RCBG
K MRB & & 2 2 50 ik 1 2 # A
RCBGEMRBEE Z Al R & ~
B 5046,928,000 K & (FHE R4
443,939,000/ 7T) #) 8 7% ° RCBG
MMRB&E B KR A ERHHE - R
7 6-9 Buckingham Gate, London
SW1E 6JPfE{E A 112,202,000 £ %
(FHZH 491,061,431,00078 7T) 2
T2 100% IR -

I fE =18 2 48K {8 /558,803,000 2
$5 (FZ 7 49556,276,00087T) © &
WEEBER-_E—"F+— AW
HEMK - MEEENFBEHN AR
RAMMAT—R"F+ATNAB®

DR -
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48. ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS
(Continued)

(i) Assets acquisitions (Continued)

(d) Acquisition of Leon Property

(e)

On 24 November 2016, Wide Flourish Investments
Limited (“Wide Flourish”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with Leon Property
Holdings Limited, pursuant to which Wide Flourish
has agreed to purchase the entire equity interest
of Leon Property and to accept the assignment of
loan from former shareholders of Leon Property
amounted to GBP28,921,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$276,191,000). The principal
asset of Leon Property is a commercial property
located in Hammersmith, the West of London,
which is being valued at GBP103,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$988,425,000).

The aggregate consideration is GBP44,950,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$429,954,000)
and the acquisition has been completed on 22
December 2016. Details of the acquisition were
set out in the Company’s announcements dated
25 November 2016 and 24 January 2017.

Acquisition of Sincere Will Insurance Brokers
Limited (“Sincere Will")

On 27 October 2016, Best Shield Enterprises
Limited, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired the entire equity interest
of Sincere Will at a consideration of HK$650,000.
The principal asset of Sincere Will is an insurance
brokerage license, which is being valued at
HK$500,000.

48. EEREKWEEE®)

(i) EEWE@

(d) Y #ELeon Property

(e)

RZE-—RE+—AZ+WEHE K
RRAZEEZENBRAREREE
BRRAR([ER])HLeon Property
Holdings Limited 7] 37 B & 5% + #&
It - BB B[R = 88 E Leon Property
2 & ERR% HE N ¥ 5 Leon Property 2
AR R & 5028,921,0005 8 (FAE R
#7276,191,000/% 7T ) B #%5& © Leon
Property 2 * Z & E AR A fm B A6
2 50 7 H 2 (BB 4103,500,000 5
55 (FE A 49988,425,000/8 7T ) Z 78

4R (B A44,950,0005 85 (HEE LD
429,954,000 L) « WEEEERN
TE-RNEF+-AF+-HEK -
WIESB 2 FBHNARTHEAA
—E-RE+—A-+HBEEK=-Z
—tF-—AZTHBZAERN -

WIEEHREBERERL A E
1)

RZZE-—XRF+AZ++EBE &
A A A 2 E T B8 A 5 Best Shield
Enterprises Limited 3% fX {& 650,000
BT IE TR 2 2R - HE
FTE2EEARBELER  HEAR
500,000/ 7T °
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48. ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

(Continued)

(i) Assets acquisitions (Continued)

(f) Acquisition of Mason

On 28 November 2016, Tai United Continental
Company Limited, a directly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired the entire
equity interest of Mason at a consideration of
US$20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$155,000,000). The principal asset of
Mason is an aircraft, which is being valued at
US$20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately

HK$155,000,000).

The relative fair values of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed at the acquisition dates for each
of the above acquisitions in 2016 are analysed as

48. EEREKWEEE®)

(i) EEWE@

(f)

WiEERE

75/\‘ T-R"F+—A=Z+/N\H &
NEEEZEEEK B AR Tai United
Continental Company LimitediZ
H1{820,000,000E 7T (HHERL
155,000,000 7T) WEEE 22
oK - BEz FEEERNE
% 1E/520,000,000E T (FHERL
155,000,000/87C)

RZT—RF LM EIAWE Z Pl
BEERMARAERNEERERZ
BERRETIDNET

follows:
RCBG
and MRB Leon  Sincere
SanSiu  Citi Elite Group  Property will Mason Total
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
RCBGR Leon
= H#  MRBEE  Property HE B @t
TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TEr TiEn
Relative fair values of assets acquired BB A E RATAERERNINGE
and liabilities assumed at the date of ~ AHIZAEHARME :
acquisitions:
Property, plant and equipment EN B - - - - - 155000 155,000
Investment properties RENE - - 1061431 988425 - - 2,049.85
Intangble assets BREE 1,800 2,330 = - 500 . 4630
Pledged bank deposits BEREIER - - - 16765 - - 16765
Deposits, prepayments and other &% BAFEREMEY
receivables B - - - 499 - - 499
Bank balances and cash fEﬂ tnkRg - - - 1,004 150 - 1,154
Accrued liabilities and other payables  [E5FEE R EALERFUB - - (@87) (8419 - - (51,91)
Tax payables JT&'EWFEI,E - - - (2,706) - - (2,706)
Borrowings f5E - - (462,28)  (565615) - - (1,027,897)
Loans from former shareholders BIRERER - - (443939)  (276,191) - - (720,130)
Total identifiable net assets acquired ~ FTUREE AT :RIE & FEAE 1,800 2330 112337 153763 650 155000 425880
Considerations paid for the EERRFENENRE
settlement of loans from former
shareholders - - 443939 276,191 - - 720,130
Cash consideration paid BREKE 1,800 2330 556,276 429,954 650 155000 1,146,010
Cash consideration paid BfRERE 1,800 2330 556,276 429,954 650 155000 1,146,010
Bank balances and cash acquired S TERRRS - - - (1,004) (150) - (1159
Net cash outflows BeMLFE 1,800 2330 556,276 428,950 500 155,000 1,144,856
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48. ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS
(Continued)

(i) Assets acquisitions (Continued)

(9) Acquisition of Tai Infinite Group

On 5 January 2017, the Company entered into
the sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Chua
pursuant to which the Company has agreed to
purchase the entire equity interest of the Tai
Infinite Group and to accept the assignment
of loans from former shareholder of the Tai
Infinite Group amounted to approximately
HK$493,503,000. The principal asset of the Tai
Infinite Group is the commercial property units
located on 79th Floor of The Center, Central, Hong
Kong, which is being valued at approximately
HK$606,529,000.

The acquisition has been completed on
24 March 2017 (the “Completion Date”) and the
consideration was satisfied by the allotment and
issuance of 446,742,544 ordinary shares of the
Company with par value of HK$0.05 each. The
fair value of the ordinary shares of the Company
issued, determined by using the published price
per ordinary shares available at the Completion
Date at HK$1.36, was amounted to approximately
HK$607,570,000 and resulted in the increase
in share capital of HK$22,337,000 and share
premium of approximately HK$585,233,000.

48. EEREKWEEE®)

(i) EEWE@
(0) WEAZEE

R-ZE—tF—AHA  ARAEHE
BEETTVEERZ Bt AR
AR EW B AR LB 2 E A %
MEAREERIRREEREE
K #9493,503,000/8 7T ° ALEE
FEEERNNBEBFIRFIRF L
TOEZEEYEEN - BEEENA
606,529,000/ 7T,

KEEEER - —tF=A
—+A(ERBE]) %K - RE
F 7R & BE 2 % 3517 446,742,544
PR mEEA005B L2 EBE
Eft - ARBIEHITEBERHNA
ARE(RERBHENEREBR
ERMGERI136EBTET) 95
607,570,000/ 7T+ B B AR A< 15 N
22,337,000/ 7T R I 17 s (B 18 hn 49
585,233,000/ 7T °
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48. ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS 48. EER XK WIEEE w)

(Continued)
(i) Assets acquisitions (Continued) (i) EEWE @)
(g) Acquisition of Tai Infinite Group (Continued) (9) WEXZEE(HE)

The relative fair values of assets acquired and AREEEMBEEERMAEARE
liabilities assumed of Tai Infinite Group at the N A= R E A N DR Bk il
acquisition date are analysed as follows: ™~

HK$'000

FHTT
Investment properties "EME 606,529
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 4,250
Intangible asset mILEE 25
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &% + T FIA R H b fE U R IA 310
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEEH B & R H A R FRIE (2,568)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEE R (976)
Loans from a former shareholder AR E TR (493,503)
Total identifiable net assets acquired P RS T a8 5l & B R E AR 114,067
Assignment of loans from a former Gl ES T
shareholder 493,503

Fair value of consideration settled BipfLEEE s REZANE
by share allotment 607,570
Details of the acquisition were set out in the W EIE 2 FFIE D BIEAR AR R H
Company'’s announcements dated 5 January 2017 HAE-_ZT—+tF-—HARAR=-ZE

and 24 March 2017, respectively. —tF=A+mBEZAE -
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48. ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS 48. EER XK WIEEE w)
(Continued)

(i) FHWiE-EgiZREIBEE

(ii) Business acquisition — Acquisition of

Hui Kai Holdings

On 29 December 2015, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Mr. Lo Kwai Sang Dennis
(“Mr. Lo") and First Step Securities Limited, a company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands with limited liability
and is wholly-owned by Mr. Lo (collectively referred as
the “Original Vendors”) to acquire the entire equity
interest in Hui Kai Holdings at a cash consideration
of HK$170 million (the “December Acquisition”).
The principal activities of Hui Kai Holdings are mainly
engaged in securities and futures dealing, assets
management and money lending business. A refundable
deposit amounting to HK$10,000,000 has been paid
to the Original Vendors in January 2016 in respect of
the December Acquisition. Subsequent to the signing
of the agreement of December Acquisition, in light of
the high volatility of the stock market, the Group and
the Original Vendors believed that it is in the interests
for them to take more time to review the receivables
of a subsidiary of Hui Kai Holdings, namely Hui Kai
Securities Limited, with a view to ascertaining with
higher accuracy the amount of receivables that Hui Kai
Securities Limited would have at completion.

As such, on 18 January 2016, the Group entered into
a termination agreement with the Original Vendors to
terminate the December Acquisition, and separately
entered into a new agreement with Hui Kai Holdings,
being the new vendor, to acquire the entire equity
interest in certain subsidiaries of Hui Kai Holdings for
an aggregate cash consideration up to HK$56 million
(the “New Agreement”), and in the meantime has an
option at a premium of HK$1 to acquire the entire
equity interest in Hui Kai Holdings for a consideration
up to HK$120 million within 12 months. The refundable
deposit paid to Original Vendors under the December
Acquisition amounting to HK$10,000,000 has been
transferred to Hui Kai Holdings as the deposits under
the New Agreement.

Given certain substantive conditions precedent has
not yet fulfilled, the acquisition has not completed as
at 31 March 2016 and in accordance with the terms
of the supplemental agreement signed on 23 May
2016, an additional refundable deposit amounting to
HK$5,000,000 has been paid to Hui Kai Holdings during
the nine months ended 31 December 2016.

R-EBE—RAFE+-_A=-+hB K&
[ ER7E & A S A (T4 54 1) KFirst Step
Securities Limited(— R B R ZE ST
ML ZERRAR] YHBEEE2EH
B)HBAIRER DL EEHE A
1235 4 L [E 170,000,000 7T U B FEE )l 4%
Bz 2t ([ AUE]) - ST
ZEEEBREBELARPERS BEEE
LMEES BREHER-_T—~E—A
4= B Ui % 32 15 10,000,000 7T 7]
RERS - REST-AKEREE &
RREMISNERE  ANEEERREHR
B R ZEEEREY KB A
(BIEYEHARAR) 2 EUGRIBIARETE
FESLFE 5 AR A AR TR R 2 EGIE 2
BREBESE  HIFAHESEZFE -

At R=ZE—R"F—A+N\B  £&EH
HRE IR+ = AUEE 2 8RR
o WEBENE A IR — 1D
W AR &% 556,000,00078 7T 2 4231 &
REWBEENIERE THBRRZ 2
B RSaRERIBT 28
ER+ =18 A A LAS&% %120,000,0007%
TEZRBUEEESN IR 2 22 - +=
AWEETEIN FREAZATRERS
10,000,000 T EAE AT IREIE T 2iEe
BB T RS o

EAE T BB TR M AR R - WU
RZE—RNEF=ZA=+—HEEATK &
BER-_Z—R"FRA-T+=ZA%EZH
TR RBEZZ—~F+=A
=+—HIEAEAEHME - ERESIERE
{TEESNATERIE 1% 45,000,000 7T ©
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48. ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS
(Continued)

(ii) Business acquisition — Acquisition of

Hui Kai Holdings (Continued)

On 14 October 2016, the Group served a written notice
to Hui Kai Holdings to exercise the call option to acquire
the entire equity interest of Hui Kai Holdings.

The acquisition under New Agreement was completed
on 24 October 2016 and the acquisition has been
accounted for using the acquisition method.

48. EEREKWEEE®)

(i) FHWiE-EgiEREIBER

(&)

RZZE—RF+TATEHA - REFRESL
R — 10 B B AN PATT (2 7R AR LA
Wb D S PR 2 2 AR PR o

HMipEE T2 WBEHER T —RF T
AZ+mAZER - ERREEALR

Consideration transferred: FrEEECE -
HK$'000
FHET
Cash paid BB 108,725
Consideration payable JERHR(E 64,574
173,299

Acquisition-related costs had been excluded from
the cost of acquisition and recognised directly as an
expense in the period when incurred within “other
operating expenses” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Cumulative acquisition-related costs in respect
of the acquisition of Hui Kai Holdings amounted to
HK$2,205,000, of which HK$697,000 was charged to
profit or loss in the nine months ended 31 December
2016 with the remaining amount charged to profit or
loss in the year ended 31 March 2016.

W ARRAAK AW AT AU R AN R B E
ARG B R EMEERGERIE
g EHT THEREERRARAT - B
RATE S IR U =18 2 Rt RIE AR AR
42,205,000/ 7T + H#697,000% 7T B
HE—E—E+-A=+—HILNEA
ZEEANG  MBRTSEEEHE=Z
—RNFZA=t—BLFEZEZAN
|§3§ °
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48. ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS 48. EER XK WIEEE w)

(Continued)
(i) Business acquisition — Acquisition of (i) EHWE-EZERWEEE
Hui Kai Holdings (Continued) (#8)
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed RUEAR TR EESERFIRESEZ A
at the date of acquisition are as follows: AEWT -
HK$'000
FAT
Intangible assets W EE 27,986
Accounts receivable FEUER R 83,670
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e - BAREREAEKGIE 6,205
Bank balances and cash RITHESR AR 2 163,038
Accounts payable FERTBRFR (81,436)
Accrued liabilities and other payables EstEE N A ENFE (1,272)
Tax payable JERI 1A )
Dividend payable to a former shareholder FER— BRI RIS (36,904)
Total fair value of identifiable net assets acquired P U 3 A i Bl B EE S FE A S (EEFE 161,285
HK$'000
FAT
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEA 2RSS RAFEE
Consideration paid in cash BENBEERE 108,725
Bank balances and cash acquired FrU B IRTTAE R R IR & (163,038)
Settlement of dividend payable to a former EREN — BRI RERE
shareholder 36,904
Deposits paid for the acquisition of Hui Kai ESVER W EEIE 2 B Ee
Holdings (15,000)
Net cash inflow e mAFE (32,409)
The fair value of accounts receivable at the date of FERERRKUBERZAREBENE
acquisition amounted to approximately HK$83,670,000, 83,670,000/ 7T + EIEs2 S A HIE
which represented the gross contractual amounts Ui 2 FEBR R 2 a5 558 -

of those accounts receivable acquired at the date of
acquisition.
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48. ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS
(Continued)

(ii) Business acquisition — Acquisition of

48. EEREKWEEE®)

(i) FHWiE-EgiEREIBER

Hui Kai Holdings (Continued) (#8)
HK$'000
FET
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WHEEZHE
Consideration transferred R (E 173,299
Less: fair value of identifiable net assets acquired & : FTURBE AT s Bl E & FE 2 A E (161,285)
12,014

Goodwill arose in acquisition of Hui Kai Holdings
because of the cost of the combination include a
control premium. In addition, the consideration paid for
the combination effectively included amount in relation
to the benefit of future market development and
the assembled workforce of Hui Kai Holdings. These
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets. The goodwill arising from
this acquisition is not expected to be deductible for tax
purposes.

Impact of the acquisition on the results of the
Group

The profit of the Group for the nine months
ended 31 December 2016 includes approximately
HK$1,573,000 attributable from Hui Kai Holdings.
Revenue of the Group for the nine months ended 31
December 2016 includes approximately HK$ 1,065,000
attributable from Hui Kai Holdings.

Had the acquisitions of Hui Kai Holdings been
effected at the beginning of the nine months ended
31 December 2016, the total amount of revenue and
profit for the nine months ended 31 December 2016
would have been approximately HK$8,109,122,000 and
HK$50,545,000 respectively. The proforma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisitions been completed at the beginning of the
period, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

RENERKBEEBEMEENBEZAR
BHRARNERE TIEGEAGEE - b -
BT AR R ERERETS
BB R K% [ S PR AR O AR 5 8 7 O R RE A
HEFIE o ELNEE AR A AT PR BT
BENERIZE - TeLEmBNMER -
ERRBETAME SN BB HERE
ERAAIREA] o

VoS JUES g

7R G FE S|4 A 7 491,573,00078 7TEH A
AEEEE_ZT—"FTA=1+—HL
NEAEENA - AREHE_T—RF
+ZA=+t—ALENERMKEEERE
P& S 3% 491,065,000 7T °

MESNERNBEEEREEZS—F
+ZA=+—HIENERYIFE  #EZ
T-XFE+-A=Z+—HIA@EANKE
458 Ko F % 59 B 40 48,109,122,0007%
JC 50,545,000/ 7T © i fEE A RHEM R
AR RURBAEEREREEER
HAFISERC BB A T T B R RS O A R A8
EEE - NRERARREERTEA -
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49. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 49. HEME QT
(a) Disposal of Jilan (a) HEER
On 21 December 2016, the Group had entered into RZEB-—REFTZA=Z+—8 K&H
a share transfer agreement with an independent H—ZBTE=AIIROEERZE -
third party to dispose of its 46% equity interest in a DA BT B A R B (Rt B R &
subsidiary, lilan, which engaged in investment holding fREE) 246% kM - MERER/AR
activities, at a cash consideration of RMB16,000,000 16,000,000 7T (18 & 74 #718,523,0007%
(equivalent to approximately HK$18,523,000). The ) HEERZTE—RFTZA=+—
disposal was completed on 21 December 2016 in which Heh - Rz B - NEEE R AR %
the Group lost control of Jilan. The net assets of Jilan at HliE - BENHE BN EEFENT

the date of disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
FHTT

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which & EXRHIENEERBBEDI :

control was lost:

Available-for-sale investments AR E s EE 36,496
Held-for-trading investments FEEREZIRE 904
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %Re - BAREREAERGIE 623
Bank balances and cash RITHESR LR R 1,094
Accrued liabilities and other payables EstEE N A EN TS (1,131)

Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE 37,986
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49. HEMB AR (#@)
(a) HEEHR®@

49. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Disposal of Jilan (Continued)

HK$'000
FHT
Loss on disposal of Jilan: HERRZEE
Consideration received 2HERRAE 18,523
Fair value of the remaining 40% interest of Jilan — BB T40% s 2 Ao E(HIFE)

(Note) 15,194
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE (37,986)
Non-controlling interests eI R 5,426
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of FENBAREEFEREREN A

the net assets of the subsidiary reclassified w2 RFER 8

from equity to profit or loss (1,224)
Loss on disposal included in other HE 7 EE G AR M RER)

gains and losses (67)

HK$'000
FHTT

Net cash inflow arising on disposal of Jilan: HEERELEZBESRAFE
Cash consideration BReNRE 18,523
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BERERITEAERKIAES (1,094)
Net cash inflow WEMAFE 17,429
Note: The Group retained significant influence over Jilan upon Wik : RHEEZTHE  AEERBZHER
completion of the disposal and the Group has accounted MEAXENIRAESEEERBT

40% z S ARV AR —EEE A
AZED  EREEBHNARES
15,194,000 7T + EVHEELEH
WREEBEHz X EEE(RETHE
BEZRE BIFEEZRERRITE
BRIBE ) Z ARBERERE °

for the remaining 40% interest of Jilan as interest in
an associate whose fair value at the date of disposal
was HK$15,194,000, which was determined by the
Directors by reference to the fair values of the major
assets of Jilan as of disposal date including available-for-
sale investments, held-for-trading investments and bank
balances and cash.
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49. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 49. HEMB D T @)

(b) Disposal of Leon Property (b) HiLeon Property
On 18 September 2017, the Group had entered into RZB—EFNATNR - REEEET
a sale and purchase agreement with an independent FE=FFIVEE M - S ERLeon
third party to dispose of its entire equity interest of Property (Kt EMEREEH) 2 2 H
Leon Property, which engaged in property investment M4 - B &R (E /52,719,206 H & (18
activities, at a cash consideration of GBP52,719,206 £ #)557,080,00087T) - HEE R =
(equivalent to approximately HK$557,080,000). The T—tFNATNBENK RZBAAXASE
disposal was completed on 18 September 2017 in [E 45 % ¥fLeon Property 7 ¥ |4 ° Leon
which the Group lost control of Leon Property. The net Property A E REAZ EEFEIT
assets of Leon Property at the date of disposal were as
follows:
HK$'000
FHET
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which k& XZ4IENEEREBEDH :
control was lost:
Investment properties LEME 1,189,720
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e~ TERTRRIE R E A R A 677
Pledged bank deposits BEIRIFIRITIF 1,946
Bank balances and cash RITHESR KRR S 714
Accrued liabilities and other payables JEEH B & R At FE AT 508 (7,535)
Borrowings B (616,056)
Tax payable FERIBITE (6,194)
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE 563,272
HK$'000
FHT
Gain on disposal of Leon Property: i€ Leon Property 2 I :
Consideration received B UERE 557,080
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (563,272)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the ERMB AR EEFENEREHHLE
net assets of the subsidiary reclassified from w2 RFER 8
equity to profit or loss 53,452
Gain on disposal included in other gains and losses &z (FFAE MU ES M E1E) 47,260
HK$'000
FHT
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of Leon  H%Leon PropertyE4£ 2R &R A FE -
Property:
Cash consideration HeRE 557,080
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BEHERITESRNIRS (714)
Net cash inflow RERNFHE 556,366
Details of the above disposal were set out in the B EZHBEARNAG B AT

Company’s announcements dated 18 September 2017. —+tFNAT+NBZRAE -
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49. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 49. HEMB D T @)

(c) Disposal of Mason () HEEES

On 13 July 2017, the Group had entered into a sale RZZE—tFtA+=0 AEHEE—F
and purchase agreement with an independent third BUE=FFIEEWE  AHEERE
party to dispose of its entire equity interest of Mason Bz ANk - ;&K (E%20,000,0005%
at a cash consideration of US$20,000,000 (equivalent TT(FHE 7 #7155,000,000/8 7T ) © BEH
to approximately HK$155,000,000). The principal asset HERMzEZEERRME  HEERA
of Mason is an aircraft at the date of disposal and the SEAEHBEITHES BTK - BF
disposal was completed on the same date in which the REHEBHNEEFEDT

Group lost control of Mason. The net assets of Mason
at the date of disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
FHTT
Analysis of assets over which control KREZHENEED N
was lost:
Property, plant and equipment W - BWEREE 144,021
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %o - BARIEREAERGRIE 6,019
Assets disposed of BHEEE 150,040
HK$'000
FHT
Gain on disposal of Mason: HEBRFEZEE:
Cash consideration ReNRE 155,000
Assets disposed of BHEEE (150,040)
Gain on disposal included in other gains and losses & gz (FF AE MRS R JE1E) 4,960
HK$'000
FHTT
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of HEBEEEZRSRAFH
Mason:
Cash consideration RERE 155,000
Consideration receivable FEURE (7,750)

Net cash inflow BHERANEE 147,250
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50. CHARGES ON ASSETS

The Group has the following charges on assets for bills
payables and certain borrowings as set out in Notes 33 and
35 as at 31 December 2017 and 2016:

50. EEEH

AEER-_F—LFR-F-—AR"F+ZA
=t BHEAEUTRENRRRE TEHKEHE
EREOVEE R (FNHTTE33 R35RTH) |

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+tF —EREF
FHET FHTT
Investment properties wEME
— Commercial property units located — (IR 2 Y E AL
in the UK (Note a) (FizEa) - 988,425
— Residential property units located in —(IRRE 2 FEYEEN
the UK (Note b) (Ki7Eb) 1,080,848 1,074,375
— Commercial property units located —(IREBZ B RFELE
in Hong Kong classified as held-for-sale Z BB (M)
(Note c) 680,000 -
1,760,848 2,062,800
Restricted bank deposits (Note d) PR HIER TR () 1,117,534 841,106
Pledged bank deposits (Note a) BEEMRITIER (K ETa) = 19,713
Financial assets held-for-trading (Note e) FEEE 2 amEE (MiTte) 2,244,524 651,856
Financial assets designated as at fair EERBRANEE A B
value through profit or loss (Note f) SEEE (M) - 215,041
5,122,906 3,790,516
Notes: BEE

(@  The investment properties, pledged bank deposits and together
with a floating charge over all the assets of a subsidiary of the
Group were pledged to a bank to secure for a bank borrowing
with an outstanding amount of approximately HK$573,000,000
as at 31 December 2016.

(b)  The investment properties, insurance proceeds and together
with a floating charge over all the assets of certain subsidiaries
of the Group were pledged to a bank to secure for a bank
borrowing with an outstanding amount of approximately
HK$489,889,000 (2016: HK$525,250,000).

(©)  The investment properties classified as held-for-sale (2016:
investment properties held by Mr. Chua) were pledged to a
bank to secure a bank borrowing with an outstanding amount
of approximately HK$400,000,000 (2016: HK$500,000,000).
This borrowing also guaranteed by Tai He Financial.

(d)  The restricted bank deposits were pledged to secure for letters
of credit arising from the purchase of petrochemical products
and metal-related products with an outstanding amount of
approximately HK$1,242,218,000 (2016: HK$790,013,000).

(@) ZAEEREWE BEBRITFRERAEE
—RH B A ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ?z%&za@/ﬁvﬁua%&ﬁw
TRIT FARZZ—XR"F+_A=1+—HB%
BiERITEE4573,000,00078 7T 2 1R °

b) AEEEBEVE -  RBABHREERAEES
THEBARAEER LTI RCHERT
R1T - ERKREERTTIE B 4489,889,000%
TL(=Z— /<4 : 525,250,000/ 70) 2 &R ©

(0 PDEABEREREME(ZT—RF 8%
ER/BAZREME)BEFETRT - (EAKRE
EERTTIE B 49400,000,000/8 7T ( — T — 74 -
500,000,000/ 7T ) 2 &R © ZIEE AR E
R AEIER o

d ZRHIRITER E%ﬁﬁuﬁ*ﬂ%ﬁ%,\ﬂifé 2
% %5 491,242,218,000 78 7T ( — N
790,013, OOO%E)ZEMEW&%J%*EF Efh
FIEAZERFE -
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50. CHARGES ON ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e)

®

The financial assets held-for-trading was pledged to securities
brokers to secure for margin financing loans with an
outstanding amount of approximately HK$1,028,403,000
(2016: HK$310,590,000).

The financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or
loss — distressed debt assets were pledged to secure for vendor
financing loan with an outstanding amount of approximately
HK$31,121,000 as at 31 December 2016.

In addition to above charges on assets, the Group's 8%
Note with an outstanding amount of approximately
HK$620,904,000 as at 31 December 2017 was secured by all
the shares of two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Best Future and

50. EEIKF @)

G

(e)

B bt & E MRS

(#&)

HFEEeREEDEBTERFCLA  FR
KREEREDBEEINE1,028,403,000/5 7T
(ZZ—7<4F © 310,590,000 70 ) 2 #&1R -

WIZE-RE+-_A=1+—H EERKRAR
B ABGNEREE - TREKEED KM
TERAREEE T RUE B3K4931,121,0008 T2
PR -

REBR-_Z—tF+=

A=Z+—HB2ZXEE£54A620,904,0007%
TLZ8%ZEAMEEENB AR (BEERK
MERER) ZraRHER o

TU Financial.
51. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 51. EAENE
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
—E—+tF ZEREF
FHET FAET
Capital expenditure in respect of potential BT ETHERRERE
share subscription contracted for but not W TSk Bt 2 FT &
provided in the consolidated financial SV = - ENE
statements (Note) (P 5E) = 592,000
Note: On 18 July 2016, the Company entered into an subscription MisE : REZE—AFLATNB » AR B RERHEER

agreement with Hua Lien International (Holding) Company
Limited (“Hua Lien”), pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to subscribe a total of 3,700,000,000
shares in Hua Lien at the subscription price of HK$0.16 per
share. The consideration of approximately HK$592,000,000 will
be settled in cash by the way of the loan borrowed from Tai He
Financial.

On 27 March 2017, the Directors considered that the conditions
precedent of the subscription agreement have not been fulfilled
by the long stop date specified in the subscription agreement
and the Directors has decided not to proceed with further
negotiation to amend or extend the subscription agreement.
The subscription agreement therefore has lapsed and the
subscription contemplated thereunder will not be proceeded.

Details of the above are set out in the joint announcement
of the Company and Hua Lien dated 21 July 2016 and
announcement of the Company dated 27 March 2017.

(ER)BRAR([EE DL RERHR - B
I RRBVE G R BIASR0. 168 TREE
REEA $£3,700,000,000F ZEEERZ 1D o RIBLY
592,000,000/ i E BRI AN REAZE
FRUAZR & 451 -

RIZE—tF=A-++tH EEZRR/AEH
BRI N RBEHEANREOREELLA B
RIMDAREEER - BERRETERETHLER
RERETTE TR - Bt - REBWHZAD
ERY - BEETRETZRBEHRE T a8
T

ERRERN AN RER AN T AT
tAZH—BZMAASRAATEMA=T
—tFZA-HEAZAE -
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52.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of the share option scheme is to enable the
board of directors to grant options to selected employee or
proposed employee (whether full time or part time employee,
including any director) of any member of the Group or
any invested entity, any supplier of goods or services,
any customer, any person or entity that provide research,
development or other technological support, any shareholders
or any participants who contribute to the development and
growth of the Group or any invested entity (the “Eligible
Participants”) as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group and/or to recruit and
retain high calibre Eligible Participants and to attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
on 19 August 2003, the Company had adopted the share
option scheme (“2003 Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to
which the board of directors was authorised to grant options
to the Eligible Participants. Under the terms of the 2003
Share Option Scheme, it shall be valid and effective for the
period of 10 years from 19 August 2003. Hence, the 2003
Share Option Scheme had expired on 19 August 2013 and
no further options can be granted pursuant to the 2003
Share Option Scheme. Notwithstanding the expiration of the
2003 Share Option Scheme, the provisions of the 2003 Share
Option Scheme remain in full force in all other respects of the
outstanding options granted thereunder. No further options
were granted or outstanding under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme since its expiry.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
on 17 September 2015, the Company adopted a new
share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”)
on 17 September 2015 and shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years commencing on the date of adoption
of the New Share Option Scheme (i.e. 16 September 2025)
unless terminated earlier by shareholders in general meeting.
The number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted under the New
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including the 2003 Share Option Scheme)
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total shares in issue
on the date of approval of the New Share Option Scheme
by the shareholders at the annual general meeting (i.e.
125,091,243 shares) (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless
the Company obtains a fresh approval from shareholders
to renew the Scheme Mandate Limit on the basis that the
maximum number of shares in respect of which any options
outstanding and yet to be exercised under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes shall not exceed 30%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

52. [ERRREETE

BREAE BN RBREFTRARMEENAE
EEMKE AR AREEBNEAERX
wmEEE(THERARMES  BREIFNE
=) EAEMRRBEER - TATF 1R
I ERAM M SIRAOEMALTREE - £
MERRA/AEEREAREER([ERS
HEDNERMMERFLERNOEA2EER
HEERE - (FREBERE  REHEHAKE
{EHSRIREE B R - & BB EER
THNRERSEE LRSI HAKEEEEN
ATEIR o

RERRR -_ZZ=F\ATHLBRBHN—IA
ERARRE  ARFIERM—ABREE
(=T =FREEE)) Bl E=RE
RENSERSEERIBEE -RE-_ZFT
= FBBRE NG BB —FT=FN
AtTHhBEER  SE+F - At —FT=
FREBRESEEN _Z—=F AT NLAEW
ERBE-_ZFT=FRREA BT E— RN
EREEE - B _ZZE=_FBREFICE
o —ET=FRRREA BRI R
WARTTEERENMAEEM T EDA T B
N e B-ET=FRBAERBIEm A HIAR -
BERE —_TT=FREREFEE TR
TR R A ©

BERER-_ZT—AFNLA+LREBBEN—E
T@ARE  AARBR-ZZE—RAFILA+L
BN — BT R R T 2 ([ FTIEARERT L)) -
MEFERETERMBEBAIZE_RAF N
A+RB)RER - BHTF - BRIEHBRER
R AE FIRATARIE - ARIBEFRAETT B RA
ANEMEREER RS (RE ST =FK
AT 8 I LB AT AR TTEE I IR T (E
i A] FACEE REITHRMNEE - A XETEER
e R AR R IAF K g i ER SRR 21 B 23
BT 2 E R 10% (B1125,091,243 A%
7)) ([FTEIEHERE D) - BRIERARIERERSE
L E F AT R R RR SR A E AR R T R IR A
FTEI AT E AL 58I T 1% BB 18 R T E B 1]
BREMS RN N R EE TEBRARAR]
TERE EITIRA 230% ©
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52. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 52. BB ESTEl(w)

The Scheme Mandate Limit was changed to 525,001,985 as
at the date of passing of the ordinary resolution granted the
refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit (i.e. 5 June 2017).
The refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit represents 10% of
the total number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue
amounted to 5,250,019,852 shares as at 5 June 2017. The
options which may be granted under the refreshed Scheme
Mandate Limit do not include options that are outstanding,
cancelled or lapsed as at 5 June 2017.

The terms of the New Share Option Scheme provide that in
granting options under the New Share Option Scheme, the
board of directors may offer to grant any options subject to
such terms and conditions in relation to the minimum period
of the options to be held and/or the performance criteria to
be satisfied before such options can be exercised and/or any
other terms as the board of directors may determine in its
absolute discretion. The board of directors will also have the
discretion in determining the subscription price in respect of
any options, provided that the relevant requirements in the
Listing Rules are complied with.

The exercise price of the option is to be determined by the
board of directors provided always that it shall be at least
the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer for the grant of the option (which is
deemed to be the date of grant if the offer for the grant of
the option is accepted by the Eligible Participant), which must
be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant, provided that the exercise price of the
option shall in no event be less than the nominal amount of
one share; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
twenty one days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable to the Company on acceptance
of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The
maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted and to be granted under the New
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company to any Eligible Participant (including cancelled,
exercised and outstanding options), in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares
in issue from time to time. Any further grant of options
in excess of such limit must be separately approved by
shareholders with such Eligible Participant and his close
associates abstaining from voting.

No share options were granted under the New Share Option
Scheme since its adoption on 17 September 2015 and during
the reporting periods.

FFERERERNBBR L EFTEEEREY
TEIAEREA(—E—+E<AFR)EE
/%525,001,985% o 4 Bt B ERREBAE A
NRIZBEITEBREMARZ10% » K=
T — X AR HS5,250,019,852 A% 1D ©
AARRIBEEH 2 T 2R ER AR R BB
o OERABER_E—tEXAARA MK
fF « B E Rk BBARHE -

FBRAER Bl IRTURE - RIBFTEIRER &
BRHOBRRE  EFRA 2R EERMBR
7 WA R AT E R A AT A A R
MR EIR R RAE DI RE B IERR R
it R,/ REERF] 2 EMIEET N EREML
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53. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 53. MEEBELENEBNHER
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’ liabilities TREJASERETHEENEELEH (B
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non- RRERIIFREEH) 25715 - WEZHESE
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are MEBEBENERSREXUBIBSRENGER
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, PRERTHERABETHRENECBE -

classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
from financing activities.

Amounts
due to Loan from
Dividends related loan  arelated Other
payable  companies notes  company Borrowings liabilities Total
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
EAEE -BEE

ERE AFzEE  EHRE QEZER & AfttAE &t
Térn  TEr  TEn  TER  TER  TER TR

At 1 January 2017 RZT—t5-8-H - 14728 1412116 171444 193109  1,165586 4,694,970
Financing cash flows (Note) BERSRE () (95025)  (14536) (1.441537)  (0.958) 1259165  (57.671)  (420,562)
Non-cash transactions: HRERS
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAF - - - - (616,056) - (616,056)
Foreign exchange translation MNESE - - - 1085 112,691 13851 137,39%
Profits attributable to the third parties' REAREEEZE-T
interest in consolidated structured entities EnfElbar - - - - - 82,001 82,001
Dividends declared EERRE 95,025 - - - - - 95,025
Finance costs Ei - - M 10507 137,860 - 1788
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZA=1+-A - 192 - 121847 2824756 1,203,767 4,150,562
Note: The financing cash flows represent repayment of and proceeds Mer: RMEBSREREEERZBENERZER
from loan notes, margin financing loans, bank borrowings, SHIE - RECMEER - RITER - F=
third parties’ contributions in consolidated structured entities, FRGEEBEEZHN  BENFE - KRB
interest paid, loan from a related company, other borrowings, —EEEARZER - HibfE5K -  EAmE

vendor financing loan, related companies and loan instrument. B BEARIKERIA -
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54.

55.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Apart from details of major non-cash transaction disclosed in
Note 41(c) to the consolidated financial statements, there is
no other major non-cash transactions during the year ended
31 December 2017.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016,
3,002,184,872 rights shares were issued at an exercise price
of HK$1.00 per rights share (see Note 41(a)). Part of proceeds
amounting to HK$1,210,000,000 were offset with all the
outstanding loans from Tai He Financial and the remaining
proceeds amounting to approximately HK$1,781,242,000
(net of transaction costs amounting to approximately

54.

HK$10,943,000) were received in cash.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

55.

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2017 and

2016 are as follows:

Issued and fully

TEFRERS

BRI E B REM T OMKRE 2 T2
ReERpH2HBI BE_FT—EF+=-A
ST -RALEFEMBELGIEFRERS -

REBEEZFT—R"F+ZA=+—HIENLE
A BRTEESRERRM1.008 T
3,002,184,872 iz B i 10 ( R E41(a)) © &6
D FTS A S % /41,210,000,00078 7T E £ A
MeMOFTAEREZEEREKE Mg TAE
FRIE#91,781,242,000%8 7T (R 22 5 A 49
10,943,000/ 7T ) LAFR £ 77 U URER o

/NS S0y NGRS

KB FR-B—AFT=A=t—8
AEBEBHERANEENT

Place of incorporation paid share capital/
or establishment/ registered and Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up capital ~attributable to the Group  Principal activities
FRRLRAML BRIRBERE/
MEAREE EENY EMRAREE FEBELERRE TEER
2017 2016
“E-tE C—EI-E
Directly held subsidiaries
ERFENNEL 7
Bestway Group International Limited BVI US$1,100 100% 100%  Investment holding
RRRAHS 1,100%7T RERKR
Tectron Pacific Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERARES 1% REER
Best Future Investments Limited BVI US§1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBRERRAR EBRAAE 1% RERR
Wide Flourish Investments Limited BVI US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
BREREABRAR ZERLIEE 50,0007 RERR
Indirectly held subsidiaries
BREEHNE LA
Prolific Rich Limited BVI US§1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EHERAR ERRAES 1% RERR
Grand Shining Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BERAR EBRNES 1%ET REER
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55. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

55. X AR EEM B A RNFE @

(Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of incorporation paid share capital/
or establishment/ registered and Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up capital attributable to the Group  Principal activities
FRRLRAL BRIRARKRAE/
HWEBARERE EENY EMRARER FEBELERRE TEER
2017 2016
ZB-tF CT5E

Indirectly held subsidiaries (Continued)

BREEHNEL ()

Giant Silver Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding and
trading business

RRARAA &k 17T REBRRESEH

Sino United Investment Management Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Trading business

Limited
ANZEERBRAR 38 187 RS
RREEERCBNERAR* The PRC HK$400,000,000 100% 100%  Trading business
i 400,000,007 B5%%

Sino United Energy Pte. Limited Singapore US$25,000,000 100% 100%  Commodity trading business
and security trading
business

AR 25,000,000 EEECET I
Tai United Asset Management Pte. Ltd. Singapore US$1,000,000 100% 100%  Security trading business
AR 1,000,000 ERRHEH
FEEAREERERAT The PRC RMBS500,000,000 100% 100%  Security trading business
i ARH500,000,0007T EFRHEK
BREEHEEERERARY The PRC RMB900,000,000 100% 100%  Distressed debt asset
management
i AR900,000,0007T TREBEEER
ANERREZHERAF The PRC RMB847,451,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
i ARH847,451,0007T RERR
Kanggiao® The PRC RMB10,000,000 75% 75%  Trading business
i AEH10,000,0007 EUES

Kainarwolfram LLC Mongolia US$100,000 100% 100%  Mining and exploitation of

natural resources
e 100,000%7C REROERRER
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55. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 55. KRB X EM B A TNFFE @)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of incorporation paid share capital/
or establishment/ registered and Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up capital ~attributable to the Group  Principal activities
BLlEAE Y BRIRBERE/
HEAREE EENY EMRAREE FEBELERRE TEEH
2017 2016
“E-tE C—EI-5E
Indirectly held subsidiaries (Continued)
BREEHNE L ()
lkh Uuliin Erdenes LLC Mongolia US$100,000 100% 100%  Mining and exploitation of
natural resources
EGE! 100,000%7T RBROERAER
San Siu Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Inactive
ZDERAR B 2B RS
Tai United Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$360,000,000 100% 100%  Financial services business
(formerly known as Hui Kai (2016: HK$37,145,000)
Securities Limited)
ANEFBR AT A 360,000,000/ SRBHER
(AIBAREIZFARAR) (ZE-7F:
37,145,000 7C)
Tai United Financial Group Limited Hong Kong HK$24,258,462 100% 100%  Financial services business
(formerly known as Hui Kai
Holdings Limited)
ANEBEEFRAR E 24,258,462 T TRBBER
(FIBAESARERAR)
Tai United Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$22,000,000 100% 100%  Financial services business
(formerly known as Hui Kai (2016: HK$12,000,000)
Futures Limited)
ANHEER LR E 22,000,007 7T TRBBER
(FIBREIREERAR) (ZE—7RE:
12,000,000
Tai United Finance Limited (formerly known  Hong Kong HK$600,000 100% 100%  Financial services business
as Easy Winning International Limited)
ANEEERAR &k 600,000/ 7T SRRBEY
(AIBARKERERERAR)
Tai United Asset Management Limited Hong Kong HK$554,000,000 100% 100%  Financial services business
(formerly known as Hui Kai Asset (2016: HK$5,000,000)
Management Limited)
ANEEERERAF E 554,000,000 TRBBER
(AERENEEERARAR) (Z5—7E:

5,000,000/ )
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55. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

55. X AR EEM B A RNFE @

(Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of incorporation paid share capital/
or establishment/ registered and Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up capital attributable to the Group  Principal activities
FRRLRAL BRIRARKRAE/
HWEBARERE EENY EMRARER FEBELERRE TEER
2017 2016
“E-tE 2%
Indirectly held subsidiaries (Continued)
BREEHNEL7(E)
Mason International Limited BVI Us$100 - 100%  Inactive
ERRRERAR EBERES 100%7 DEXH
Citi-Elite Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive
TEAERAR &k 1787 LR
Tai United Management Company Limited  The UK GBP1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Bl 188 REER
Leon Property Guernsey GBP1 - 100%  Property Investment
RAS 154 NERE
BG Residential Holdings Limited Jersey GBP1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERS 155 RER
RCBG Residential (UK) Limited The UK GBP0.01 100% 100%  Property Investment
HE 0.01588 NERE
MRB Residential Holdings Limited Jersey GBP90O 100% 100%  Property Investment
ERS 90054 nERE
MRB Residential Limited The UK GBP1 100% 100%  Property Investment
S 154 NERE
MRB Residential Partners LLP The UK (Note a) 100% 100%  Property Investment
S (Fi3ta) NERE
Haitong Dynamic Multi-Tranche Investment ~ Cayman Islands 1S$200,000,000 25% 25%  Fund investment
Fund IV S.P. (Note b) (Note b)
FHE#s 200,000,000 7 (Hizth) (Fitztp)  HeRE
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55. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 55. AR A X EME L RRFR @)

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Notes: BTFE

(@)  This entity is a partnership established in the UK. No registered (@ HEBRAREBEKIMNAEBLE - WEAAZE
share capital available. AR o

(b)  The above-mentioned interest holding does not empower the (b) LiERIERILTETAEBEMERE R
Group for any voting right since they are fund investment. EARRERERKRE - MARBERNFER
Details of the consolidated structured entity are set out in Note FMIEE39 ©
39.

* Established as a wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC. * o RAPER RINTEERE

# Established as a limited liability company in the PRC. # RARBIR . ABRAF]

All the principal subsidiaries operate predominantly in their Fre EZHBA IR EMER 2 s Mz B

respective places of incorporation/establishment. ST E R FERER o

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in EERRALRILALB ZMBLAR - ¥R

the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or RECEENEEFBEREEXE - EERR

net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries BEHINEMHB AR ZFBEEERIBHRIT

would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of Ko

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting TR A BT a8 R B S A5 AR SR ok 3R 5 HR R A AT R ]
at the end of the reporting periods or at any time during the BHEAFEEGES -

reporting periods.
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56. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

56. A E) B AR R R S

2017 2016
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—E—+iE —ZT—RF
FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries I B AR Z e 4,856,101 4,343,069
Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE 5,242 7,783
Other non-current assets HiIEmEEE 6,000 6,000
4,867,343 4,356,852
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables — 1&& + TA /I8 & B fE UGB 5,144 17,608
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE S FHT B  RIFRIE 175,116 683,354
Held-for-trading investments FEEREZIRE 2,110,380 627,545
Bank balances and cash RITHEB RIS 674,552 762,605
2,965,192 2,091,112
Current liabilities FREBEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEEH B 1B R At FE T 508 21,720 10,604
Amounts due to related companies JERBAE R EIFRIA 192 14,728
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATHT BB A R K8 836,499 593
Borrowings BE 1,592,964 801,292
Loan notes ERER - 1,412,116
2,451,375 2,239,333
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEEER)FE 513,817 (148,221)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABAR 5,381,160 4,208,631
Non-current liability FEREEE
Borrowings BE 620,904 -
Net assets EEFE 4,760,256 4,208,631
Capital and reserves EAXR#E
Share capital [N 262,501 240,164
Reserves i 4,497,755 3,968,467
Total equity A 4,760,256 4,208,631
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56. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

56. A E B AR R & e o)

(Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves RARIRERE
Contributed
Share surplus  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ROEE BRESBRE RiEER Bm
FAT FAT TAT THET
At 1 April 2016 RZE—RFMA—H 1,157,281 159,393 (604,046) 712,628
Issue of rights shares (Note 41(a)) BATHRBRRR (H:41) 2,852,075 - - 2,852,075
Placing of new shares (Note 41(b)) B &M (F15E41(0) 345,000 - - 345,000
Transaction costs attributable to issue of — EFTEA A D A &
rights shares and placing of new shares TR FEIE X ZHA (12,771) - - (12,771)
Profit and total comprehensive income  ERRIEF R 2 AN EEE
for the period - - 71,535 71,535
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE
+-A=+-H 4,341,585 159,393 (532,511) 3,968,467
Issue of ordinary shares for acquisition ~ FLUEEMBARIZTERR
of subsidiaries (Note 41(c)) (Fi15¥41(0) 585,233 - - 585,233
Cancellation of share premium and THERNEERERZES
transferred to contributed RepEE
surplus reserve (4,926,818) 4,926,818 - -
Dividend recognised as distributions REDKZEE - (95,025) - (95,025)
Profit and total comprehensive income & R I & 2 NG 1A%
for the year - - 39,080 39,080
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+=ZA=+-H - 4,991,186 (493,431) 4,497,755
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57. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
(a) Disposal of Best Future

Subsequent to the the end of reporting period, the
Group had entered into sales and purchase agreements
with two independent third parties to dispose of its
67% equity interest in Best Future, which engaged in
provision of securities and margin financing, trading and
brokerage of futures contracts, asset management and
money lending business in Hong Kong at a total cash
consideration of approximately HK$104,940,000. The
disposal was completed on 18 January 2018, on which
date the Group lost control of Best Future.

For the purpose of disposing its 67% equity interest in
Best Future, the Group has also released the charges on
equity shares of Best Future and TU Financial subsequent
to the end of the reporting period by issuing cashier’s
orders amounting to approximately HK$650,005,000 in
January 2018 to the Subscriber.

(b) Change of ultimate holding company

On 19 January 2018, Songbird SG Pte. Ltd. (“Songbird”),
an independent third party of the Group, entered
into two sale and purchase agreements with Tai
Capital LLC and Chua Lee Holdings Limited, former
holding companies of the Group, to acquire 23.40%
and 50.58% issued share capital of the Company,
respectively, at total considerations amounting to
approximately HK$3,573,076,000.

Upon completion of the share transfer, Songbird held
73.98% of issued share capital of the Company and
its holding company, Satinu Resources became the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

58. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in the
consolidated financial statements with no effect on previously
reported result and equity so as to conform to the current
year's presentation.

57. REHREE
(a) HEES

REBERBERREEARNEBLE=
FEAIVEEHE  NWEARSREY
104,940,000 T HE XN EF(HERE
BRBIREESRRESHRE  HEEYD
BEREK  BESERMEEE)67%
2BHE - ZHEER - NE—A+N
Bk @ AEBERZ B REHEGE
il o

AEBBER-ZZ—N\F—ABEBAREA
E£1749650,005,000/8 7T 2 $R1T AN ZEfif
EE RIS BhE B 2 AR - DA TR
EHIR G M EENEG 267 % AME -

(b) ZRRERAARE

RZZ—NF—A+TNA  xEEBISE
=Songbird SG Pte. Ltd.([ Songbird |) £2
ANE B FTHEAL A Al Tai Capital LLC K Chua
Lee Holdings LimitedZ] 32 1) & & i -
LA Bl Uk B AN A R]23.40% 5250.58% 2 B
BT - & HMRELR3,573,076,000
BT

R MHEFER - Songbirdis B AR
AR EERAREEHITRATIOY ©
Satinu Resourcesfi &2 &) Z S IR 12 AR
A7 -

58. LB F

RAVBREATETHREFESHOE I
BHRAZREELESELTE  UHAK
FEZ2MTH -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HFHHME

The consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the ~ ANEEBTRAEMEREBHZEEEE BEXL
last five financial reporting periods as extracted from the audited — Bf{& (s A AEBLEZLR A BEHER) BT
consolidated financial statements of the Group are summarised

below:
Forthe nine ~ For the year
For the year ended 31 March months ended ended
HEZAZ+-ALEE 31 December 31 December
2014 2015 2016 2016 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#Hz B8z
i “E—tF
tZA=t-B t=B=t-8
“T-mF “ZT-RfF “TRF IEAfER L5E
FET FET FEL FAL TART
RESULTS ES
Revenue Wegs 2,255 7,632 1,121,247 8,102,730 11,243,596
(Loss) profit for the year/period FE/HR(ER) R (6,894) (58,267) (116,074) 41,107 312,091
Attributable to: AT :
Owners of the Company AARHEEA (6,894) (58,027) (116,204) 41,263 312,096
Non-controlling interests R ER - (240) 130 (156) (5)
(6,894) (58,267) (116,074) 41,107 312,091
As at 31 March As at As at
R=R=1-H 31 December 31 December
2014 2015 2016 2016 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE—RE  RIB-tF
—2-F —T-nf “2—7% +ZA=+-8 +=BA=t+-H
FAT TAT FHEL TAT THAL
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets wEE 764,244 775,054 1,887,077 10,274,019 11,169,022
Total liabilities naE (167,292) (149241)  (1,029,167) (6,041,789)  (5,986,016)

596,952 625,813 857,910 4,232,230 5,183,006
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Particulars of Properties
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IN\éESTMENT PROPERTIES

Attributable interest
Location Usage Tenure of the Group
31k R FH FEENELER
The Buckingham, Residential premises for rental and/or  Freehold interest 100%
6-9 Buckingham Gate, capital appreciation KA
London, the United Kingdom HRAFEMER,SEEREE
No.555 Fenggi Road, Hotel facility for rental and/or capital ~ Granted the land use rights of 100%

Xiacheng District, Hangzhou City,

Zhejiang Province, the PRC
RETTE

N TR

B AR BE 55557

appreciation

HAEEERIER,REEAEE

the property for two concurrent
terms expiring on 25 June

2042 and 25 June 2052 for
commercial and composite uses
respectively.
REERREREERE W
BRIFFIRA RN T _F
ANAZTRBRZZTRZEA
AZTHAERNYEZ T
R -
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